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COMPANY PROFILE

Incorporated in June 1983,
privatized in December 1991,
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited, the
subsidiary Company of Al-Futtaim
group of Dubai, is a story of
rollicking success. With consistent
corporate achievements, the
Company is recognized for its
corporate excellence.

With its registered office in
Karachi, the AGTL plant at Dera
Ghazi Khan, some 700 kms away
from Karachi, manufactures New
Holland (Fiat) tractors in technical
collaboration with CNHI - Case
New Holland, the Number One
manufacturer of agricultural
tractors in the world. The AGTL
plant, an icon of engineering
dynamics operates on high

efficiency. With Quality Control
and Quality Assurance, quality
improvement systems exist at
every level.

One of our mission statements
reads, "Our most enduring
competitive edge is the quality of
tractors”. Robust and sturdy, the
Company's products of 55, 65, 75
and 85 HP, carry a local content of
92% - the highest in the country.

Monitoring the efficiency and
effectiveness of each production
process is the key to our success.
Effort is made to make each
process efficient to drive down
the cost per tractor. Competent
material and plant utilization

has resulted in the Company's

achieving its core objective of
being the lowest cost producer
of quality products. AGTL's
produced tractors in all hp ranges
are therefore among the most
affordable tractors in the world.

Documentation of the entire
manufacturing process and
improved quality measurement
being our priority, Al-Ghazi was
the first automobile Company in
Pakistan to earn the ISO-9000
certification. With yearly audits
the Company is now registered for
ISO-9001:2015 upto January 11,
2025.

AGTL products being a household
name with the farmer community,
our product profile reflects

consumer needs. Price and
convenience being the customer’s
first priority. The Company's
objectives include: focus on all
target markets and focus on all
types of customers. As many
dealers in every nook and cranny
of the country, and over 3000
mechanical workshops across the
country to work as customer care
centers.

AGTL's name is synonymous with
brand strength and customer
loyalty and experience. One of
the best performing stocks in the
automobile sector, AGTL is a story
of continued success achieved
through resilient and consistent
efforts.

At AGTL we believe that effective
individuals make a difference;

effective teams make a business.

Of all the things that we have
built the most admired is our
teamwork. AGTL's human talent
does not depreciate with time.

AGTL workers are happy workers.

AGTL values the stakeholders,
customers, employees and the
investors. The management
works to ensure that all supply
chain associates, dealers,
shareholders and employees
share in the Company's growth
and prosperity.

Al-Futtaim's flagship in

Pakistan with over 93% foreign
shareholding, Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited is a text book example

of good corporate governance,
conforming to all the Governance
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Reforms promulgated by the
government.

AGTL's long list of accolades
received year after year include
Top Companies Award of

the Karachi Stock Exchange,
Corporate Excellence Award of

the Management Association of
Pakistan, Best Presented Annual
Report Awards of ICAP, Best
Calendar Awards of NCCA, Excellence
Award on Human Resources and
Industrial Relations and Excellence
Award in Productivity from the
Employer's Federation of Pakistan.

AGTL's Vision Statement is categoric:
“To make AGTL a symbol of success.”
This sets the direction as well as

the destination in sight and each of
the employee lives to achieve the
Company's Mission.
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BUSINESS MODEL

08
After-Sale
Service

07
Tractors delivered to
customers

06
Transfer of Tractors
to Dealers

01

Procruement &
Acquisitiion of Local &
Imported & Raw Material

02
Storage
& Binning

Production of Sheet
Metal Components

OUR CAPITALS
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Equity PKR 9.19 billion
Assets PKR 20.39 billion

State-of-the-art Tractor
assembling facility

30k per annum
production capacity

413 employees
People-centered culture

Strong governance

Water, energy &
environment conservation

Waste water
treatment plant

Company's knowledge base

Product manufacturing
capabilities

Well-equipped

reporting tools
Corporate reputation
Brand (CNHi)

Relations with customers
regulators, communities &
other stakeholders

Vast network of dealers,
distributors & end-users

VALUE CREATION FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

05 04 « Customer satisfaction o Delivered strong and healthy « Talent nourishment and
Pre-delivery Assembling of . Trust of vendors returns for shareholders growth

Inspection of Tractors T :
ractors . e Return on equity: PKR 61 » Rewarding high
» Growing network of performance and investing

vendors, dealers & customers in attracting, developing, and
retaining our people

o Compliance with all the
regulatory requirements

o Contributed PKR 4.7 billion
to national exchequer
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OUR JOURNEY SO FAR

April
New Engine
Assembly Line

December
Takeover

April
Main Manufacturing
Plant

June 26
Date of Incorporation

September
Commencement of
Operation

by Al-Futtaim @

February
Auxiliary Plant,
Start of Production
at D.G. Khan Plant

April

Sheet Metal Plant
for stamping and
agricultural

March
New Engine
Testing facility

April
Assembly Line
for Generators

June
New Head Office
Tractor House,
Karachi

May
Go-Live SAP
S/4 HANA

October
Launch of 85 HP
Tractor

NH 850

June
Inauguration of
Corporate Office
Lahore

December
Migration to SAP S/4
HANA in progress

at pace

September

Kick off of Company
Transformation

December

Quality Assurance
Lab, Plant

IRAN

GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE
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GILGIT

BALTISTAN

KASHMIR

AFGHANISTAN

PUNJAB

BALOCHISTAN

ARABIAN SEA

Registered Office: Karachi
Plant: Dera Ghazi Khan
Marketing Centres: Lahore,
Multan, Islamabad, Sukkur,
Dera Ghazi Khan.

AGTL has dotted the whole country with a large
dealer network, and tractor workshops, in every nook
and cranny of the country.

JAMU
AND KASHMIR

Dealership Network: For customized customer satisfaction,
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Omar Al Futtaim has been steering the business towards corporate success and global recognition since 2001
when he was appointed Vice Chairman — following 12 years working at his family’s business in different roles

AT TH E FU REFRU NT 0F AI_ﬁIm"im SUCC ESS and for various brands. The diverse experience he amassed during this period, coupled with an innate passion he

instinctively developed for Al-Futtaim Group, has guided him since.

Omar Al Futtaim
Vice Chairman

Established in the 1930s as a trading business, Al-Futtaim
is one of the most progressive regional business houses
headquartered in Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Al-Futtaim operates through more than 200 companies
across sectors as diverse as commerce, industry and
services, and employs in excess of 42,000 people across
the UAE, Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia,
Egypt, Pakistan, Sri Lanka, Syria, Singapore and Europe.
Entrepreneurship and rigorous customer focus have
enabled Al-Futtaim to grow its business by responding
to the changing needs of the customers and societies in
which it operates. Al-Futtaim is committed to offering
customers an unrivalled choice of the world’s best brands
from the USA, UK, Japan, Sweden, France, Germany and
Switzerland (from sectors as diverse with each other as
automotive, retail, real estate and finance). Al-Futtaim’s
exceptional standards of customer service and after sales
support is the reason some of the world's most admired
and innovative brands trust Al-Futtaim with their own
reputation and commercial success.

Structured into seven operational divisions; automotive,
electronics, engineering and technologies, retail, financial
services, general services, real estate and joint ventures,
Al-Futtaim maintains a decentralized approach, giving
individual businesses flexibility and versatility to maintain
a competitive stance. The decades-long experience
allows Al-Futtaim to embrace and foster new, forward-
thinking business practices and seamlessly blend
those into corporate DNA and people-first philosophy
whilst upholding the value of integrity within a spirit of
collaboration.

This benefits employees, providing a clearly defined work
culture where individuals are empowered with authority
and responsibility for their work.

Al-Futtaim is the holding company of Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited with 50.02% shares.
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North.
America »

CNH Industrial is a global leader in capital goods that implements

design, manufacturing, distribution, commercial and financial activities
in international markets.

CNH Industrial is an international front-runner in the capital goods
sector that designs, produces and sells agricultural and construction
equipment (tractors, combines, excavators), wheel loaders, trucks,
commercial vehicles, buses and specialty vehicles (including firefighting
and civil protection vehicles), in addition to a broad portfolio of
powertrain applications. CNHI's symbolism is that they design,
manufacture and sell ‘'machines for work'.

South
America

Across its 12 brands, 67 manufacturing plants, 56 research and
development centers and a workforce of more than 63,000 people, CNH
Industrial is present in 180 countries giving it a unique competitive

position. T ’

The Group has the flexibility to pursue the most advantageous
strategic options and capitalize on opportunities for growth and
consolidation consistent with our ambitions for it to become a leader in

the sector. ~
Manufacturing Plant
CNHI holds 43.17% shares of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited.

R&D Center

o) Manufacturing Plant + R&D Center

QO
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OUR VISION g OUR MISSION

To make AGTL a symbol of success With AGTL's name being

synonymous with stability,
profitability, brand strength and
- customer loyalty, AGTL's mission
IS'to retain market leadership as
the cost competitive producer
of the highest quality products —
the most enduring competitive
edge being the quality of

our tractors. With corporate
virtue, AGTL's mission is to be
a text book case example of
good Corporate Governance
and through Corporate Social
Responsibility create mutually
beneficial relationships between
the Company, Stakeholders and
the Community.

i
.
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VALUES & ETHICAL PRINGIPLES
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Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is a public limited Company
with 93.19% foreign shareholding. The Company
with its superior performance is recognized by

all stakeholders as economically rewarding to all
parties, acknowledged as being ethically, socially
and environmentally responsible, welcomed by the
communities, businesses, customers in which it
operates. It facilitates economic, human resources
and community development within a stable
operating environment. The Directors believe that
they can make a difference within their sphere of
influence. Thus it is envisaged that:

» The Company should take a leadership role
through establishment of ethical business
principles.

» That while reflecting cultural diversity, the
Company should do business consistent with the
requirements of laws & regulations in Pakistan.

» The Company should show ethical leadership.

» The Company should facilitate the achievement
of sound financial results and a fair sharing of
economic benefits.

» The Company must have open, honest and
transparent relationships, which are considered
critical to the Company’s success.

» The Company should create a business
environment, which instigates against bribery and
corruption and refrain from participation in any
corrupt business practices.

» The Company should maintain good relations with
stakeholders including contractors, suppliers and
other business participants.

» The Company should aspire for stability and
continuous improvement within the operating
environment.

» The Company should focus on the protection of
environment.

» The Company should promote community efforts
as good corporate citizens.

» The Company should ensure consistency with
labour laws and standards, ensure health and
safety of workers and their rights.

» The Company should promote training and
human resource development as an engine for
growth with particular reference to the policy on
succession planning.

The Company has established a defined code of ethics
and business practices which is signed by all directors
as well as employees of the Company.

CORPORATE FOCUS

To achieve evolution through continuous change
with the deliverables being: to pursue lean
management, to eliminate all activities which don't
add value, to eliminate waste, to reduce costs, to
focus on all target markets and customers, and to
continuously add customer care centres.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

With roles and responsibilities clearly defined,
strategic planning at Al-Ghazi Tractors aligns its
vision with actionable roadmap to ensure optimal
performance.

Sound business plans are outlined, brainstormed and
developed to coordinate strategies for overall success
of the Company. With disciplined efforts to take
fundamental decisions and actions that shape and
guide the Company with focus on the future, Strategic
Planning at AGTL provides the best way to respond

to circumstances of the Company’s environment and
its resources. By incorporating them, the Company
remains consciously responsive to a dynamic and
changing environment.

Strategic Planning at Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
supports strategic thinking and leads to strategic
management — the basis for the making of an
effective organization.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (AGTL) appointed Mr. Robert McAllister as Chairman and Non-Executive
Director on the Board in January 2022. Mr. McAllister brings with him a wealth of experience and
knowledge of the automotive industry, having held several leadership positions with renowned

business conglomerates. His understanding of the key factors required for delivering at the highest

level coupled with an objective perspective is a valuable asset to the Board.

Mr. Robert McAllister's impressive track record in organizing and leading diverse, multi-cultural
teams to achieve outstanding results is a testament to his exceptional leadership skills. Having
worked in several different geographic locations, he has demonstrated an adaptable nature that
has enabled him to thrive in varied environments and face new challenges with enthusiasm.

Furthermore, Mr. McAllister's academic credentials, which include multiple finance degrees, further
bolster his qualifications to serve on the Board. His appointment marks an important addition to
the team, and the Board eagerly anticipates his valuable contributions in driving the Company’s
continued success.

Mr. Robert McAllister

Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev was appointed as Director on the Board of AGTL in June 2023.

Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev is an accomplished corporate financial executive with a remarkable almost
21-year record of success in improving financial performance, productivity, and internal controls.
He has held several key positions at Volkswagen Group, with the headquarters in Germany, as well
as the Group's offices in the United Kingdom. His expertise extends to managing finance functions,
assessing risks, guiding product profitability, promoting innovation, executing turnarounds, and
improving operations.

Prior to his automotive roles, Mr. Dmitrii excelled at PricewaterhouseCoopers, leading audits and
due diligence engagements across various industries. His exceptional skills, strategic mindset, and
cross-functional expertise make him an asset to the Company.

Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev
Non-Executive Director

Malik Ehtisham Ikram was appointed as Director on the Board of AGTL in December 2019.

Mr. Ikram is a seasoned Senior Finance Executive with a career spanning 20 years in Finance with
strong emerging market experience. He joined Al-Futtaim Group in 2012 and has been working
at various Senior Finance & Leadership positions, independently handling high profile Automotive
Projects for the Group. He has also served as Chief Financial Officer and Acting CEO of AGTL.

Over his career span he has worked with various consultancy firms including PwC and KPMG. Mr.

Ikram is @ member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and holds a post graduate

degree in Managerial Economics.

Mr. Malik Ehtisham lkram

Non-Executive Director
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Mr. Vincent de Lassagne has been appointed on the Board of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited since
October 2015.

Mr. De Lassagne is the brand leader for New Holland Agriculture - Asia Pacific Region. He initially
joined CNH in 1995. Within CNH, he acquired a significant experience in the CIS, AME and Asia
Pacific markets. Since 2004, he has been posted as Business Director in Asia Pacific Region. Mr.
De Lassagne holds an Agronomist Engineer degree & Masters in Marketing & Sales from the HEC
University.

Mr. Vincent De Lassagne
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Matthieu Séjourné has been appointed as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the
Company since February 2020.

Mr. Séjourné joined CNHiin March 2002 covering several sales & marketing positions in the
African continent. He also joined TurkTraktor, the JV of CNHi in Turkey, where he was Marketing
Director. He then joined the Asia Pacific Region, where he was successively appointed as Head of
Product Marketing and afterwards Brand Leader for Case IH. Since January 2019, he is the Brand
Leader - New Holland & Case IH for Asia, Middle East and Africa Region.

Mr. Séjourné holds a Master degree in Business Administration from SDA Bocconi - Milan,
ltaly and Master in Engineering from CESTI-Paris (newly named SUPMECA, Superior Centre of
Study in Industrial Techniques - Mechanical Engineering School) with a major in Supply Chain
Management.

Mr. Matthieu Séjourné
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Marco Votta completed his undergraduate studies at the Business Administration
Department of the Luigi Bocconi University of Commerce — Milan, Italy.

He started his career in the industrial automation sector, moving in 1994 to Andersen Consulting
as Management Consultant.

Mr. Votta joined the Business Development Department of New Holland in 1998 and was
appointed as Assistant General Manager in charge of Business Control at Tiirk Traktor ve Ziraat
Makineleri A.S. and New Holland Trakmak Traktor ve Ziraat Makinalari Ticaret A.S. in 1999.

He then became the company’'s CFO from 2006 to 2010, and then the CEO from April 2010

till December 2018. Since the beginning of 2019, Mr. Votta has remained a board member in
Turk Traktor ve Ziraat Makineleri A.S. In addition, he is associated with CNH Industrial as the
Managing Director of Turkey. From 2019 to 2021 he has been in charge of the product offering
and development of the tractors up to 130hp as VP of Global Product Line — Small and Specialty
Tractors.

Mr. Marco Votta

Non-Executive Director
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Board of Directors

Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor was elected as Independent Non-Executive Director on the Board of Al-
Ghazi Tractors in March 2021.

He has more than 35 years of experience in the Tractor manufacturing industry in areas pertaining
to management, development, production, quality assurance, project management, supply chain
management, etc. He has served as Director Technical at Millat Tractors Limited, CEO at Millat
Equipment Limited as well as Mannan Shahid Forgings (an Abraaj Capital UAE Group Company).

Mr. Toor graduated with a degree in Mechanical Engineering from Kingston University, UK. He has
attended various professional training courses in Pakistan and abroad in institutions like Ashraigh
School of Management - United Kingdom (UK), Perkins Engines, Massey Ferguson Tractors - UK,
AQTS - Japan, Pakistan Institute of Management, Lahore University of Management Sciences,
Pakistan Institute of Quality Control. etc.

Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor

Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Samiha is an illustrious business professional with over 20 years of experience across the domains of
Human Resources, Banking and Fintech. She built a robust career marked by her leadership and subject
matter expertise, having contributed significantly in a broad spectrum of business functions to diverse
organizations throughout her career.

Currently leading a financial institute as the Chief Human Resources Officer, Samiha brings to the

Board a wealth of experience, strategic foresight, and a growth-oriented mindset. Her dedication and
commitment to corporate governance, coupled with her deep expertise in organizational transformations
& redesigns have further underscored her strategic and business acumen. Her sharp and insightful
perspectives are indeed a great strength ensuring that the organization remains focused on progress and
governance in alignment with its vision.

Samiha is a passionate advocate for economic empowerment and gender equality, and has been
instrumental in designing and implementing forward-thinking HR strategies that enhance employee
engagement, drive organizational effectiveness, and foster inclusive work environments.

In addition to her professional achievements, she is a certified Board Director, holds a Master's degree in
Public Administration, and is a Certified Trainer, demonstrating her commitment to continuous learning
and professional development.

Ms. Samiha Zahid

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Malik Mirza, a distinguished Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA UK), brings over two decades of comprehensive
experience in Corporate Governance, Financial Management, Accounting, Financial Reporting, Financial
Inclusion, and Capacity Building to his role as a Board member. With a proven track record of leadership, Mr.

Mirza has notably contributed to the expansion of two national financial institutions, overseeing their growth

in terms of branches, staff, and systems from a single city to a country-wide presence.

As the author of a book on financial literacy for children, Mr. Mirza's contributions to the accounting profession

have been acknowledged by the ICAP with a bronze medal. His international representation includes serving
at the ACCA assembly in the UK for two consecutive years. Mr. Mirza's extensive consultancy experience
encompasses prestigious clients such as the World Bank, IFAD, the School of Frankfurt, ACCA, WFP Irag, and

various financial institutions, with a geographic footprint that spans Afghanistan, Iraq, Tajikistan, Kyrgyzstan,

and Pakistan.

Currently, as the CEO of Finman Group, he oversees operations across the USA, UK, and Pakistan for consulting

and advisory in areas of financial inclusion, entrepreneurship and capacity building. His previous roles

include serving as CFO and Company Secretary on the Boards of The First Micro Finance Bank and U Bank. In

addition, Mr. Mirza has facilitated numerous capacity-building sessions focusing on Corporate Governance,

Entrepreneurship, and Financial Management for ICAP, ACCA, and other esteemed organizations, underscoring

his commitment to the development of professional skills and knowledge in the financial sector.

Mr. Malik Mirza

Independent Non-Executive Director

Management

Sakib has over 25 years of experience, ranging from
finance, business processes, transformation, and business
operations across a variety of industries.

Prior to becoming CEO of Al Ghazi, he was serving as the
Managing Director for the CMC Group, a subsidiary of the
Al Futtaim Group, where he has led the transformation of
the company towards the Agriculture Sector capitalizing
on the growing potential of the sector across the East
Africa region. The company is the distributor of New
Holland Tractors in East Africa. He joined the Al Futtaim
Group 5 years ago and previously held the position of
General Manager Finance, Automotive, managing a
portfolio of businesses covering operations in 9 countries
across South Asia, MENA and East Africa.

Prior to joining Al Futtaim, Sakib worked with Kansai
Paints, one of the top 10 paint manufacturers in the world
covering operations with the MENA and CIS regions.
Sakib was responsible for all financial matters of the
regional business spanning over 8 countries with 6
manufacturing sites including 1 in Lahore, Pakistan. He

is a Certified Director and has remained on the board of
several companies as an Independent Director. He is a
Fellow Member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan.

Sakib also worked with the Hashoo Group, a family
conglomerate, whose portfolio included business
operations in Pakistan ranging from Oli & Gas, Hospitality,
Manufacturing and Real Estate.

He was a non-executive director of Al Ghazi from February
— November 2021.

Sakib holds MBA from Oxford Brookes University and is

a Chartered Accountant holding the designation of CGA
from Canada and a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (FCCA) of England and Whales.

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Javed Igbal
Chief Financial Officer
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Javed Igbal joined AGTL as CFO in July 2022 and
has served the company as the acting CEO from
December 2022 till September 2023.

Javed is a proactive, dynamic, diligent and result
oriented professional with a career spanning 31
years across Chemical Manufacturing, FMCG and
Service sectors. He specializes in Finance & Accounts,
Financial and Corporate Governance, Strategic
Planning, Merger & Acquisition, Fund Management &
Analysis and Business Development. Prior to joining
AGTL, he has worked at Management Positions for
companies like Pakistan Services Limited (Hashoo
Group), Ittehad Chemicals Ltd, Unilever, Daewoo and
American Express Bank Ltd.

He is a Certified Director and has remained on the
board of several companies as an Independent
Director.

He is a Fellow Member of Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.

Mr. Mansoor Khan
Company Secretary

Mansoor Khan was appointed as Head of Compliance,
Corporate Affairs and Company Secretary in August
2022.

He has more than 15 years of experience of handling
corporate, regulatory affairs and governance matters.
Prior to joining AGTL, he has served at senior
management positions and as member of Board of
Directors of various companies of Hashoo Group.

He is an advocate of High Court and holds Commerce
and MBA degrees besides this he is an associate
member of Institute of Corporate Secretaries of
Pakistan (ICSP). Mr. Khan is also a Certified Director
from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
(PICG).

Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Khan
Chief Internal Auditor

Muneeb Ahmed Khan was appointed as Head of
Internal Audit in June 2022.

He has more than 10 years of experience in the field
of Audit & Assurance, Risk Advisory and Compliance
. Muneeb joined AGTL in February 2021 as Lead
Auditor and was later promoted to Head of Internal
Audit.

Prior to joining AGTL, he was leading a team of
internal audit professionals across different entities
of a group and has also worked with a listed
automotive company.

He is an ACCA Member, CA-Intermediate and has
completed his articleship from KPMG Taseer Hadi &
Co., Karachi, Pakistan.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 2024

The meeting of the
BoD was held to
review and
consider year to
date performance
and associated

business decisions.

The meeting of the
Board of Directors
(BoD) was held to
review annual
budget for the
financial year 2024
and YTD December
2023 performance
and forecast.

IELITELRY February

participationfrom:
employees in cricket,
badminton, and table
tennis. Winners and
runners-up received
trophies, followed by a
grand dinner to
celebrate and foster
team spirit across the
Company. G
Nashist-e-Khas, a
monthly series of
sessions with the CEO,
was launched as a
special initiative to
enhance employee
engagement. These
sessions give team
members an opportunity
to interact directly with
the CEO, sharing
valuable insights and
suggestions for
continuous
improvement.

+ Annual General
Meeting was held
to adopt annual
financial
statements and
for the year
ended December
31,2023.

The meeting of
the BoD was held
to approve
financial
statements for
the first quarter
ended March 31,
2024.

etter
omers
d drive growth.
meeting of the
was held to
review and
consider year to
date performance
and associated
business decisions.

BoD was held to
review and consid
year to date
performance and

associated business

decisions.

on Indepe
Day, encoura
“émployees to
at least one tree"
each month
embracing climate to explo
_resilience and workplace
environmental ‘insight into
stewardship.
‘Khud Mukhtar Baa every day.
Wagqar’Workshop in
collaboration with
the Agriculture
Department of
Sindh empowered
women with
hands-on training in
tractor operations
and maintenance,
paving the way for
their future in
agriculture.

August September

their pargnts"b\;ork

The meeting of the
BoD was held to
consider and approve
annual financial
statements for the
third quarter ended
September 30, 2024.

\

September October October
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nilestone for A

we successfully

launched the NH-85

tractor, marking a

breakthrough in the

tractor industry. This
. ¥ achievement reflects

.t !, our commitment to

innovation and
operational
excellence. The
launch of the NH-850
sets a new standard
for AGTL, further
solidifying our
position in the
industry and driving
future growth.

October December
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Company’s Performance
Overview

During the period under review,
Pakistan's economy exhibited a
positive trajectory, characterized
by declining inflation, supported
by growth in exports, remittances,
and foreign reserves, alongside

a reduction in the policy rate.
Conversely, the tractor industry
experienced a downturn due to a
wheat price crisis that constrained
farmers' liquidity, rising input
costs, and the introduction of
sales tax. Additionally, farmers
deferred purchases in anticipation
of subsidized tractors under the
Government of Punjab's Green
Tractor Scheme.

Despite a challenging business
environment, Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited (“the Company”)
demonstrated resilience and
steady growth. With a market
share of 36%, the Company
achieved sales of 14,269 tractors,
generating a Sales revenue of Rs.
34.574 billion, marking a slight
growth of 0.09% compared to

the previous year's Rs. 34.543
billion. The Gross profit for the
year stood at Rs. 8.434 billion,

a growth of Rs. 2.011 billion or
31.32% from last year's Rs. 6.423
billion. Profit before Tax and Levy
for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to Rs. 5.708
billion, reflecting a significant
increase of 21.79% compared to
the previous year. These financial
achievements underscore

the Company'’s resilience and
adaptability in navigating through
economic challenges. The details
of the Company's performance are
elaborated in the directors’ report.

The Company made significant
progress in its transformation
journey, enhancing product
innovation, operational efficiency,
and customer engagement. The
launch of the NH 850, an 85 HP
tractor, expanded the product
portfolio, reflecting a commitment
to meeting the evolving needs of
farmers. A new test track, aligned
with international standards, was
introduced to strengthen product
testing and quality assurance.
Manufacturing operations were
further optimized through process
enhancements, including advanced
washing facilities, shot-peening
technology, and factory layout
improvements. The successful
implementation of SAP S/4

HANA marked a pivotal step in
digital transformation, reinforcing
business resilience and operational
excellence. Additionally, the
inauguration of the Company's
first call center underscored its
focus on customer engagement
and service excellence, positioning
it for sustainable growth and long-
term value creation.

Looking ahead, our steadfast
commitment to delivering products
of uncompromised quality,
including the newly launched

NH 850 alongside our existing
portfolio, will remain central to our
strategic priorities. At the same
time, the Company is focused

on expanding its product range
and executing robust business
plans, with a strong emphasis on
unlocking opportunities in export
markets. | remain confident in

the Company's ability to navigate
future challenges effectively, driven
by its clear alignment with our
vision and mission.

Contribution to Government
Exchequer

During the period under review,
the Company made a substantial
contribution of Rs. 4.7 billion

to the national exchequer. This
contribution encompasses various
taxes and duties, including income
tax, withholding tax, customs
duties, general sales tax, and other
requisite levies.

Board’s Performance and Role
Effectiveness

The Board of Directors ('the Board')
consistently demonstrated strong
performance, making significant
contributions toward achieving
the Company's strategic objectives
throughout the vyear.

Committed to upholding the
highest governance standards,
the Board diligently fulfilled its
responsibilities in full compliance
with the Companies Act, 2017, and
the Code of Corporate Governance.
The Company adhered to best
practices, as outlined in its 2024
Statement of Compliance with
Corporate Governance. To ensure
transparency, comprehensive
directors’ reviews accompanied

all interim and annual financial
statements for the financial

year 2024. With a strong focus

on oversight, the Board actively
supervised the Company's
operations, safeguarding
shareholders'interests and
promoting sustainable growth.

Recognizing that robust corporate
governance is fundamental to

accountability and trust, the Board
established dedicated committees
to enhance oversight and facilitate
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effective decision-making. In
2024, the Board remained highly
engaged, convening ten meetings,
with its committees holding an
additional eighteen meetings.
Through strategic leadership, the
Board successfully guided the
Company through a challenging
economic landscape, fostering
resilience and driving strong
performance.

| extend my sincere gratitude
to the esteemed members of
the Board for their invaluable
contributions to AGTL's success
in 2024. | also deeply appreciate
the unwavering trust and support
of our shareholders, customers,
suppliers, and stakeholders. A
special acknowledgment goes to
AGTL's dedicated management
and employees, whose hard
work and commitment have
been instrumental in achieving
our goals. As we move forward, |
remain confident in AGTL's ability
to navigate future challenges
and create lasting value for all
stakeholders.

Ko e

20 March 2025

Chairman



32 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

H piire ARL ST e L »'u/‘f%'(f{

-Aat?{zo:’dﬂd/

SN

C;u’"d.‘]u')’d,u_uﬂ 7d.gj~ruw;£._uwro/la
J/er(/((iJ/cay//!;/;luﬁﬁi:;l;/
_Vbbd)’b/)/)l:f)/d/r///f

.:Ag}"?/;l d/;/// (d/fuf
&“Jgﬂ'j{ulwLJV;@L("M")J 4 53T508
WS U v L i &

ut/l),»)d.!Luicé,}’L/Jf/V!/Lvu”/féé/dii
;d/bubdjdlbfL}/u"u’/uu’/({/:’ZOI7./(/‘{
el Al M ST ’52024¢u'{ S
RIS RS R IS I
_iégﬂ/fé_/laiz /l)uLujm’(/L(fn’J

Koo o e A st S ENADASY: VALY
(j‘r‘?gu/ &wa L)C}/:’/(}//i,vt/)l LJ/M
J- L bt S ded 23 F /Jw,df@ e
184 & Ui S Bed 57 o1 100422024
-4@2}&}1}?!

/@g%l
be/d/ Iy st ,/ém:@uf'émw
u@l)iu!:)/’ﬂ;wjé/ud/ﬂn//‘?u”_.l(’/bl/l)/'/d/ggw

-u;f/)@‘éd}j{}@,&ub?‘l&ﬂ'/’“}ébﬂ%

U”Lui/)lw;d/u} KJ/D/}IJL{UA’JI,«/CEU’G‘;
J_bé.ld/lﬂlfc.u'w/é d;uu"é,/gfitabﬂ,«,ﬂai
d»J?iLu,df.,ﬂi’fum(;/,tu»;dv%fb

KN 44://0

Ko e

FH AL
O3

#2025%.120

Ak WS
‘Lrj/a/;wKU{;-JC‘;LWJU%;UU}}LOAD}DY/L?
LJJ(//J/}I/J;;,U{frc«uf/,:uruﬁééfufcayr‘?'JJ?
/f/”cu’g/im u*JLﬁuf uﬁ.ugf‘} me.iuu“/’w
605 Sp Ut S U2 Sl e/ §
gLk J;uuw“_ﬂdmlmujﬁ»dduyw WA
LA A2 TS e O LU S s & S
oS F ez  PE A S e o E

el ("Uhf") & //J’//d/biloi)téidil.d/wgﬂ
a’VqufCL36/d.ujA/ m/wd/y/ PR
K S 34,570 o250/ 4714269
K0. 09/U”LW£LJ/_A!34 s L& 2dn b
Jod&e2dug_si 8. 43480847 -¢d/ RN e
6313248 2,011 e Lo nie6.423L
A uu»z:qu_uz_r(’ $20242 531 Sl
d"é’.b*cﬁdb«gi: a3/ IS, 7085VJ}¢:—d)J
uuwwgyim.ﬂ‘,@f Vel b g 121,797
J///!)J)/CKWJL}J wd//wf&fvf/“?u"

_§,C/Juf Y

St A ebigwit - L s
8508 A e e S e
VT2 Tt ey e G A Ll JA8S

R U!u’-ad/d@gf"/ég//l///um/‘uj)d/

Jeles= SoUS S e LI £ el

w2 /E’ PR S - T PAR

2L GG i Gl By i St AL A

e JEGH AT

ﬂJu“u"/w/Jf’"ﬁa_;wvaLL 4/&1&;&/:
Z}’}(lgf}/!/}!_’gdﬂu{cgf U///J/_J;

J;/m : /Lcwué/db/&éufuu»/
!LAGAJ?AIL}/AMLLI}’:U///M:’;;’JJI/J’J
_L ////l/cj.iu/:‘“/’/
u)}{fy

L5 Sl S T S i S
_/()5/0)}7}"/518506!JIUIJL!‘6UVJ"U’> JL//[/
Au_w,%/uéuuwuf G e JEdiey

fuy;bfléuﬁ_‘a(ﬁ//”g/?g/(u’ﬂ“dly‘u.fug,wd,o %

33

Annual Report 2024

oA

S Ll
S




34 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of
Al-Ghazi Tractors
Limited (“the
Company” or "AGTL")
are pleased to
present the annual
report together
with the Company’s
audited financial
statements for

the year ended 31
December 2024.

Operating Results

The financial results for the year under review are as follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Sales 34,574,430 34,543,545
Gross profit 8,434,686 6,423,068
Profit before taxation and levy 5,708,700 4,687,092
Taxation (2166,425)  (2,075320)
Profit after tax 3,542,275 2611,772
Other comprehensive income (125,587) 36,368
Total income 3,416,688 2648140

Dividend & General Reserve

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board, in its meeting held on 20
March 2025, proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. Nil per share, amounting
to Rs. Nil. The decision not to declare a dividend is primarily driven by

the Company's ongoing comprehensive transformation initiative. This
initiative focuses on enhancing the product portfolio, improving customer
experience, modernizing manufacturing operations, and adopting
advanced technologies. The details of which are encapsulated in this
report.

Earnings Per Share
The Basic earnings per share were Rs. 61.11 in 2024 compared to Rs. 45.06
in 2023.

Economic Background

The economic landscape of Pakistan in 2024 demonstrated a sustained
positive trajectory, reflecting an optimistic outlook and strengthened
macroeconomic fundamentals. Inflation continued to decelerate, declining
year-on-year from 29.7% in December 2023 to 4.1% in December 2024,
supported by increased exports, remittances, foreign reserves and an
accommodative monetary policy stance. The policy rate was reduced from
22%in December 2023 to 13% in December 2024.

In contrast, Pakistan’s tractor industry encountered substantial
challenges, culminating in a 7% year-on-year decline in total industry
volume—39,897 tractors were sold compared to 42,840 in the previous
year. This downturn primarily resulted from a wheat price crisis during
the first half of the year, which adversely affected farmers’ liquidity in
conjunction with elevated input costs. Moreover, the Federal Government,
through the Federal Budget 2024-25 levied a 10% sales tax on tractors,
thereby disrupting the tractor industry that had previously been exempt
from sales tax until June 2024. Financial challenges caused by unresolved
legacy refunds were exacerbated by the reinstatement of sales tax and
the corresponding policy modification, which forced tractor manufacturers

to switch back to the former sales tax refund regime. In October 2024, the
tax was subsequently increased to 14% with some relaxation in complex
documentary formalities.

Furthermare, the industry experienced a contraction in volume as farmers
anticipated acquiring tractors at subsidized rates under the Green Tractor
Scheme (GTS) announced by the Government of Punjab. Nonetheless, the
allocation of 3,530 units out of a total of 9,500 under GTS supported the
Company in partially recovering its contracted sales volume.

Performance Highlights

Despite these challenges in the business environment, AGTL sold 14,269
tractors in 2024, compared to 15,420 tractors in the same period last year,
achieving a market share of 36%. The company generated sales revenue of
Rs. 34.574 billion, up from Rs. 34.543 billion in the previous year, reflecting
a slight growth of 0.09%. Gross profit for the year under review stood at
Rs. 8.434 billion, compared to Rs. 6.423 billion last year, recording an
increase of Rs. 2.011 billion, or 31.32%. Profit before Tax for the year

ended 31 December 2024 reached Rs. 5.708 billion, representing a 21.79%
increase over the previous year.

Profit after Tax for the year ended 31 December 2024 stood at Rs. 3.542
billion, compared to Rs. 2.611 billion in the previous year, reflecting an
increase of 35.62%. This translated into earnings per share (EPS) of Rs.
61.11 per share. The increase in Profit after Tax, despite selling fewer
tractors in 2024 compared to the previous year, was primarily achieved
through rigorous cost control measures.

"Key Operating and Financial Data"” and the "Horizontal and Vertical
Analysis of Financial Statement” highlighted in the Annual Report testify
to the strength of the Company.

Appropriations
The statement of unappropriated profit for the year under review is as
follows:

2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Unappropriated profit — brought forward 5,490,404 2,842,264
Total income for the year 3,416,688 2648140
Transfer from general reserve

to unappropriated profit = -
Amount available for appropriation 8907,092 5,490,404
Appropriation:
Dividend paid - -
Unappropriated profit — carried forward 8907,092 5,490,404
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Directors’ Report

Chairman’s Review
The Directors fully endorse the contents of the Chairman’s Review included in
the Annual Report.

Board Structure

As at the signing of this report, the Board of directors comprise of following
ten members including CEQ, of which one female member and nine male
members.

1. Mr. Robert lan McAllister Non-Executive director
2. Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev Non-Executive director
3. Mr. Malik Ehtisham lkram Non-Executive director
4. Mr. Marco Votta Non-Executive director
5. Mr. Vincent De Lassagne Non-Executive director
6. Mr. Matthieu Séjourné Non-Executive director
7. Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor Independent director
8. Mr. Malik Mirza Independent director
9. Ms. Samiha Zahid Independent director
10. Mr. Sakib Eltaff CEO

Following are the names of persons who, at any time during the financial year,
were directors/CEO of the Company:

Mr. Robert McAllister Non-Executive director
Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev Non-Executive director
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram Non-Executive director
Mr. Marco Votta Non-Executive director
Mr. Vincent De Lassagne Non-Executive director
. Matthieu Séjourné Non-Executive director
Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor Independent director
Mr. Malik Mirza Independent director
Ms. Samiha Zahid Independent director
Ms. Farah Qureshi* Independent director
Mr. Sakib Eltaff CEO

220N R WN =
<
-

- O

*During the period under review, Ms. Samiha Zahid was appointed as an Independent Director
to fill the casual vacancy following the sad demise of Ms. Farah Qureshi, who previously held the
position.

Additionally, the Board of Directors' elections were held in March 2024. All
retiring directors were re-elected unopposed for a three-year term. Mr. Malik
Mirza was newly elected as an Independent Director, joining the Board for the
first time. Subsequently, the Board also re-elected Mr. Robert lan McAllister as
Chairman and re-appointed Mr. Sakib Eltaff as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

Gender diversity on the Board:

a) Male
b) Female

Functional diversity on the Board:
a) Non-Executive directors
b) Independent directors

c¢) Executive directors

Committees

The Board has formed three committees, comprising of the following
members of the Board as at the signing of this report:

(a) Audit Committee
Mr. Malik Mirza
Mr. Marco Votta

Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram

Chairman & Independent director
Non-Executive director, Member
Non-Executive director, Member

(b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Ms. Samiha Zahid
Mr. Marco Votta

Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram

Mr. Sakib Eltaff

(c) Technical Committee
Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor
Mr. Robert McAllister
Mr. Matthieu Séjourné
Mr. Vincent De Lassagne

Mr. Marco Votta

Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram
Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev

Directors’ Remuneration

Chairperson & Independent director
Non-Executive director, Member
Non-Executive director, Member
Chief Executive Officer, Member

Chairman & Independent director
Non-Executive director, Member
Non-Executive director, Member
Non-Executive director, Member
Non-Executive director, Member
Non-Executive director, Member
Non-Executive Director, Member

In order to retain the best talent, the Company’s remuneration policies are
structured in line with prevailing industry trends and business practices.
The Company has approved the remuneration policy of directors. In
accordance with the remuneration policy and the Code of Corporate
Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own
remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive
directors except independent directors for attending the meetings.

The Company has no executive directors other than the CEO.

Kindly refer to note 35 of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements for
details of remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive.

The aggregate amount charged for the statement of profit or loss for the

year in respect of fee to director was Rs.7.91 million (2023: Rs. 8.59 million).
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The remuneration package of
Directors on account of Salary,
perquisites, benefits, and fee are:

Chief executive officer
Rs.1.81 million

Executive Director
Rs. Nil million

Review of CEQ’s performance

The performance of the CEQ is
formally appraised through the
evaluation system which is based on
quantitative and qualitative values.
It includes the performance of the
business, the accomplishment of
objectives with reference to profits,
organization building, succession
planning and corporate success.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding of the
Company is annexed to this report
under the section of “Investor
Relations”.

Foreign Holding Position

Al Futtaim Industries Co. LLC,
incorporated in United Arab
Emirates, being the holder of 50.02%
shares, is the holding company

of AGTL. CNH Industrial N.V,
incorporated in the Netherlands, is
the other major shareholder, holding
43.17% shares of AGTL.
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Directors’ Report

Business Continuity Plan

There are no significant doubts on
the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern.

Environment, Social and
Governance (Esg)

The Company actively considers
social, environmental, and ethical
factors within the broader
business landscape. It is steadfast
in its commitment to serving the
best interests of all stakeholders,
especially the community and
workforce at its Dera Ghazi Khan
plant, which forms a crucial part of
its customer and employee base.

The Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) report, which discusses the
company's approach to health and
safety, human resources, social,
environmental, and related issues,
is included in the 'Sustainability
Report’ within this Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Company
has continued to carry out
various CSR activities, focusing
on initiatives such as local talent
development, employment of
individuals with special needs,
and active involvement in
community welfare, particularly
in Dera Ghazi Khan. Efforts have
also been directed towards
improving industrial relations,

ensuring consumer protection, and

upholding business ethics.

The Company remains steadfast
in its commitment to minimizing
environmental impact,and

has implemented a range of
initiatives focused on energy
conservation, reuse, recycling, and
enhancing climate resilience and
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The establishment of a new test
track, aligned with international
standards, further strengthened
product testing and Pre-Delivery
Inspection (PDI) processes,
ensuring superior quality and
reliability. Additionally, substantial
advancements were also made

in manufacturing operations,
including the enhancement of
washing facilities, implementation
of shot-peening technology, and
optimization of the factory layout
to improve process efficiency and
operational effectiveness.

Company's assets, comply with
laws and regulations, and provide
reliable financial reporting. The
independent Internal Audit
function regularly evaluates and
oversees the implementation

of financial controls, while the
Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the internal
control framework and

financial statements quarterly.
Furthermore, the Company

has established a separate

Risk Management Function for
enterprise risk management.

presents a significant opportunity
to expand our market share across
all HP categories by enhancing
product capabilities and services
for customers in agriculture,
commercial, government, and other
sectors, while simultaneously
maximizing shareholder value. The
ongoing transformation project will
play a pivotal role in improvements
across key business functions,
including Supply Chain, Sales &
Marketing, Production Enhancement
& Development, and Information
Technology.

adaptation. These efforts include
environmental conservation,
including tree plantion, and
optimizing fuel efficiency to drive
sustainable progress.

Default of Payments, Debt/Loan,
Taxes and Levies

Operating according to the highest
business standards, the Company
acknowledges its obligation

to make timely repayments of

due amounts. There were no
instances of default on loan or debt
payments during the reviewed vyear.
Additionally, as of the end of the
financial year, there are no overdue
or outstanding payments for taxes,
duties, or levies except as disclosed
in these financial statements.

Nature of Business

No change has occurred during
the financial year concerning the
nature of the business of the
Company.

The Transformation Project
During the year, the Company
achieved significant milestones as
part of its ongoing transformation
journey.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or
commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company
have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Company
and the date of this report, except
as disclosed.

Future Development & Outlook
Over the years, the Company has
solidified its position as a key
player in the industry, particularly
in the 55 to 75 HP segments.
With the introduction of NH 850,
the Company is set to capture
market share of 85 HP segment.
The evolving market landscape

Recognizing the dynamic nature
of the business environment,

the Company is proactively
implementing risk mitigation
strategies to address external
challenges. However, the overall
impact remains contingent on
broader economic conditions and
fiscal policies. Moving forward,
AGTL remains committed to agility,
resilience, and strategic expansion
to reinforce its market leadership
and deliver long-term value to
stakeholders.

The successful implementation
of SAP S/4 HANA marked a
pivotal step in the Company's
digital transformation journey,
reinforcing business resilience
and driving operational excellence.
These strategic initiatives
collectively position the Company
for sustainable growth, improved
competitiveness, and long-term
value creation for stakeholders.

In line with its commitment to
customer-centricity, the Company
inaugurated its first-ever call
center, aimed at enhancing
engagement and responsiveness.

The Company successfully
launched the NH 850, an 85 HP
tractor engineered to address

the evolving needs of Pakistan's
farmers. The launch of the NH 850
marks a significant milestone in
our journey toward innovation and
excellence. The launch of the 85
HP, the NH 850 tractor, enhanced
the product portfolio and reflects
our unwavering commitment to
providing high quality products
that enhance agricultural
productivity ih Pakistan.

Adequacy of Internal Controls
The Board of Directors recognizes
its responsibility for the internal
control environment and has
established a robust system to
ensure effective and efficient
operations, safeguard the
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Directors’ Report

Financial & Corporate Governance
Framework

The Company has ensured
compliance with all material
requirements of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The following statements regarding
financial and corporate governance/
control framework are as follows:

® Thefinancial statements
prepared by the management
of the Company, fairly present
its state of affairs, the results of
its operations, cash flows, and
changes in equity.

® Accounting policies disclosed
in the financial statements
have been consistently applied
in the preparation of financial
statements. Accounting
estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent
judgment.

® International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
have been followed in the preparation of these financial statements.

® The Company has fully complied with the Listing Regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

® The Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company
Secretary, and their spouses and minor children have not traded in the
Company's shares during the year, except as disclosed to the Stock
Exchange/SECP from time to time in compliance with PSX Regulations
& Securities Act 2015.

® The key audited operating and financial results for the last six years
have been included in this Annual Report.

® Ten meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year,
ten meetings of the Board's Technical Committee were held, and the
number of meetings of the Board's Audit Committee held was seven.
One meeting of the Human Resources & Remuneration Committee was
held during the year. Details of attendance by each director/member
are shown in this Annual Report under the section of “"Corporate
Governance.”

® The Board Audit Committee reviewed the related party transactions,
and the Board approved them. These transactions were in line with
the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and the Companies Act, 2017. The Company maintains a thorough and
complete record of all such transactions. The details of related party
transactions are disclosed in a note of the financial statements of the
Company.

® Information about taxes and levies is given in the financial statements.

Credit Rating

Credit rating is an assessment of credit standing of entities in Pakistan. VIS
Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has maintained the entity ratings of
AGTL of 'A+/A-1'(Single A Plus/A-One). Long Term Rating of '‘A+' reflects
good credit quality and adequate protection factors. Risk factors may vary
with possible changes in the economy. Short Term Rating of 'A-1' signifies
high certainty of timely payment, excellent liquidity factors supported by
good fundamental protection factors. Risk factors are minor. Outlook on the
assigned ratings is 'Stable’.

Principal Risks, Challenges and Uncertainties

The Company is facing multiple risks and challenges that impact production,
sales, and overall sustainability. These risks stem from economic conditions,
government policies, market dynamics, and external uncertainties. The

ff
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Company has established a dedicated Risk Management Function to mitigate the risks and uncertainties.
The Company aims to strengthen its position as a market leader by becoming one of the most cost-effective
producers of high-quality tractors. Its enduring competitive advantage lies in the quality of its tractors.

External Auditors

The current auditors, Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, are set to retire on the day of the
Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have offered themselves for re-appointment. The directors endorse
the recommendation of the Audit Committee for the re-appointment of Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered
Accountants, as the statutory auditors for the financial year 2025.

Financials on Website

The financial results for the year 2024 will be available on the Company's website at www.alghazitractors.com.

Acknowledgments

The Board expresses gratitude to our employees, dealers, and principals — Al-Futtaim and CNH Industrial — for
their ongoing support and dedication. We are committed to not only maintaining but enhancing our performance
to deliver exceptional results in the years ahead.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

A

Sakib Eltaff
Chief Executive Officer

Robert lan McAllister
Chairman of the Board
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MARKETING INITIATIVES:
DRIVING BRAND GROWTH & GUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT IN 2024

2024 was a landmark year for
AGTL with the successful launch
of the NH 850 Tractor Model,
reinforcing our commitment to
innovation and market leadership.
A robust multi-channel marketing
strategy ensured maximum
visibility and engagement.

Strategic Campaigns & Market
Expansion

The NH 850 launch followed a
structured marketing approach,
including pre-launch dealership
events, a high-profile launch
campaign, and strategic media
placements. Our teaser, pre-
launch, and launch phases
spanned digital, print, and out-of-
home (OOH) media, maximizing
awareness. AGTL also revamped
its corporate website, integrating
NH 850's dynamic pages, and
launched the first-ever dedicated
Customer Support Center to
enhance lead management.

To expand market reach, AGTL
participated in key industry events,
including:

»  Pakistan Auto Show 2024
» PAPAAM Agro Tech Expo 2024

» Kissan Melas in Rahim Yar
Khan, KEUIT University, Kasur
(with NBP), and the Cattle
Farm Exhibition, fostering
farmer engagement and
promoting mechanization.

Targeted campaigns like the Green
Tractors Scheme, Wheat Crop
Promotions, Free Canopy Offers,
and Bank Customer Engagement
Programs reinforced AGTL's

commitment to agriculture. The
Orange Tractor Scheme, featuring
a lucky draw on December 27,
strengthened brand loyalty and
farmer engagement.

Innovative Digital & Influencer
Marketing

AGTL embraced a data-driven
digital marketing strategy,
leveraging YouTube, TikTok,

and Facebook to enhance

brand presence. Key influencer
collaborations featured Mubashir
Sadique (Village Food Secrets), Zain
ul Abideen and six prominent agri
influencers of Punjab

These partnerships boosted
engagement through testimonial
videos, social media campaigns,
and promotional content. The
Orange Tractors & Promotional
Campaign (Q4) further expanded
AGTL's digital footprint.

Strengthening Dealer & Customer
Relationships

Customer engagement
transformed significantly, with
over 50,000+ interactions recorded
via the Customer Support Center,
where WhatsApp became the
dominant lead generation channel.
To improve sales conversion, AGTL
introduced a structured ticketing
and follow-up system through the
call center.

Key relationship-building initiatives
included:

«  Exclusive Bankers' Iftar
Dinners

»  Dealership Engagement
Programs (Fatima Tractors, Zia
Autos)

» (SR Initiatives like Pink
Tractors & Khud Mukhtar
Ba Waqar for women'’s
empowerment

» Eid gifting campaigns
for dealerships and loyal
customers

A Year of Growth & Innovation

By the end of 2024, AGTL had
successfully implemented a strong
brand awareness and sales-driven
approach, resulting in:

»  (Greater digital traction &
visibility

» Stronger dealer and farmer
relationships

» Higher lead generation &
improved conversions

» Enhanced customer
experience via the Customer
Support Center

The NH 850's strong market
presence, alongside AGTL's
expanding marketing strategies,
solidified its position as Pakistan's
leading tractor brand.
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

AGTL is committed to conducting Stakeholder Stakeholders’ Expectation

and enhancing its relationship with
all classes of stakeholders acting
in good faith, with loyalty, fairness,
transparency and due respect

Government and
Regulatory Bodies

Compliance with laws and regulations
Collaboration and access to information
Technical support on specific industry related issues

Periodic and ad hoc reporting
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Tools and Interaction channel Effect on AGTL's Performance and Value

The Company remains focused on having
a sufficient level of compliance with laws
and regulations.

for the Company's core ethical
values. Further, the objective of
the Company's investor relations
policy is to govern the disclosure of
material information to analysts,
shareholders and potential
investors in a manner designated

Employees

Clarity of organization and protection in periods of
uncertainty

Clear and transparent reward system

Training and professional development
Stimulating and safe work environment
Information on Company's strategy and results

Daily dialogue

Employee lunches/dinners

Discussions regarding appraisals and development path
In-house communication

Easy access to top management

Adherence to labour laws

Human resources play a key role in
organisation's success.

to provide broad non-exclusionary Employees' families/
distribution of information. Community
development
Building and retaining the trust
of the Company's internal and

Indirect participation in corporate life

Staff town with family and bachelors accommodation
Transport facility

\/accination/health awareness campaigns
Participation in sports events

Health care plans, and community hall

Adequate activities of the Company assist
in maintaining positive image of the
Company at the levels of local community
and employees.

external stakeholders is essential
to Al-Ghazi's continued business
success. Engagement and Network
dialogue are consequently an
important component required
for the understanding of their
expectations, needs and concerns.

Dealers and Service

Complete and rapidly accessible product
information

Business profitability

Quality and reliability of products/parts
Competitive prices

Extension of financial and non-financial assistance

Daily contacts and periodic meetings with the network
Individuals responsible for monitoring the network and ensuring
fulfillment of contractual standards

Programmes to support dealers, including training, conferences
and incentives.

Tractor festivals

After-sales Service programme

Dealers act as business partners.
Satisfactory after-sales services helps in
enhanced customer satisfaction.

Stakeholders' expectation and
tools and interaction channel
as detailed in adjacent table
represent our engagement and

Existing and
Prospective Customers

Quality, reliability and safety of products
Competitive prices
Speed and efficiency of after sales services

Market research
Three-way communication through dealership, service centres
and mechanical workshops

Loyalty of customers to our products
is key in achieving success and good
financial performance.

relationship management. Suppliers

Continuity of supply
Fulfillment of contractual obligations

Daily relationship through Supply Chain Department

Effective management of suppliers helps
in achieving production objectives.

Shareholders

Access to information

Transparent and responsible management

Value creation (return on investment, sustainability
of business)

Shareholders meetings

Annual/Quarterly reports

Price sensitive communication and information
Daily dialog (email, telephones)

Investor relations section of the Company's website:
www.alghazitractors.com

Support of shareholders serves as a
foundation for Company's efforts to
achieve its objectives and vision.

Analysts/ Institutional
Investors

Availability of relevant information

Communication to PSX
Investor relation section of AGTL's website, containing relevant
information about the Company

Availability of adequate information
about the Company helps in maintaining
positive image of the Company with
analysts and institutional investors.

Banks/ Financial
Institutions

Continuity of business and operations
Good financial management

Provision of information as per the requirements of banks
Frequent meetings and interaction

Attractive rates and terms of overdrafts
and other arrangements.

Media

Fulfillment of obligations of arrangement

Promotional activities are carried out as per marketing
requirements

Necessary awareness about the Company
and its products is imparted.
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NOTICE OF 42™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

Notice is hereby given that the 42" Annual General
Meeting of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (the Company) will
be held on Thursday, April 24, 2025 at 03:00 PM at Pearl
Continental Hotel, Karachi, to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business:

1.

To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting
held on April 25, 2024.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements together with the Chairman’s Review
Report, the Directors' Report and the Auditors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2024,

As required under section 223(6) of the Companies
Act, 2017, annual audited financial statements of the
Company are available on the website of the Company
which can be downloaded from the following website
link and/or QR enabled code provided at cover page

of this report: https://www.alghazitractors.com/
investor-information/

To appoint the Auditors for the financial year ending

on December 31, 2025, and to fix their remuneration.
The retiring Auditors M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co,,
Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
themselves for reappointment. The members are
hereby notified that the Audit Committee as well as
the Board of Directors have recommended the name of
retiring auditors, M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered
Accountants, for re-appointment as auditors of the
Company for the financial year ending on December 31,
2025.

Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

-5d-
Mansoor Khan

March 20, 2025 Company Secretary

Notes:

The share transfer books of the Company will remain
closed from April 18, 2025 to April 24,2025 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of
our Share Registrars, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration
Services (Private) Limited, situated at 8-F, Next to
Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-
e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close of business on April
17,2025 will be treated in time for the purpose of
entitlement of the transferees to attend and vote at
the meeting.

Members holding in aggregate 10% or more
shareholding residing at a geographical location other
than Karachi, may participate in the meeting through
video conference by submitting their application to
the Company Secretary at least seven days prior to
the date of the meeting. The Company will arrange
video conference facility in the requested city subject
to availability of such facility in that city. The Company
will intimate members regarding the venue of the
video conference facility at least 5 days before the
date of the general meeting along with complete
information necessary to enable them to access such
facility.

The shareholders of the Company desirous to attend
the meeting through video conferencing facility

may inform the Company and provide their relevant
information including Name, copy of the CNIC, Folio
No./ CDC Account, cell phone number and email
address before close of business on Wednesday,
April 23,2025 at the company's dedicated email "agtl.
shareholders@alghazitractors.com”.

A member entitled to attend, and vote may appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies,
in order to be effective, must be received at the
Registered Office of the Company duly stamped and
signed not less than 48 hours before the time of the
meeting. Proxies may also be appointed by emailing
a scanned copy of signed form by the shareholder
authorizing proxy along with email address of

proxy and relevant details (as stated above) to agtl.
shareholders@alghazitractors.com.

The Form of Proxy in English and Urdu is attached

in the Annual Report and should be witnessed by
two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
Numbers should be mentioned on the forms. For CDC
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shareholders, attested copies of CNIC or the passport
of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form; and in case of corporate
entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of
attorney and attested copy of valid CNIC of the person
nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the
corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless provided
earlier) along with proxy form to the Company. The
Form of Proxy is also available on Company's website.

Shareholders or their proxies are requested to bring
with them or otherwise furnish their Computerized
National Identity Card or Passport along with the folio
number or participants ID number and their account
number at the time of attending the Annual General
Meeting physically or through videoconference in order
to facilitate their identification. The representatives

of corporate bodies should provide attested copies of
Board of Directors' resolution/powers of attorney and/
or all such documents as are required under Circular
No.1 dated 26 January 2000 issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") for the
purpose.

Members (non-CDC) are requested to promptly
communicate to the Share Registrars of the Company
any change in their addresses. CDC shareholders
should submit any change in their addresses to

the CDC. The individual members who have not

yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNICs and
corporate entities who have not yet submitted their
NTNs are once again reminded to have these details
updated with their respective CDS participants, in case
of CDC account holders and to send the same at the
earliest directly to the Company's Share Registrars at
the address given here-in-above, in case of physical
shareholders. Please provide folio numbers with a
copy of CNIC/NTN.

Shareholders who could not collect their previous
dividend/shares are advised to contact our Share
Registrars to claim their unclaimed dividend or shares,
if any. The Unclaimed shares, Dividend which remain
so unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from
the date it is due and payable shall be dealt with in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act.

As per the provisions of Section-242 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and directives of Securities & Exchange
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Notice of 42" Annual General Meeting

Commission of Pakistan vide Circular no. 18 dated
August 01,2017, after October 31,2017 the cash
dividends will only paid through electronic mode
directly in the bank accounts of the shareholders,

therefore the Shareholders are requested to provide

copies of their valid CNICs and Dividend Mandate
including Name, Bank Account Number, Bank and
Respective Branch addresses to the Company in
order to enable the Company to pay cash dividend

electronically. The Dividend Mandate Form is attached

with printed Annual Report and also placed on
Company's website.

8. In compliance with Section 150 read with Division
| of Part Ill of the First Schedule of the Income Tax

tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at 30%.
Withholding tax exemption from the dividend income
shall only be allowed if a copy of valid tax exemption
certificate is made available to the Share Registrars of
the Company, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration Services
(Private) Limited, by the first day of book closure.

According to the FBR, withholding tax in case of joint
accounts will be determined separately based on the
'Filer/ Non-Filer' status of the principal shareholder as
well as the status of the joint holder(s) based on their
shareholding proportions. Members those hold shares
with joint shareholders are requested to provide the
shareholding proportions of the principal shareholder
and the joint holder(s) in respect of shares held by
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Ordinance, 2001 withholding tax on dividend income them to our Share Registrars, M/s. FAMCO Share

will be deducted for ‘filer' and ‘non-filer' shareholders Registration Services (Private) Limited, in writing. In
at 15% and 30% respectively. A filer' is a taxpayer case the required information is not provided to our
whose name appears in the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) Registrars it will be assumed that the shares are held
issued by the FBR from time to time and a ‘non-filer’ in equal proportion by the principal shareholder and
is a person other than a filer. To enable the Company the joint holder(s).

to withhold tax at 15% for filers, all shareholders
are advised to ensure that their names appear in
the latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise

The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2024 along with reports have
been placed on the website of the Company. The
Annual Report of the Company for 2024 shall also be
electronically available on PUCARS system of Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited and the Company's website
under section of Investor Information. Additionally,

in the interest of shareholders who had previously
provided their valid email addresses, arrangements
have been made to send 2024's Annual Report to such
shareholders through email.

. As per Section-72 of the Companies Act, 2017, all

listed companies are required to replace its physical
shares with book-entry form within four years from
the promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017. Further
SECP vide its letter dated March 26, 2021, had advised
to comply with Section 72 of the Act and encourage
shareholders to convert their physical shares into
book-entry form. Accordingly, all shareholders of

the Company having physical shares are requested

to convert their shares into book-entry form at the
earliest. The shareholders may contact the Company's
Share Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration
Services (Private) Limited for the conversion of
physical shares into book-entry form. Furthermore,
the withdrawal requests from shareholders holding
shares in electronic form in CDC for conversion into
physical form, will not be entertained.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS &
STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Company is committed to
ensuring that shareholders and
investors have easy access to clear,
reliable, and meaningful information
on the company to make informed
investment decisions. In the context
of constantly evolving requirements
of disclosure, transparency, and
corporate governance, we aim to
provide investors with an accurate,
coherent, and balanced account

of the company's performance. To
do this, multiple communication
platforms are utilized including
annual general meetings with
shareholders and the investor
relations section on our website.
Apart from financial results, the
website, www.alghazitractors.

com, has other investor-related
information including Company
profile, annual and quarterly
reports, major announcements, and
information on free float shares.

Understanding Stakeholders’ views
through Corporate Briefing Session

The Company's stakeholders

represent a diverse range of interests

and include institutional investors,
private investors, and individuals
from various backgrounds.

Regular interaction with these
stakeholders is maintained through
Corporate/Investor briefings,

press releases, and quarterly
reports. The Company ensures
that its leadership is accessible to
address any stakeholder queries

in person or by phone, fostering

a positive relationship with the
investor community. In compliance
with Pakistan Stock Exchange
requirements, a Corporate Briefing

Session was held in July 2024. During

the session, all the stakeholders
were informed about the Company's
historical performance, strategic and

operational developments, financial status, and future prospects followed
by an engaging question-and-answer session to address any stakeholder
queries or concerns.

Shareholding Information

The Company is listed on Pakistan stock Exchange. The share symbol is
AGTL. The share capital of the Company is Rs. 289.8 million. With a base
price of Rs. 5 per share, the total number of the shares is 57,964,201.

There are 2,801 shareholders which are listed as follows:

Al-Futtaim Industries Company 28,992,705 shares = 50.02%
CNH Industrial N.V. 25,022,379 shares = 43.17%
Companies and corporations 562,162 shares = 0.97%
Individual and others 3,386,955 shares = 5.84%
Total 57,964,201 shares = 100.00%

Dividend Policy
AGTL has a long history of paying rich dividends. The dividend policy is in
the best interest of the Company, the shareholders and the stakeholders.

AGTL's equity now stands at Rs.9,197 million. The Company's five-rupee
share is without any doubt the top stock of the Auto and Industrial
Engineering sector of Pakistan.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Karachi, on
April 24,2025 at 03:00 PM.

Dividend Payments during the year
No Dividend has been declared by the Board of Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2024,

Investors’ Queries, Grievances, and Complaint Resolution

The Company provides a dedicated section on its website for shareholders
to register their grievances. Additionally, shareholders can contact the
relevant person in the Company via email, telephone, or postal address, as
listed on the website. The company secretary is actively involved in liaising
with shareholders to ensure a timely and appropriate resolution of all
queries and grievances, in compliance with legal requirements. Moreover,
the contact details of the Company’s Share Registrar are available on the
website for addressing queries related to shares, transmission of notices
and financial reports, unclaimed share certificates, dividends, and other
matters.

LEGITIMATE NEEDS, INTERESTS OF
KEY STAKEHOLDERS AND INDUSTRY TRENDS

Stakeholders are the cornerstone
of our success, driving our
commitment to robust
engagement practices. Our
approach involves identifying

and prioritizing stakeholders who
are significantly impacted by our
operations or whose actions can
significantly influence our value
creation over varying timeframes.
We meticulously profile, map,
and prioritize stakeholders based
on criteria such as influence,
responsibility, proximity,
dependency, willingness to engage,
and representation.

We employ specific measures to
gain a profound understanding of
stakeholder needs and interests.
Our key stakeholders and their
interests include:

1. Investors, who closely track
our financial performance
and strategic direction,
seeking stability and growth
opportunities.

2. Customers, who rely on
our products for quality
and innovation, expecting
seamless experiences and
sustainable practices.

3. Employees, who seek fulfilling
careers, opportunities
for development, and fair
compensation, driving our
commitment to a supportive
work environment.

4, Business Partners, who
value our reliability and seek
long-term, mutually beneficial
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partnerships founded on trust
and shared values.

5. Wider Community, who expect
us to operate responsibly,
support local initiatives,
and contribute positively to
societal well-being.

6. Government, who rely on
us to adhere to regulations,
contribute to the economy,
and support national
development goals.

This refined approach underscores
our dedication to stakeholder
satisfaction and sustainable value
creation.

LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT
AND POLITICAL ENVIRONMENT WHERE
ORGANIZATION OPERATES

The Company places a high priority
on adhering to all statutory

and regulatory requirements,
ensuring full compliance with

the relevant legal frameworks.
This commitment not only
underscores our dedication to
ethical business practices but

also serves as a foundation for
refining our strategies, goals, and
achievements. As part of our
commitment to good corporate
governance, we are continuously
enhancing our understanding and
application of the legislative and
regulatory environment, benefiting

our employees, stakeholders, and
overall business operations.

The impact of the political
environment on organizational
strategy is profound and cannot
be ignored. In Pakistan, persistent
political instability has resulted

in the formulation of short-term
economic policies and frequent
changes, impeding economic
growth. This situation has given
rise to several challenges, including
high inflation, dwindling foreign
exchange reserves, currency
devaluation, increases in energy

prices, and high interest rates.
These factors have created
demand pressures in sectors
such as the automobile industry.
Prolonged political uncertainty
exacerbates these challenges,
eroding investor confidence and
hindering long-term planning.
Striking a balance between political
expediency and economic stability
is crucial for achieving sustained
growth and prosperity.
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Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

As at December 31, 2024

No of Shareholders

No. of Sharesholdings

Total Shares

\ From
1256 1 100 41,661
735 101 500 204,650
325 501 1,000 250,767
372 1,001 5,000 802,378
47 5,001 10,000 357,140
23 10,001 15,000 306,976
10 15,001 20,000 172,406
5 20,001 25,000 113,418
11 25,001 30,000 301,414
3 30,001 35,000 101,034
1 40,001 45,000 42,152
2 45,001 50,000 98,000
2 55,001 60,000 117,364
2 65,001 70,000 134,200
1 85,001 90,000 90,000
1 100,001 105,000 100,785
1 185,001 190,000 188,000
1 250,001 255,000 253,372
1 270,001 275,000 273,400
1 25,020,001 25,025,000 25,022,379
1 28,590,001 28,955,000 28,992,705
2,801 57,964,201

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING

As at December 31, 2024

Shareholders Category

No. of Shareholder

No. of Shares
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1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse

and minor children 3 3,000 0.00
2 | Associated Companies, Undertakings and related

Parties 2 54,015,084 93.19
3 | NITandICP - - -
4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non

Banking Financial Institutions 3 3,149 0.01
5 Insurance Companies 2 46,750 0.08
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 20 512,263 0.88
7 | Share holders holding 10% 2 54,015,084 93.19
8 | General Public:

a. local 2,732 2,955,683 5.10

b .Foreign - - -
9 Others 39 428272 0.74
Total (excluding : share holders holding 10%) 2,801 57,964,201 100.00

50.02% ® Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC

43.17% ® CNHi Global N.V.

0.01% ® Banks, Development Financial
Institutions, Non Banking Financial

Institutions

0.08% ® Insurance Companies

0.88% Modarabas and Mutual Funds

5.84% ® Others

W ox
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Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2024

S.No. FOLIO ‘ NAME ‘ Holding Percentage
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children
1 00307-22842 | Malik Mirza Individuals 1,000 0.00
2 18432-63346 | Shahid Shahbaz Toor Individuals 1,000 0.00
3 03350-169629 | Samiha Qadir Individuals 1,000 0.00
Total >> 2,000 0.00
Associated Companies, Undertakings and related Parties (to be confirm by Company)
1 5336 M/s. Al-Futtaim Industries Company (LLC) 28992,705 50.02
2 5635 M/s. CNH Industrial N.V. 25,022,379 4317
Total >>| 54,015,084 93.19
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions
1 4707 Pak Libya Holding Company 183 0.00
2 5356 M/s. Crescent Investment Bank 2914 0.01
3 5718 M/s. National Bank of Pakistan - Investor A/C (Former NDFC) 52 0.00
Total >> 3,149 0.01
Insurance Companies
1 03277-10526 | Habib Insurance Co. Limited Insurance Companies 32,350 0.06
2 03277-8372 | Ghaf Limited Insurance Companies 14,400 0.02
Total >> 46,750 0.08
Modarabas and Mutual Funds
1 01917-504 | First Prudential Modaraba Modarabas 675 0.00
2 05959-27 CDC - Trustee Atlas Stock Market Fund Mutual Fund 188,000 0.32
3 05991-23 CDC - Trustee Meezan Balanced Fund Mutual Fund 28,200 0.05
4 07062-23 CDC - Trustee Al Meezan Mutual Fund Mutual Fund 29905 0.05
5 09449-25 CDC - Trustee Atlas Islamic Stock Fund Mutual Fund 66,200 0.11
6 09480-21 CDC - Trustee NBP Stock Fund Mutual Fund 6300 0.01
7 10397-29 CDC - Trustee Meezan Tahaffuz Pension Fund-Equity Sub Fund Mutual Fund 57,364 0.10
8 10603-21 CDC - Trustee APF-Equity Sub Fund Mutual Fund 14,000 0.02
9 10900-25 CDC - Trustee APIF - Equity Sub Fund Mutual Fund 13,700 0.02
10 11056-28 CDC - Trustee HBL Multi - Asset Fund Mutual Fund 2,250 0.00
1" 13391-26 CDC - Trustee HBL Islamic Stock Fund Mutual Fund 18,140 0.03
12 13698-29 CDC - Trustee HBL IPF Equity Sub Fund Mutual Fund 4,370 0.01
13 13714-25 CDC - Trustee HBL PF Equity Sub Fund Mutual Fund 3693 0.01
14 14514-28 CDC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund Mutual Fund 3,000 0.01
15 16030-25 CDC - Trustee AWT Stock Fund Mutual Fund 1,680 0.00
16 16436-27 CDC - Trustee HBL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund Mutual Fund 26816 0.05
17 16501-27 CDC - Trustee Meezan Asset Allocation Fund Mutual Fund 7,100 0.01
18 17210-22 CDC Trustee - Meezan Dedicated Equity Fund Mutual Fund 5550 0.01
19 17681-26 CDC - Trustee Atlas Islamic Dedicated Stock Fund Mutual Fund 9,000 0.02
20 18127-22 CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Stock Fund Mutual Fund 25820 0.04
Total >> 512,263 0.88
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S.No. FOLIO NAME ‘ Holding Percentage
Others

1 4175 M/s. Alviya Limited 236 0.00
2 4598 M/s. Fateh Textile Mills Limited 765 0.00
3 4748 Punjabi Saudagar Multipurpose 207 0.00
4 5322 Midland Bank Trust Corporation 274 0.00
5 5398 Citibank N.A. Hongkong 74 0.00
6 5403 M/s. Coutts & Co. 5,800 0.01
7 5597 M/s. James Capel Incorporated 13016 0.02
8 00307-46 IGI Finex Securities Limited Joint Stock Companies 1 -
9 01826-198390 | Sarmaaya Financials (Private) Limited Financial Institutions 1377 0.00
10 01917-41 Prudential Securities Limited Joint Stock Companies 270 0.00
11 | 03277-101266 |A.M.MansurLLP Ltd. Liability Partnership 20 -
12 03277-2102 | The Aga Khan University Foundation Charitablefoundation 15,000 003
13 | 03277-61491 |M/s. Rang Commodities (Pvt) Ltd Joint Stock Companies 3,000 0.01
14 03277-7421 | Trustees Saeeda Amin Wakf Wakf Alal Aulad 10,125 002
15 03277-7633 | Trustees Mohamad Amin Wakf Estate Wakf Alal Aulad 34,999 0.06
16 | 03277-78616 |Trustees of Ghandhara Tyre & Rubber Co Ltd. Employees G.F Employees Gratuity Fund 900 0.00
17 03277-9199 | Loads Limited Unlisted Public Ltd 1 -
18 | 03277-94363 |K.F. Corporation (Private) Limited Joint Stock Companies 9,726 0.02
19 | 03277-98643 |Merin (Private) Limited Trading 1,000 0.00
20 03293-38 S.H. Bukhari Securities (Pvt) Limited Joint Stock Companies 294 0.00
21 | 03525-105464 |Innovative Investment Bank Limited (Under Liguidation) Financial Institutions 1,350 0.00
22 03525-57191 | Sarfraz Mahmood (Private) Ltd Joint Stock Companies 100 0.00
23 03525-63817 | NH Securities (Pvt) Limited. Joint Stock Companies 1,350 0.00
24 03525-87235 | Maple Leaf Capital Limited Joint Stock Companies 1 -
25 | 04705-101031 |Khayyam Securities (Pvt.) Limited Joint Stock Companies 50 0.00
26 04705-65373 | Associated Consultancy Centre (Pvt) Limited Joint Stock Companies 1,000 0.00
27 04879-28 Akhai Securities (Private) Limited Joint Stock Companies 50 0.00
28 05736-15 NCC - Pre Settlement Delivery Account Joint Stock Companies 1,630 0.00
29 07328-21 TS Securities (Pvt) Ltd. Joint Stock Companies 1,500 0.00
30 | 07419-11803 |Topline Assaciate (Private.) Limited Joint Stock Companies 20,000 003
31 12203-12148 | Merin (Private) Limited Joint Stock Companies 5,300 0.01
32 12690-2281 | Khaadi (SMC-Private) Limited Employees Provident Fund Provident Fund 2,100 0.00
33 13987-24 Employees Old Age Benefits Institution Federal Govt. Institution 273,400 0.47
34 14241-22 Fikrees (Private) Limited Joint Stock Companies 1,208 0.00
35 14431-29 CDC - Trustee Nafa Islamic Pension Fund Equity Account Pension Fund 3500 0.01
36 16899-22 Mohammad Munir Mohammad Ahmed Khanani Securities Ltd.-Mf | Joint Stock Companies 11,000 002
37 18432-3177 | Margalla Financial (Private) Limited Financial Institutions 500 0.00
38 18432-4282 | Muhammad Salim Kasmani Securities (Private) Limited Financial Institutions 2,026 0.00
39 18614-22 CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Pension Fund-Equity Sub Fund VPS 3882 0.01

Total >> 428272 0.74
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance refers to

the system of rules, practices,

and processes through which a
company is directed and controlled.
It encompasses the framework

of accountability, transparency,
and ethical conduct that guides a
company's decision-making and
relationships with its stakeholders.

At Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited, the
Board of Directors is fully committed
to upholding the principles of
corporate governance and fulfilling
its obligations to all stakeholders,
including shareholders,

employees, customers, and the
wider community. We recognize
the critical role that effective
governance plays in ensuring the
long-term success of the Company
and strive to maintain the highest
standards of governance in all our
operations.

In line with this commitment,

we have implemented all of the
corporate governance reforms
mandated by our regulators and
have developed a comprehensive
framework that aligns with

the Revised Code of Corporate
Governance 2019. Our governance
practices are designed to promote
accountability, transparency,

and integrity, and to ensure that
our decision-making is always
guided by the best interests of the
Company and its stakeholders.

We remain committed to
maintaining these high standards
and will continue to review and
improve our governance practices
to ensure that we uphold our
responsibilities and obligations to all
stakeholders.

Board of Directors

The Board recognizes the
importance of transparency,
accountability, and effective
communication with its
stakeholders. It remains
committed to ensuring that

the Company is managed with
integrity, and that its operations
are conducted ethically and in
compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations.

To support these objectives,
the Board regularly reviews and
updates the Company's policies
and procedures and monitors
the implementation of these
policies across all departments.
It also places a strong emphasis
on training and development
programs for its employees,

to promote a culture of ethical
behavior and professional
excellence.

During the year 2024, the

Board focused on overseeing
management's performance in
implementing the Company's
strategies, particularly in

the challenging economic
environment. It closely monitored
the financial position of the
Company and approved the
financial statements.

Furthermore, the Board reviewed
the Company's business
operations and development plans,
including budgets, and approved
revisions to its policies. It also
prioritized the development of
standard operating procedures
(SOPs) across all departments

to promote consistency and
efficiency.

Looking ahead to the year 2025,
the Board will continue to focus
on these key areas while also
monitoring and responding

to the evolving business and
regulatory landscape. It will strive
to maintain the highest standards
of corporate governance and
ethical behavior, while delivering
sustainable growth and value

to its shareholders and other
stakeholders.

Matters Delegated to the

Management

The Management is responsible
for ensuring that the Company's
routine business operations and
day-to-day management of affairs
are carried out in accordance

with the policies and decisions

of the Board in an effective and
ethical manner. It is also their
responsibility to identify key

risks and opportunities that may
impact on the Company and to
address them appropriately while
keeping the Board updated on any
significant changes.

In addition to their operational
duties, the Management is also
responsible for the preparation
and presentation of financial
statements in compliance

with applicable accounting and
reporting standards, and for
maintaining related internal
controls. The Board, on the other
hand, oversees the financial
reporting process and ensures
that the financial statements
present a true and fair view of the
Company's financial position and
performance.

The Management also plays a key
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role in implementing the Board's
strategic objectives and plans.

It is responsible for the day-to-
day execution of the Company's
strategy, as well as for developing
and presenting business plans,
budgets, and operational metrics.
The Management also works
closely with the Board to identify
and assess emerging risks and
opportunities that could impact
the Company's long-term success.

AGTL has a robust corporate
governance framework in place
that ensures effective oversight,
management, and control of the
Company's affairs. The Board and
Management work together to
promote a culture of transparency,
accountability, and ethical conduct,
and are committed to ensuring the
long-term success of the Company
for the benefit of its stakeholders.
For effective governance, the
Board had constituted following
management committees and
approved TORs of respective
committees:

»  Product Development,
Engineering and Quality
Committee

= Marketing Committee

» Learning and Development
Committee

Board Composition

AGTL recognizes the importance
of having a diverse and competent
Board that can effectively

oversee and guide the Company's
affairs. The Board comprises Ten
members, including the CEO, of
which one member is female

and nine are male. All directors,
except the CEO, are Non-Executive
Directors, and three of them
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are Independent Directors. The
Independent Directors have
provided their declaration of
independence in accordance

with the criteria defined in the
Companies Act 2017, as well as

the requirements of the Code of
Corporate Governance Regulations.

AGTL believes that a diverse
Board helps to promote a wider
range of perspectives and ideas,
leading to better decision-making
and ultimately benefiting the
Company and its stakeholders. The
Board continues to evaluate its
composition and regularly reviews
the skills and expertise of its
members to ensure that it is well
equipped to meet the Company's
current and future challenges.

Board Committees

The Board has constituted an Audit
Committee, a Human Resource

& Remuneration Committee, and

a Technical Committee to aid in
fulfilling its responsibilities.

The Board Committees are chaired
by independent directors. The
directors, who are not members of
any of the afore-said Committees,
may attend their meetings by
invitation. Each committee
operates under a written specific
TORs approved by the Board.

The Chairman/Chairperson

of each committee provides a
detailed report to the Board along
with recommendations of the
Committee.

The Composition of above-
mentioned committees for the
year ended 31 December 2024, is
as follows:

Name of Directors

Audit Committee

Technical
Committee

Human Resource
& Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Robert lan McAllister - Member -

Mr. Malik Ehtisham lkram Member Member Member
Mr. Marco Votta Member Member Member
Ms. Samiha Zahid - - Chairperson
Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor - Chairman -

Mr. Vincent De Lassagne - Member -

Mr. Matthieu Séjourné - Member -

Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev - Member -

Mr. Malik Mirza Chairmain - -

Mr. Sakib Eltaff (CEO) - - Member

Changes in Board Composition

Subsequent to the Election of Directors held on March 01, 2024, Ms.
Samiha Zahid was appointed on a casual vacancy occurred by the passing
away of Ms. Farah Qureshi. The current composition of the Board of
Directors as of December 31,2024, is as follows:

Sr. No. ‘ Name Technical Committee

1 Mr. Robert lan McAllister Non-Executive Director

2 Mr. Dmitri Bogatyrev Non-Executive Director

3 Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram Non-Executive Director

4 Mr. Marco Votta Non-Executive Director

5 Mr. Matthieu Séjourné Non-Executive Director

6 Mr. Vincent De Lassagne Non-Executive Director

7 Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor Independent Director

8 Ms. Samiha Zahid Independent Director (female director)
9 Mr. Malik Mirza Independent Director

Independent Directors

The Board of Directors comprises of three (3) independent directors
namely Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor, Ms. Samiha Zahid and Mr. Malik

Mirza, who are neither involved in the Company's management nor are
connected with any business or other relationships that could interfere or

materially affect their judgement.

The Board of Directors in terms of Section 166(1) of the Companies Act,
2017, has exercised its due diligence before selecting the independent
directors and has ensured that their names are duly included in the
databank of independent directors maintained by the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance, duly authorized by the SECP in accordance with the
Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations
2018. All the independent directors have also provided their consent to act
as director, along with ‘Declaration to the Company’ that they qualify the
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criteria of independence notified
under the Companies Act 2017

and the Companies (Manner and
Selection of Independent Directors)
Regulations, 2018.

Diversity in the Board

The Company takes pride in its
well-rounded Board of Directors,
comprising a diverse cohort

of highly skilled professionals
equipped with a blend of core
competencies, essential skills,
knowledge, and extensive
experience. This diversity

serves to ensure that decision-
making processes benefit

from a comprehensive range

of perspectives. The Company
remains committed to maintaining
gender diversity on the Board of
Directors, with the inclusion of one
female member.

Presence of Executive Directors
on Other Boards

The Company does not have any
Executive Director on its Board
of Directors except the Chief
Executive Officer.

Role of the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer

As a proponent of good corporate
governance practices, the

Company adheres to the principle
of appointing distinct individuals
for the roles of Chairman of the
Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer, ensuring

a clear division of roles and
responsibilities. In accordance with
Section 192(2) of the Companies
Act 2017, the Board of Directors
at Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited has
delineated the specific roles and
responsibilities attributed to

both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the
Company, as elucidated below:

Role of Chairman

The primary role of the Chairman
of the Board is to oversee and
provide leadership to the Board
of Directors at the Company.

The Chairman serves as the
spokesperson for Board decisions
when appropriate. Specifically,
the Chairman'’s duties and
responsibilities encompass:

@ Presiding as the chair at
all General Meetings of the
Company.

® Ensuring necessary
arrangements for Polls/Secret
Balloting/via Postal Ballots
and announcing results at
general meetings.

Leading the board and
ensuring its effectiveness in
fulfilling its responsibilities.

Preparing a review report on
the overall performance of
the Board of Directors and
assessing the effectiveness
of the Board in achieving the
Company's objectives.

Developing and setting
agendas for Board meetings.

Ensuring timely circulation of
meeting agendas, notices, and
relevant materials, allowing
adequate time for discussion.

Providing proper information
to Directors for informed
decision-making.

Overseeing the accurate
recording of Board meeting
minutes and reviewing and
signing them.

Ensuring compliance with laws
in maintaining Board meeting
minutes.

Providing facilities for the
smooth conduct of general

shareholder meetings.

Declaring quorum to conduct
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and conclude shareholder
meetings in accordance with
the law.

® Ensuring the Board fulfills its
responsibilities effectively.

® Issuing letters to directors at
the beginning of each three-
year term outlining their
roles, obligations, powers, and
responsibilities.

o Safeguarding shareholders’
interests in the Company.

Role of Chief Executive Officer
The CEOQ, subject to the control

and direction of the Board, holds
the authority to manage the
Company's affairs. In this capacity,
the CEQ's roles and responsibilities
include following;

® Planning, formulating, and
implementing strategic
policies.

® Ensuring the achievement of
productivity and profitability
targets and overseeing
efficient Company operations.

@ Facilitating coordination
between various Company
departments for smooth and
effective operations.

@ Maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with the Directors
regarding changes in and
implementation of Company
policies, as well as the
performance and development
of the Company’s business.

@ Ensuring the proper protection
and maintenance of the
Company's interests and

assets, and timely compliance
with all required government
obligations.

Maintaining close liaison with
the Government, customers,
suppliers, and sales offices.

Developing human resource
policies to achieve high
professional standards and
overall progress for the
Company.

Ensuring proper succession
planning at all levels of

the Company's hierarchy,
consistently updating the
plans.

Overseeing the proper
functioning of the
Management Committees
within the Company.

Preparing and presenting to
the Board of Directors reports
on the annual business plan,
cash flow projections, long-
term plans, budgets (including
capital, manpower, and
overhead budgets), along with
variance analysis.

Keeping the Board informed
of quarterly operating results,

segmented by operating
divisions, and addressing

any changes in laws, rules,
regulations, and accounting
standards that may affect the
Company.

® Reviewing performance
against budgets/targets,
analyzing revenue and capital
expenditures, profits, and
other critical administrative,
commercial, and personnel-
related matters.

® Creating an open and
progressive atmosphere
among employees, fostering
a sense of participation, and
providing opportunities for
them to perform at their best.

Board Effectiveness

The Board has access to complete,
adequate, and timely information
and resources. A formal agenda is
prepared for all Board meetings.
The agenda and supporting
documents are circulated to all
directors before the meeting.

The Board meets on a quarterly
basis to review and approve the
release of quarterly results. Ad-
hoc meetings may be convened
as necessary to consider other

specific matters. In addition to having meetings, decisions of the Board
and its Committees may also be obtained via circular resolution(s) which
are being ratified in subsequent Board Meetings. Schedule of all board and
committees’ meetings and Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the next
calendar vear is planned in advance.

The Board has access to the CEO, members of the management and the
Company Secretary at all times. The Company Secretary provides support
to the Board and ensures that Board procedures and applicable rules

and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also assists the
Chairman in ensuring proper information flow within the Board and its
Committees as well as advising the Board on all governance matters.

The Company Secretary attends all meetings and ensures that the
minutes of the meetings of the Board are circulated among its members.
The attendance of directors at the meetings of the Board and of the
Committees held during the year ended December 31, 2024 was as follows:

Human
N f Direct Audit Technical Resource &
ame ot Lirectors Board Committee Committee Remuneration
Committee
Mr. Robert lan McAllister 9 - 4 -
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram 10 6 3 1
Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor 6 - 8 -
Mr. Vincent Delassagne 10 - 9 -
Mr. Matthieu Sejourné - 8 -
Mr. Marco Votta 6 9 -
Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev - 3 -

Ms. Samiha Zahid

7
8
2
Mr. Malik Mirza 8 7 - -
2
4

Ms. Farah Qureshi

Mr. Sakib Eltaff - - - 1

Evaluation of Board’s Performance, its Members and Committees
There is a formal process for appraisal of Board performance, members
of Board and its committees. Annual appraisals are carried out through a
structured questionnaire addressing the following:

Board organization.

Board meeting and materials.

Board responsibility and performance.

Interaction with management and key stakeholders.

The Audit Committee, internal audit, and corporate reporting.
Performance of the Board Committees.

The questionnaire also includes the assessment of the Chairman of the
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Board including his ability to

lead the Board meetings. The
evaluation and feedback are
consolidated and presented to the
Board. The Chairman of the Board
announces the results after its
compilation.

Directors’ Orientation and
Training

The company is committed to
delivering thorough orientation
through in-house training

and awareness sessions for

its executives and directors,
ensuring they are well-prepared
to fulfill their roles effectively.
Our orientation program
encompasses crucial aspects

of corporate governance,
updates on the regulatory
environment and compliance,
insights into the company’s
operations, understanding
industry dynamics, and aligning
with strategic objectives. This
ongoing commitment to education
and awareness is pivotal in
maintaining a well-informed and
capable leadership team.

External Oversight

of Functions and
Measures taken to
Enhance the Credibility
of Internal Controls and
Systems

Internal Audit

The company upholds a robust
internal control system subject

to continuous assessment for
effectiveness and adequacy.
Oversight by the Audit Committee
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is integral to achieving operational,
compliance, risk management,
financial reporting, and control
objectives, ensuring the
safeguarding of the company's
assets and shareholders’ wealth.
The internal audit function adheres
to an approved annual audit plan,
with the Committee scrutinizing
significant findings and taking
requisite actions or elevating
matters to the Board when
necessary.

Provisions are in place to facilitate
staff and managementin
reporting concerns about potential
improprieties in financial and other
matters to the Audit Committee
confidentially. Necessary remedial
and mitigating measures are
promptly implemented. The

Head of Internal Audit maintains
direct access to the Chairman

of the Audit Committee, and the
Committee guarantees that the
function possesses the essential
access to management and the
right to seek information and
explanations.

Risk Management

The company has a dedicated

Risk Management function with
the primary goal of identifying

and mitigating risks that could
affect the Company. This function
concentrates on assessing the
likelihood, impact, and velocity of
risks to ensure that the Company's
management team directs efforts
towards the most pertinent areas.
Periodic updates on risks and their
mitigation strategies are presented
by the Head of Risk Management
to the Audit Committee.

Diversity and Inclusion

Promoting diversity and inclusion

is a cornerstone of the Company's
leadership philosophy. The
Company is dedicated to fostering
an environment that supports

and embraces every individual,
irrespective of factors such as race,
gender, age, disability, ethnicity,

or nationality. Our objective is

to establish a culture where
inclusivity is inherent, transcending
the status of a mere initiative. We
aspire for it to be the default mode
of operation at the Company.
Creating and maintaining the fair
and inclusive culture we envision
demands collective efforts from
each member of our organization.

Conflict of Interest among Board
Members

Directors are required to disclose,
at the time of appointment and
during their term, the directorships
they hold in other corporate
bodies. As per the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2017, every
director is required to provide

to the Board complete details
regarding any material transaction
which may bring conflict of interest
with the Company.

Closed periods are determined
and announced by the Company,
precluding the Directors from
dealing in the shares of the
company, prior to each Board
meeting involving announcement
of interim/final results, distribution
to shareholders or any other
business decision which could
materially affect the share price.
Also, all directors are required

to disclose any transaction in

the shares of the Company
immediately to the Company
Secretary. All trading in shares of
the Company by the Directors or

executives and all related party
transactions are fully disclosed in
the financial statements of the
Company.

No conflict of interest was reported
during 2024.

Retention of Board Fee by the
Executive Director earned by
him against his Services as
Non-Executive Director in other

Companies

The Company does not have any
Executive Director except the
Chief Executive Officer who is not
serving as Non-Executive Director
in any other company.

Policy for Conflicts of Interest
among Board Members, and
Management of Conflict of
Interest

All business decisions and choices
taken on behalf of the Company
are made in the best interests of
the Company. The Directors are
obligated to avoid every possible
conflict of interest, with particular
regard to personal or family
considerations, which might affect
the independence of judgment
when deciding what is in the
Company's interests and what

is the most appropriate way to
pursue it.

Policy on Directors’

Remuneration

The Board of Directors has a
formal policy and transparent
procedures for remuneration

of directors in accordance with
corporate law and regulations.
According to the policy, only
independent directors are entitled
to the fee for attending the Board

and its committees’ meetings as
approved by the Board.

Security Clearance of Foreign
Directors

Foreign Directors on our Board

are mandated to furnish pertinent
documents, encompassing
declarations, undertakings, and
any other requisite paperwork
essential for expediting security
clearance procedures conducted
by the Ministry of Interior. Timely
submission of the requisite
documents for all Foreign Directors
is diligently carried out to the
SECP’'s Company Registration
Office (CRO) in Karachi, adhering to
the stipulated timelines.

Moreover, the Company is
committed to facilitating the
clearance process for Foreign
Directors by actively cooperating
with the Ministry of Interior and
other law enforcement agencies.
In the event of any necessity, the
Company ensures the provision
of all essential documentation
required to facilitate the clearance
process. This approach reflects our
dedication to ensuring compliance
with regulatory procedures

and fostering a transparent

and accountable governance
framework.

Board Meetings held outside
Pakistan

No Board meeting was held
outside Pakistan during the year.

Human Resource Management
Including Preparation of

Succession Plan
The Company's HR strategy aims
to develop a skilled workforce,
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crucial for organizational growth
and success. We are committed
to providing continual learning
and developmental opportunities
to our employees, with technical,
professional, and leadership
training programs integrated into
our HR program. These initiatives
not only enhance skills, knowledge,
and creativity but also support
career advancement.

We foster a culture of performance
excellence, encouraging employees
to contribute their best and align
with our core values. Transparency
and meritocracy are fundamental
to our HR activities, including
employee induction, development,
compensation, evaluation, and
promotion. Performance-based
awards are granted to stimulate
healthy competition and

motivate employees to embrace
challenges for business growth
and sustainability. Our competitive
reward structure is benchmarked
against industry best practices and
tailored to meet the diverse needs
of our workforce.

Furthermore, we emphasize critical
thinking and decision-making to
enhance productivity and maintain
high standards of professionalism,
promptness, and effectiveness.
Our HR functions ensure effective
communication and provide
support regarding issues and
challenges faced by employees
across different establishments
and locations.

Overall, our HR strategy is
designed to cultivate a skilled,
motivated, and engaged workforce,
aligned with our business
objectives and values, to drive
sustainable growth and success.
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Succession Planning

The Company places a strong
emphasis on developing its

key talent with leadership

skills, preparing them for more
complex and growth-oriented
roles in the future. Our culture
of succession planning is deeply
ingrained, with ongoing efforts to
develop a professional team and
implement both short and long-
term succession plans for critical
positions.

In 2024, we continued to prioritize
leadership development through
an enhanced succession planning
framework. This year, our

efforts focused on identifying
and nurturing high-potential
individuals through tailored
training programs, advanced
skill-building workshops, and
specialized management courses.
These initiatives have been
instrumental in equipping future
leaders with the competencies
required to drive organizational
growth and ensure the long-term
sustainability of our operations.

Our commitment to developing
leadership skills and succession
planning reflects our dedication to
nurturing a skilled workforce that

can drive our organization forward.

We will continue to focus on these
efforts to ensure a seamless
transition of leadership and
sustain our growth momentum.

Social and Environmental
Responsibility

The company is deeply committed
to various social initiatives

as part of its corporate social
responsibility, reflecting its
conscientious role in the corporate
community. It demonstrates

this commitment by generously
supporting a variety of social and
charitable causes. Furthermore,
the company places a strong
emphasis on environmental
responsibility, ensuring strict
compliance of its products and
operations with all relevant
environmental legislation and
regulations. It continuously
enhances its environmental
management systems to meet or

exceed recognized standards and
adapts to changing requirements.
Operating with a firm commitment
to ongoing improvements in
environmental sustainability, the
company engages in initiatives
such as recycling, resource
conservation, pollution prevention,
product innovation, and fostering
environmental awareness among
its employees. It ensures that

no hazardous materials are
emitted from its plant and informs
and educates its suppliers and
contractors about its environmental
expectations, encouraging them

to embrace environmentally
friendly practices in line with these
expectations.

Salient Features of
Terms of Reference of
Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises

of three members, who are Non-
Executive Directors. The committee
is chaired by an Independent
Director. The Audit Committee
meets at least four times a year.
The Company Secretary acts as the
secretary to the Audit Committee.
The brief terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are as follows:

® Torecommend tothe Board the
appointment and removal of
external auditors;

® Toreview quarterly, half-yearly
and annual financial statements;

® Toreview theinternal control
systems and internal audit
function; and

@ To monitor compliance of
statutory requirements.

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

The Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee
comprises of four members, who
are Non-Executive Directors.

The committee is chaired by

an Independent Director. The
Committee meets at least once a
year. The Company Secretary acts
as the secretary to the Committee.
The brief terms of reference

of the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

® Recommend human resource
management policies to the
Board;

® Recommend to the Board
the selection, evaluation,
compensation (including
retirement benefits) of CFO,
Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit;

® Recommend to the Board
the selection, evaluation,
compensation (including
retirement benefits) and
succession planning of the
CEG;

o Consideration and approval
on the recommendations of
CEO on such matters for key
management positions who
report directly to CEO;

® Assess periodically the
Board's performance and
the performance of the
Committees of the Board.

Technical Committee

The Technical Committee is
composed of seven members,

all of whom are Non-Executive
Directors, with an Independent
Director serving as the chair.
Regular meetings of the Technical
Committee are convened, typically
on a monthly basis, and the
Company Secretary assumes the
role of the committee’s secretary.
The outlined terms of reference for
the Technical Committee include:

Review of Technical Drawings
and Parts Availability.

® Vendor Evaluation and
Validation.

® Cost Optimization
Recommendations.

® Review of Quality Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs).

® Examination of Customer
Feedback and Warranty

Claims.

® Assessment of Model Change
Projects.

@ Evaluation of Various Projects.
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Use of an External Search
Consultancy in the Appointment
of Chairman or Non-Executive
Directors

The appointment of directors

to the Board did not involve the
engagement of any external search
consultancy.

Chairman’s Significant

Commitments

Mr. Robert McAllister assumed
the role of Chairman and Non-
Executive Director of the Company
in January 2022. He has since
been re-elected in the Directors’
Election conducted on March 01,
2024. Further details about his
professional engagements and
background can be found in his
profile.

Governance Practices Exceeding
Legal Requirements

AGTL is committed to compliance
with all applicable laws and
regulations. In addition, the
Company also endeavors to go
the extra-mile voluntarily in terms
of adopting best governance
practices exceeding legal
requirements and following are
examples in this respect:
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Disclosure of various
important information in
the annual report, as per
best practices, like ratios and
trends, graphs, commentary,
analysis, etc.

Health, Safety and
Environment strategies for
the safety of employees and
equipment.

High standards of
management and reporting
practices, as evident from
numerous awards consistently
bestowed by ICAP/ICMAP,
MAP, etc.

Diversity Policy

AGTL strives to be an equal
opportunity employer, free from
any discrimination whatsoever
due to gender, caste, creed,
religion, ethnicity, color, or the like.
The Company is committed to a
merit-based environment where
there is fair and equal treatment
of employees. In all aspects of
human resources management,
short-listing of candidates for
hiring through to their selection,
compensation, and benefits

- monetary and otherwise,

promotions and increments,
transfers, social and recreational
activities, professional grooming,
terminations, etc., our endeavor is
to remain non-discriminate and
free of any bias. Accordingly, in

all aspect employees are treated
according to their abilities to

meet job requirements and all
decisions are free from any form of
discrimination.

Related Parties

Disclosures relating to related
parties have been provided in the
financial statements section of this
annual report, in accordance with
applicable approved accounting
and reporting standards. The said
disclosures include name, basis

of relationship and percentage of
shareholding of related parties
including associated companies
with whom the Company had
entered into transactions or have
arrangements/agreements in
place. Related party transactions
have also been disclosed in the
financial statements appropriately
along with other related parties
related disclosures.

The Company has a policy of
compliance with corporate laws

and regulations regarding related
party transactions. All such
transactions along with relevant
information were placed before
the Audit Committee for review
quarterly. After review by the
Committee, the transactions
were considered and approved
by the Board, keeping in view the
recommendations made by the
Committee. Directors are also
required to disclose their interest,
if any, in accordance with the
requirements of corporate laws
and regulations.

Statement of Management’s
Responsibility towards the
Preparation and Presentation of

Financial Statements

The Board of Directors, Audit
Committee and the management
have been committed to keeping
the Company in compliance

with accounting and reporting
framework as applicable under
corporate law. The management
is responsible for the preparation
and presentation of financial
statements as per applicable
accounting and reporting
standards and for related internal
controls.

Whistle Blowing Policy

The Company has adopted a
whistle blowing culture to detect
and deter wrongdoing in preparing
and implementing accurate and
complete financial reports and
records as well as the internal
controls essential to support its
financial and accounting system
and operations. Violation of
matters referred to in the Code
of Conduct signed by all the
employees may also be reported.
The establishment of whistle
blowing structure also augments
the Company's ability to detect
potential fraud, providing another
level of comfort and assurance to
the stakeholders.

The policy provides a mechanism
for employees to report possible
wrongdoings to the Company
Secretary without fear of reprisal
or discrimination. Every report case
is considered and investigated. The
whole process is looked after by
the Audit Committee.

The Company also has a policy

on "Suggestion System”,
encouraging all employees to make
suggestions. These are discussed
and employees are often rewarded
for their input.

Shareholder Rights and
Responsibilities

The Company ensures that all
shareholders are treated fairly

and equitably. The Company is
committed to ensuring that all
shareholders have access to

clear, reliable and meaningful
information. The Company regularly
communicates major developments
in business operations to the

stock exchange, SECP, press
releases, circular to shareholders
and placement of information on
Company’' website. The Company
also encourages shareholder
participation at the general
meetings of the shareholders.
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All shareholders are invited to
participate in the Company's
general meeting in person or
through proxy. The Chairman
delivers a short presentation at
each AGM to shareholders to
update them on performance

of the Company. Every matter
requiring approval is proposed as a
separate resolution. Shareholders
presents are given an opportunity
to clarify or direct questions

on issues pertaining to the
proposed resolution. The Board

is in attendance to address these
queries and obtain feedback from
shareholders. External auditors are
also present as required by law.
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Issues Raised at Last Agm

The Company's AGM was held on
April 25,2024, The following were
approved by the shareholders:

Minutes of Extraordinary
General Meeting held on
March 01, 2024.

Financial statements for the
year ended December 31,
2023.

Re-appointment of M/s. A.
F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered
Accountants, as external
auditors.

For above-stated shareholders’
approvals, related implementation
was timely completed by the
Company.

During the AGM held on April 25,
2024, the shareholders asked
general queries related to annual
financial statements for the

year 2023 and fee of external
auditors which were appropriately
responded by the directors present
in the meeting. No significant
matter was raised at the AGM.

Extraordinary General Meeting
for Election of Directors

An Extraordinary General Meeting
(EOGM) was held on March 01,
2024 to elect nine directors, as
fixed by the Board in accordance
with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017 for a term of
three years.

Employee Health, Safety and
Protection

The well-being and safety of our
employees and contract workers

are of utmost importance to
the Company. Our in-house
Environment, Health, and
Safety mechanism are integral
to instilling a culture of safety
throughout all aspects of our
business. Acknowledging that
employees perform optimally
when they can balance work and
family responsibilities, we have
implemented programs that
support work-life harmony and
prioritize good health.

Presence of the Chairman of the

Audit Committee at Agm

The Chairperson of the Audit
Committee was also present at the
AGM of the Company held on April
25,2024 to answer any questions
asked on the Audit Committee’s
activities and matters within the
scope of the Audit Committee's
responsibilities.

Encouraging Minority
Shareholders to Attend General
Meetings

The Company's management
aims to encourage minority
shareholders to attend general
meetings.

Accordingly, the Company sends
notice of its general meetings to all
shareholders in addition to these
notices being published in Urdu
and English newspapers.

Understanding of the Views
of Major Shareholders by
the Directors including Non-

Executive Directors

AGTL is owned to the extent of
93% by two foreign shareholders,
namely Al-Futtaim Industries

Company (L.L.C.) and CNH
Industrial N.V. At the time of
induction of each of the new
directors, the Company carries
out orientation in respect of the
expectations and views of major
shareholders.

Investor Relations Policy and

Grievance Programme

The Company is committed to
maintaining the highest standards
of corporate transparency and
disclosure and believes that it
should provide regular, effective,
and fair communication with its
shareholders. An investor relation
program has been putin place

to provide clear, timely and fair
disclosure of information about the
Company's business development
and performance.

Shareholders are also welcome
to seek any information that
they may require by contacting
the Company Secretary at the
Head Office — Telephone Number
021-35318901-5. Information /
complaints may also be sentin
writing or through email. All efforts
are made to provide the required
information / resolve their
complaints on a priority basis.

Policy of Safety of Records

The Company places emphasis

on safety and storage of its
financial and other records. The
Company ensures that all data and
records are retained to meet legal,
administrative, and operational
requirements. No loss or breach

of confidential data was reported
during 2024,
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Company’s Approach to
Managing and Reporting Policies
like Procurement, Waste and

Emissions

The Company is dedicated

to managing and reporting

on essential practices such

as procurement, waste, and
emissions in an open and
sustainable manner. Our approach
involves strict compliance

with regulatory standards,
continual enhancement through
engaging stakeholders, and the
incorporation of leading practices
to reduce environmental impact
and enhance resource efficiency.
By implementing effective
management systems and
conducting regular monitoring, we
aim to streamline procurement
processes, minimize waste
generation, and mitigate
emissions. This demonstrates
our commitment to being a
responsible corporate entity.

Business Continuity/Disaster
Recovery Plan and Review hy the
Board

The Company places paramount
importance on ensuring business
continuity/disaster recovery. The
following measures are in place to
ensure smooth restoration of key
operations:

Application and data back-ups
are maintained at different
sites to ensure maximum
security. In case of failure of
the primary server, a back-

up server with the same
configuration is also available.

Comprehensive fire prevention



80 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

Corporate Governance

systems have been putin
place through mechanical
installations as well as
frequent fire drills.

® Adequateinsurance
arrangements have been
made to mitigate business
risks.

® Preventive maintenance
Programme coupled with
training is carried out
intermittently to minimize
business disruptions.

@ 24-hour security at the plant,
head office and staff town has
been provided.

The Board is apprised relating to
disaster recovery strategies and
mitigating plans.

Information Technology
Governance

Information Management and
Information Technology are
integral to AGTL's strategy. The

IT system plays a critical role in
supporting the Company's current

-
-

9
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operations and driving new
initiatives. Our ERP system has
historically integrated all functions
across the organization, enhancing
the efficiency and effectiveness of
processes and controls.

In line with evolving business
requirements and the
competencies needed to address
new challenges, the Company

in May 2024 successfully
transitioned from its existing
BAAN system to the state-
of-the-art SAP S/4 HANA
solution. This strategic upgrade
reflects AGTL's commitment to
transformation and is designed
to improve multiple facets of the
business, including expanding the
product portfolio, elevating the
customer experience, modernizing
manufacturing operations,

and adopting cutting-edge
technologies.

This significant advancement
underscores the Company's
dedication to fostering a learning

R
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organization while enhancing
operational efficiencies.

Corporate Briefing Session

As required under PSX regulations,
a Corporate Briefing Session

was held on July 24, 2024, for
shareholders, investors and the
analyst community. The session
was attended by the Management
Team, including the CEO, CFO,

and Company Secretary. During
the session, the team presented
an overview of the Company,
highlighting its profile, geographical
presence across the country,
historical journey, shareholding
structure, and key strategic and
operational developments.

The presentation also included
financials and sustainability
highlights, followed by an engaging
Question and Answer session.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AL-GHAZI TRACTORS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliznce with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Direetors of
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with
the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement Lo the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respeets, with
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

o

A.F.Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Dated: March 28, 2025

UDIN: CRzoz410073CPeaqcEs0

A. F. FERGUSON & 0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PuC nebwork

State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.0. Box 4716, Karachi-rgooo, Pakistan
Tel: 102 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/ 32424740, <wuww.pwe.com,/pk>

s KARACHI mLAHORE »ISLAMABAD

AFFERGUSON&CO.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended December 31, 2024

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. Thetotal number of directors including the Chief Executive are 10 as per the following:

a. Male 9
b. Female 1

2. The composition of Board as at the year-end is as follows:

e [

a) Non-Executive Directors Mr. Robert lan McAllister
Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev

Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram
Mr. Marco Votta

Mr. Vincent De Lassagne

Mr. Matthieu Séjourné
Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor

b) Independent Directors

Mr. Malik Mirza
c) Female Independent Director Ms. Samiha Zahid
d) Chief Executive Officer Mr. Sakib Eltaff

During the period under review, elections of the Board were held on March 01, 2024, wherein the Company has
elected three independent directors for a term of three years starting from March 03, 2024. For the purpose of
rounding up of fraction, the Company did not round up the fraction as the Board determined that composition is
adequate.

Due to sad demise of Ms. Farah Qureshi, an Independent Director, Ms. Samiha Zahid was appointed as Independent Director in her place
to fill the casual vacancy.

3. Thedirectors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director of more than seven listed companies,
including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant policies of
the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 [the Act] and the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 [the Regulations].

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations
pertaining to frequency, recording, and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

10.

11.

12.

a)

c)

13.

14.

15.

16.
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The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and the Regulations.

All the directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as directors of
corporate bodies.

The Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

The Chief financial officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the Board.

The Board has approved formation of Audit Committee, Human Resources and Remuneration Committee and
Technical Committee. The composition of the said committees as at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Audit Committee b) Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Malik Mirza (Chairman) Ms. Samiha Zahid (Chairperson)

Mr. Marco Votta Mr. Marco Votta
Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram
Mr. Sakib Eltaff

Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram

Technical Committee

Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor (Chairman)
Mr. Robert McAllister

Mr. Malik Ehtisham Ikram

Mr. Marco Votta

Mr. Vincent De Lassagne

Mr. Matthieu Séjourné

Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented, and advised to the
committee for compliance.

Seven (7) meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year where at least one meeting was held in
each quarter. Ten (10) meetings of the Technical Committee were held during the year under review. One (01)
meeting of the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee was held during the year under review.

The board has set up an effective internal audit function.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan [ICAP] and they
are registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan. They have further confirmed that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm
and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
of ethics as adopted by ICAP.
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Statement of Compliance

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, the Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3,6, 7, 8,27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with in all material respects.

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than those of regulations 3,6, 7,8, 27,32, 33 and 36,
are provided below:

Requirement Explanation
In order to effectively discharge its sustainability The requirement is not mandatory, however, the Boad 10A
related duties, the board may establish a dedicated will consider the creation of a dedicated committee or
sustainability committee having at least one female assigning this task to any existing committee in due
director or assign additional responsibilities to an course.
existing board committee. The committee shall monitor
and review sustainability related risks and opportunities
of the company, ensure DE&I practices are in effect
at various board committees, oversee compliance of Requirement Explanation
relevant laws pertaining to relevant sustainability related
considerations and its appropriate disclosures. The 4, The Board may constitute the Risk Management The Board has constituted a Risk Management 30
committee shall submit to the board a report, at least Committee, of such number and class of Directors, as it Function of the Company and tasked the Audit
I & Ylstew; el elmbeddlng SUStamab'l'.ty prlnqples Tt may deem appropriate in its circumstances, to carry out Committee to oversee Risk Management related
the organization’s strategy and operations to increase a review of effectiveness of risk management procedures | matters of the Company.
corporate value. and present a report to the Board.
5. The Company may post on its website key elements of As the Regulation provides concession with respect to 35
It is encouraged that: Since the requirement is not mandatory now, all the 19 :ctos”?v%inrllﬂlcant poidies e Welings BUE Mo (= 20 dhe ﬁlesngl;:::tfsscl,%Tefg\é,lggtpOgﬁlceizsogrzhae\,\gi?;);g%,??Lve
directors are highly qualified and experienced. However, & C Yn s el P

(i) byJune 30,2020 at least half of the directors on during the period under review, the Chief Executive | Commuieion snddEdesure paliay QUi AR S VFAZERIS:

their Boards. Officer and a female executive have obtained the '

Directors' Training Program. i

(i) by June 30,2021 at least 75% of the directors on S L ggﬁisfnfgr?gug;fgr:tn;i?gazzrcigo?gdefsmrectors

their Boards; and & ploy
(i) by June 30,2022 all the directors on their Boards Il Rk metegmert peley

have acquired the prescribed certification under any IV. Internal control policy

director training program offered by institutions,

local or foreign, that meet the criteria specified by V.  Whistle blowing policy

the Commission and approved by it.

. ) ) VI.  Corporate social responsibility / sustainability /

A newly appointed director on the Board may acquire, the environmental, social and governance related policy
directors training program certification within a period of
one year from the date of appointment as a director on
the Board:
Provided that director having a minimum of 14 years of
education and 15 years of experience on the Board of
a listed company, local and/or foreign, shall be exempt
from the directors training program.
Companies are also encouraged to arrange training for:
(i) atleast one female executive every year under the &/&L@

Directors’ Training program from year July 2020; and i .

Robert lan Mcallister Sakib Eltaff

(i) atleast one head of department every year under Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer

the Directors' Training program from July 2022.
The'Board may constitgte a separatelcommittee, The responsibilitigs prescribed for the Nomination 29 Date: March 20, 2025
designated as the nomination committee, of such Committee are being taken care of at Board level.
number and class of Directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances.
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STATEMENT OF ADHERENCE

with the International Integrated Reporting Framework

This annual report (report) of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines of
the International Integrated Reporting (IR) framework.
The Company's primary objective under the subject is
to enhance shareholders’ and stakeholders' awareness
for better understanding and valued decision-making.
We always strive to achieve our objective through
excellence in corporate governance and management
practices regarding human resources.

AGTL has been continuously working towards
transparency of the information presented to its
stakeholders. It has considered various transformations
to adapt to a changing corporate environment and
the need for additional information beyond t he

basic financial statements. This information includes
management commentary, governance disclosures,
performance analysis, forward outlook and footnotes
to the financial statement to better reflect the
corporate reporting for information needs of different
stakeholders.

The Company has included the following content
elements for the users of this report:

Organizational Overview and External Environment
Messages for Stakeholders

Governance

Strategies, Risks and Opportunities

Performance Analysis

Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility
Financial Statements

Other Information

The adoption of integrated reporting requires
involvement and support of the Board of Directors and
the leadership team. Henceforth, Management of the
Company provides guidance to achieve organizational
objectives by advising, assessing, and monitoring
business strategies; ensuring the execution and
modification of strategies; and evaluating their own
effectiveness and contribution in these activities.
Reporting is being monitored and it is ensured that the
relevant information is shared in the most suited way
for the stakeholders of the Company.

We will continue to improve the information produced
to make it even easier to understand, while taking
into account the opinion of stakeholders reading this
report.

Sakib Eltaff
Chief Executive Officer

March 20, 2025

STATEMENT OF UNRESERVED COMPLIANCE

of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited is preparing statutory
financial statements in accordance with the IFRS
issued by IASB as notified under the Companies Act
2017 including the disclosure requirements of the
fourth schedule.

In addition to this, note 2.1.3 to the financial
statement specifies a few standards,
interpretations and disclosures which are yet to be
effective in Pakistan. The Company believes that
the impact of such standards, interpretations and
disclosures does not have any material impact on
the financial statements.

Sakib Eltaff
Chief Executive Officer

March 20, 2025
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GENDER PAY GAP DISCLOSURE

Gender Pay Gap Statement Under SECP’s Circular 10 Of 2024

Following is gender pay gap
calculated for the year ended 31
December 2024:

i) Mean Gender Pay Gap:
11.3%

i) Median Gender Pay Gap:
(21.3%)

Sakib Eltaff
Chief Executive Officer

20th March 2025
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board has set up an effective
independent Internal Audit
function, which is headed by a
Chartered Certified Accountant.
The Head of Internal Audit reports
functionally to the Chairman

of the Audit Committee and
administratively to the CEQ. Using
a risk-based approach, an annual
Internal Audit plan is formulated
which is reviewed and approved by
the Audit Committee.

The key role of the Internal Audit
is to assist the Audit Committee
to provide reasonable assurance
that the Company is maintaining
an adequate system of internal
controls. The internal audit
function examines Company
records and operations, ensuring
fair financial reporting processes,
compliance with applicable laws
and adherence with internal
control systems. It provides
detailed reports to the audit
committee on the same.

The Audit Committee ensures
that the internal audit function
has adequate resources and
appropriate standing within the
Company. On an ongoing basis, it
assesses the effectiveness of the
Internal Audit function, such as its
scope of work and quality of audit
reports.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Audit Committee comprised of
one independent and two Non-
Executive Directors namely:

e Mr. Malik Mirza

Chairman & Independent Director

e Mr. Marco Votta
Non-Executive Director

e Malik Ehtisham lkram
Non-Executive Director

The Secretary of the Board
functions as the Secretary to the
Committee.

Charter of the Committee

The terms of reference of the
Committee are clearly defined

in the Charter of the Committee,
salient features of which are
stated below:

e Torecommend to the Board
the appointment and removal
of external auditors;

e Toreview quarterly, half-
yearly and annual financial
statements;

e Toreview the internal control
systems and internal audit
function;

e To monitor compliance of
statutory requirements.

Meetings during 2024

The Audit Committee met seven
times during the year. The
attendance of the members at
these meetings is stated in the
table on page 71 of the Annual
Report. The Chief Financial Officer
and the Chief Internal Auditor
attended all meetings.

Role of the Committee

The Audit Committee assists

the Board to effectively carry

out its supervisory oversight
responsibilities on financial
reporting and compliance, internal
controls and risks, internal and
external audit functions of the
Company.

The Committee ensured
compliance with its terms of
reference. The Committee has
concluded its annual review of the
operations of the Company for the
year ended December 31,2024 and
reports that:

e The Committee reviewed
and approved the quarterly
and annual financial
statements of the Company
and recommended them for
approval of the Board.

e Appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently
applied and all applicable
accounting standards were
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followed in preparation of
the financial statements for
the year ended December
31,2024, which present fairly
the state of affairs, results of
operations, profits, cash flows,
and changes in equity of the
Company.

The Chief Executive Officer/
Chief Financial Officer has
reviewed the financial
statements of the Company.
They acknowledge their
responsibility for true and fair
presentation of the financial
statements, accuracy of
reporting and compliance with
regulations and applicable
accounting standards.

Review process of financial
statements by Audit
Committee also includes
detailed consideration

of related matters and
issues which were dealt in
accordance with applicable
accounting and reporting
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Report of the Audit Committee

standards. Contents of
External Audit Report for the
financial year 2024 are in
accordance with applicable
Regulations in Pakistan.

The auditors have issued
unmodified audit report

in respect of the financial
statements for the said
financial year.

Accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

Proper, accurate and adequate
accounting records have been
maintained by the Company.

The Company's system of
internal control is sound

in design and has been
continually evaluated for
effectiveness and adequacy.

The Company has a proper
approach in place for risk
management whereby
identification and mitigation
of relevant risks take place.
Details regarding risk
identified by the Company
and mitigating strategies are
included in respective section
of this annual report and
summary is mentioned in the
Directors' Report. The Audit
Committee has reviewed this
information.

The Audit Committee has
reviewed and approved all
related party transactions.

The Committee has reviewed
arrangements for staff and
management for reporting
to the Committee, their

3
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concerns, if any, about
improprieties in financial and
other matters, and remedial
and mitigating measures. No
cases of complaints regarding
accounting, internal accounting
controls or audit matters, or
whistleblowing were received
by the Committee.

Closed periods were duly
determined and announced
by the Company, precluding
the directors and executives
(as defined by the Board to
be an employee drawing a
basic salary of Rs. 1,200,000
and above in a financial year)
from dealing in the shares of
the Company, prior to each
Board meeting involving
announcement of interim /
final results, distribution to
shareholders or any other
business decision which could
materially affect the share
price.

The Company's 2024 Annual
Report is properly structured
to provide all necessary
information in detail yet in a
lucid way. Not only it gives
financial information like

state of affairs and financial
performance as per applicable
accounting framework, it

also enlightens through
financial analysis in easy to
comprehend style. Besides the
core financial information, it
also covers all other necessary
domains like background
details about company and

its directors, comprehensive
management reviews and
future prospects, stakeholder's
information and corporate
governance.

Internal Audit

The Board has effectively
implemented the internal
control framework through the
Chief Internal Auditor who is

a qualified Certified Chartered
Accountant.

The Internal Auditor reviews
the risks and control
processes. It carries out
reviews in accordance with the
internal audit plan approved
by the Committee.

The internal audit function
has direct access to the

Committee. The Committee reviews the findings and observation of
the internal audit and provides appropriate guidance.

o The Committee met with the internal audit in absence of the
management.

External Audit

e The statutory auditors of the Company, A. F. Ferguson & Co,,
Chartered Accountants, have completed their audit assignment of the
Company's financial statements and the statement of compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended December
31,2024 and shall retire on conclusion of 42" Annual General Meeting.

e The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations
with the external auditors. A meeting was also held with the external
auditors in absence of the management.

e Theexternal auditors have direct access to the Audit Committee
and internal audit department, hereby ensuring the effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of the audit process.

e The performance, cost and independence of the external auditors
is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee. Being eligible for
reappointment under the listing regulations, the Committee has
recommended to the Board the reappointment of A. F. Ferguson and
Co., Chartered Accountants for the year 2025. A resolution to this
effect has been proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Self-Evaluation of Audit Committee

The Committee’s evaluation was conducted internally using a bespoke
process during the review period. Each Committee member performed a
self-assessment in alignment with the Committee’s terms of reference.

Performance of Audit Committee

The Committee views that it discharged its responsibilities as per its terms
of reference. A separate mechanism is in place for annual evaluation of
members of the Board of Directors and its Committees.

-Sd-
Malik Mirza

Chairman, Audit Committee

March 20, 2025
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REPORT OF THE HUMAN RESOURCE &

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

REPORT OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE
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Composition

The Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee
comprised of one independent, two
Non-Executive Directors and the
CEO namely:

e Ms. Samiha Zahid

Chairperson & Independent Director

e Mr. Marco Votta
Non-Executive Director

e Malik Ehtisham lkram

Non-Executive Director

e Mr. Sakib Eltaff
Chief Executive Officer

The Secretary of the Board

functions as the Secretary to the

Committee.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the
Committee are clearly defined

in the Charter of the Committee,
salient features of which are
stated below:

Salient Terms of Reference of the
Committee are as follows:

e Recommend human resource
management policies to the
Board.

e Recommend to the Board
the selection, evaluation,
compensation (including
retirement benefits) of CFO,
Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit.

e Recommend to the Board
the selection, evaluation,
compensation (including
retirement benefits) and
succession planning of the
CEO.

o Consideration and approval

on the recommendations of
CEO on such matters for key
management positions who
report directly to CEO.

Assess periodically the
Board's performance and

Composition

The Technical Committee
comprised of one independent
and six Non-Executive Directors

Terms of Reference of the
Committee

e Technical Drawings Availability

Periodic Quality Audits of
existing vendors will be
executed and Technical
Committee will review.

the performance of the
Committees of the Board.

Meetings during 2024

One meeting of the Committee
was held during the year as per
listing regulations requirement.

-Sd-

Ms. Samiha Zahid
Chairperson

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

March 20, 2025

namely:

Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor

Chairman & Independent Director

Mr. Robert lan McAllister
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Matthieu Séjourné
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vincent De Lassagne
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Marco Votta
Non-Executive Director

Malik Ehtisham lkram

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dmitrii Bogatyrev
Non-Executive Director

The Secretary of the Board
functions as the Secretary to the
Committee.

of Production Parts and Sub-
Assemblies.

Cost Optimization of Existing
Parts — Product Development/
Finance

Technical Committee

will review the data of
available drawings for
function parts only.

— Technical Committee will
ensure to make available
the data and drawings of
missing functional parts.

e Vendor's Evaluation &
Validation.

— Technical Committee
will review the existing
evaluation procedure of
New Vendors.

Technical Committee will
review Top 100 expensive
parts cost estimation and
optimization process.

Technical Committee

will review and ensure
regular costing updates of
existing parts according to
market situation.
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Report of the Technical Committee

Generation / HSE / IT /
Marketing & Sales)

e Inspection Facility Availability
at AGTL — Quality Assurance

— Technical Committee — Technical Committee will

will review the KPl's of
Quality-in and Quality-
out.

— Technical Committee

will review and suggest
improvements in existing
quality facility and skills.

Customer Feedback &
Warranty Claims — Sales /
Quality Assurance.

Technical Committee will
review Top 5 customer
complaints and failed
components.

Technical Committee will
review the KPI of no. of
complaints and warranty
claims on periodic basis.

review the business case
and / or cost feasibility of
other above mentioned
large-scale projects before
presenting to BOD.

— Technical Committee will
review the progress of the
large-scale projects during
planning, execution and
closing phases.

Meetings during 2024

The Technical Committee met

ten times during the year. The
attendance of the members at
these meetings is stated in the
table on page 71 of the Annual
Report. The Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and
General Managers of plant, Quality
Assurance and Supply Chain
attended all meetings.

Full Model Change / Major
Model Change / Minor Model
Change Projects.

Performance of Audit Committee

The Committee views that it

Technical Committee
will review the product
specifications, capacity
requirement and price
indication of model
change projects before
presenting to BOD.

Technical Committee will
review the progress of
model change projects
during planning, execution
and closing phases.

discharged its responsibilities

as per its terms of reference. A
separate mechanism is in place
for annual evaluation of members
of the Board of Directors and its
Committees.

_Sd_
Mr. Shahid Shahbaz Toor
Chairman, Technical Committee

o Projects (Vertical Integration/
Cost Reduction / Capacity
Enhancement / Power

March 20, 2025
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RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

Risks

To achieve an informed understanding of our tolerance for risks when delivering our overall business plan, we
must be mindful that the objective of risk management is not necessarily to eliminate risk but to ensure that
the risks we do accept remain within a predetermined level of acceptability and control while pursuing value-
enhancing opportunities. The ultimate goal of risk management within AGTL is to continually assess the control
environment to prevent and build resilience against any internal or external shocks, both anticipated and

unforeseen.

Within the automotive industry, uncertainties stem from various sources including changes in the economy,

technology, government regulations, relative prices, and market dynamics.

Following are the major risks that may affect our business operations and mitigating strategies for controlling

these risks.

Financial Capital (External Source)
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Manufactured Capital (External Source)

Risk

Risk level/
Impact

Likelihood

Risk Description

Mitigation Strategy

Information
System Failure
risk

Moderate

Moderate

Loss of Company data and theft of
sensitive information

A comprehensive disaster recovery policy is in
place and addresses the underlying risk. The
Company maintains backup servers to recover
datain case of any disaster.

Further, the Company has a well-established
disaster recovery plan and data backup to cope
with any unwarranted event.

Natural
Catastrophe

Moderate

Moderate

Becoming unable or constrained to
continue the business

The Company recognizes that quick recovery
and resumption of business operations

after a disruption are critical to minimizing
financial, operational and reputational impact.
To mitigate these risks, the Company has

in place a Business Continuity Plan, which
complements its ERP framework.

Risk level/
Risk Impact Likelihood Risk Description Mitigation Strategy
Exchange Rate | High/High High It becomes challenging for the Company | The Company's product has around 92% local
Fluctuation to compete in the market due to components, thus reducing the dependency on
frequent fluctuation of PKR parity imported material and hence reducing negative
against USD. consequences resulting from exchange rate
fluctuations.
Working Moderate/ | Moderate Any increase in raw material cost or Management has addressed the risk of
Capital Moderate increase in the volume of raw material shortage of working capital by availing the
Management stock or debts may limit the avenues sufficient credit lines from different banks in
for availability of sufficient working order to meet the short-term requirements of
capital. the Company.
Import High/High High It has become challenging for Management addresses the risk by escalating
Restrictions the company to ensure business the importance of tractor industry and its
continuity and fulfil production demand | contribution to agriculture at relevant forums
requirements due to import restrictions | including the central bank. Advocacy efforts
on tractor's parts. This is because of being done for exemption of import restrictions
record low forex reserves in the country. | for AGTL along with exploring various FOREX L.
funding options including shareholder’s funding Dpp[]rtumues
support. . . e . e . .
PP Based on detailed analyses, we have identified various opportunities in the current economic landscape along with
the strategy to maximize benefits from it:
e
ortunities
Risk level/ PP
Risk Impact Likelihood Risk Description Mitigation Strategy Opportunity Impact Area Source Opportunity Description Strategy to Capitalize on Opportunity
H|gh Emp|0\/ee Moderate/ Moderate Ke\/ emp|o\/ees and workers may The Compan\/ believes in the importance of ngh Horse Mar?ufactured Internal The market Cohtains Significant Udeel’ the trgnsformation efforts, with
Turnover Moderate leave the Company causing a lack of a having the right people with the requisite Power Tractors | Capital potential for high-power tractors. allgnmeﬂt with CNHi, AGTL is currently
competent workforce. qualifications, skills and expertise to achieve its conducting R&D efforts for the development of
strategic business plans. The Company has in durable and superior high horse power tractors.
place comprehensive human resources policies Modernization | Manufactured | External Most modern and state-of-the-art Under the transformation efforts, AGTL with
and procedures for recruitment, compensation, of the AGTL Capital machinery for the production of high- Kaizen Institute has launched a comprehensive
staff development and management Plant quality tractors. plant modernization program at the facility
g, in D.G. Khan. This will focus on quality
management and modernization.
Diversification Manufactured | External A potential market for lube oil and spare | Under the transformation efforts, AGTL is
Capital parts exists. currently conducting R&D efforts to enter into
the spare parts market.
Efficiency at Human Capital | External Provide a congenial work environment Provide an effective environment without
Workplace by where the employee feels motivated excessive work pressure. Continuous training
Employees and works for the betterment of the and development of employees. Benefit aligned
Company. with efficient and effective work and team
management.
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (ERM)

2. Risk Assessment and Analysis: 4. Crisis Management and warning signs of potential

At AGTL, we recognize that the
rapidly changing global economy,
evolving technological landscape,
and increasingly complex regulatory
environment present both
opportunities and challenges. As

a prominent player in the tractor
manufacturing industry, we are
deeply committed to the principles
of Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) to safeguard our operations,
ensure long-term profitability, and
deliver value to our stakeholders.
We believe that effective risk
management is a cornerstone of
sustainable growth, and it enables
us to navigate uncertainty while
staying focused on our strategic
objectives.

include fluctuations in raw material
prices, supply chain disruptions,
labor shortages, technological
advancements, geopolitical factors,
environmental challenges, and
changes in regulatory frameworks.
As we expand our global presence,
these risks become more complex
and multifaceted. In response,

we have embraced a proactive,
enterprise-wide approach to

identifying, assessing, and mitigating

risks. This comprehensive approach
allows us to maintain a competitive
edge while protecting our assets,
brand reputation, and financial
stability.

Our ERM Framework and Strategy

aligned with our strategic objectives
and decision-making processes.

The following key components define
our ERM framework:

1.

Risk Identification: The first

step in our risk management
process is the identification

of potential risks. This is an
ongoing and dynamic process
that involves the identification
of both emerging and existing
risks across all areas of the
organization, including strategic,
operational, financial, regulatory,
and reputational risks. We

use a combination of internal
assessments, market analysis,
expert opinions, and feedback

Once risks are identified, we
assess their potential impact
and likelihood of occurrence.
This involves both qualitative
and quantitative analysis to
understand the severity of each
risk and its potential to disrupt
our business operations. We
prioritize risks based on their
potential to impact key areas
such as revenue generation,
supply chain continuity,
customer satisfaction, legal
compliance, and operational
efficiency. Advanced risk
modeling tools, as well as
historical data, are used to
create detailed risk scenarios
and predict their potential
effects on the company.

Risk Mitigation and Control
Measures: After evaluating
risks, we implement targeted
mitigation strategies. For
high-priority risks, we develop
specific action plans to reduce
their probability of occurrence
or to minimize their impact.
This includes diversifying

our supplier base to reduce
dependency on single-

source suppliers, investing

in technology to improve
manufacturing efficiency, and
implementing stronger quality
control procedures to ensure
product reliability. We also
focus on workforce training to
ensure employees are prepared
to manage risks effectively

Our approach to Enterprise Risk from various stakeholders to at all levels. Additionally, we
The Importance of Risk Management is embedded in our identify risks that may impact strengthen our compliance
Management corporate culture and integrated into our business. Cross-functional programs to ensure adherence
to local and international

The tractor manufacturing industry
is subject to a range of risks, both
internal and external, that can
impact our operations. These

every facet of our business strategy.

It begins at the highest levels of
governance, and this commitment
ensures that risk considerations are

teams collaborate to identify
risks at every level of the
organization, ensuring that no
risk goes unnoticed.

regulations, including safety
standards and environmental
policies.

Business Continuity: Part of
our ERM framework involves
establishing robust crisis
management and business
continuity plans. These plans
ensure that, in the event of an
unforeseen crisis—whether
caused by a natural disaster,
supply chain disruption, or a
major cyber security breach—
we are able to respond quickly
and efficiently to protect our
operations. The Company has
developed a formal Disaster
Recovery Plan which serves as
a guide on how and who should
do what in case a disaster hits
the Company. Our business
continuity strategy includes
backup production facilities,
redundancy in supply chains,
and crisis communication
protocols to ensure that we
can continue operations with
minimal disruption.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting:
Effective risk management is
an ongoing process, which is
why we place great emphasis
on the continuous monitoring
and reporting of risks. Key risk
indicators (KRIs) are tracked
regularly to identify any early

issues. Our risk management
team conducts periodic reviews
of the risk landscape to ensure
that our risk response strategies
are up to date.

6. Stakeholder Engagement:
As part of our commitment
to transparency, we keep
our stakeholders informed
about the risks we face and
the strategies we employ to
mitigate them. This includes
regular communication with
shareholders, employees,
customers, and regulatory
bodies. By fostering open
dialogue and promoting risk
awareness, we ensure that all
stakeholders are aligned with
the company's approach to risk
management and understand
the steps we are taking to
protect their interests.

Continuous Improvement and
Adaptation

Our ERM framework is designed

to evolve as new risks emerge and
as our business grows. We are
committed to continuously refining
and improving our risk management
practices, ensuring that they remain

©)?

A
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Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)

relevant and effective in addressing
the changing landscape. This is
achieved through regular reviews

of our risk management processes,
benchmarking against industry best
practices, and incorporating lessons
learned from past risk events.
Additionally, as part of our
commitment to long-term
sustainability, we continuously
review our risk mitigation strategies
to align them with environmental,
social, and governance (ESG)
objectives. This ensures that we

are not only managing traditional
risks but also addressing emerging
risks related to sustainability and
corporate responsibility.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting
Risk management is an ongoing
process, not a one-time event. To
keep up with evolving risks and
market conditions, we continuously
monitor our risk environment. Our
ERM methodology includes regular
monitoring of key risk indicators
(KRIs), performance metrics, and
other early warning signs that could
signal an emerging risk.

Through this process, we maintain a
real-time understanding of potential
threats, allowing us to act swiftly
and effectively.

Risk Culture and Employee

Engagement

At AGTL, we believe that risk
management is everyone's
responsibility. To foster a risk-aware
culture, we engage employees in
the Risk Management process

and hold sessions to review the
risks identified in every function
across all levels. By embedding

risk management principles into
the company’s daily activities,

we empower every individual to
recognize, report, and mitigate risks
effectively.

Employees are encouraged

to actively contribute to the
identification of potential risks, which
enhances our ability to respond to
issues before they escalate. Our
leadership team plays an active role
in promoting a culture where risk
management is seen as an essential
part of the company’s success and
is aligned with the core values of
accountability, transparency, and
continuous improvement.
Collaboration with Industry Experts:
We actively seek external expertise
from risk management consultants
and industry leaders to benchmark
our practices against the latest best
practices and industry standards.
This collaboration helps us stay
ahead of evolving risks and adjust
our strategies accordingly.

Stress Testing

Stress testing is another critical
tool we use to assess the potential
vulnerability of our business in

the face of extreme or unexpected
events. Unlike scenario planning,
which explores a range of plausible

future outcomes, stress testing
involves simulating worst-case or
highly unlikely situations to evaluate
how our systems, operations, and
financial health would hold up under
intense pressure. This rigorous
exercise helps identify potential
weak points in our operations and
highlights areas where additional
safeguards or contingency plans
may be required.

At AGTL, stress testing is conducted

regularly across several key business

areas:

»  Financial Stress Testing:
We evaluate the impact of
extreme financial shocks, such
as significant fluctuations in
commaodity prices, changes
in interest rates, or major
fluctuations in currency
exchange rates. This testing
helps us understand the
resilience of our financial
position and allows us to
adjust our financial strategies
accordingly.

Supply Chain Stress Testing:
Given the critical role our
suppliers play in maintaining
production schedules, we
stress test our supply chain

to simulate scenarios such

as transportation delays,
supplier bankruptcies, or trade
restrictions. This helps us
identify vulnerabilities in our
supply chain and ensures we
have effective contingency plans
in place, such as alternative
suppliers, inventory buffers, or
production flexibility.
Operational Stress Testing:

We test the robustness of our
operational processes, including
production capacity, quality
control systems, and workforce
management, under extreme
stress conditions. This allows us
to ensure that our operations
can continue effectively during
disruptions, such as natural
disasters or unexpected spikes
in demand.
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At AGTL, Enterprise Risk
Management is a critical aspect of
our corporate strategy, ensuring
that we can meet the challenges

of today’s fast-paced and volatile
business environment. By
integrating ERM into all aspects of
our business operations, we enhance
our ability to anticipate, manage,
and mitigate risks effectively

while seizing opportunities for
growth. Our commitment to risk
management is driven by a proactive
approach that safeguards our
employees, customers, investors,
and communities, allowing us to
create long-term value and maintain
a competitive edge in the tractor
manufacturing industry.

Through continuous monitoring,
adaptive strategies, and a culture

of risk awareness, AGTL remains
well-positioned to navigate the
complexities of our industry and
continue delivering high-quality
products that meet the needs of our
customers.
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PIONEERING PROGRESS:
KEY MILESTONES THAT DEFINED 2024

In 2024, AGTL solidified its position NH850 Launch: Advancing

as an industry leader through four Agricultural Pruductivity and
key milestones that shaped the Mechanization

company's future: the launch of the . .
NHS50 tractor, the successful SAP AGTL as part of its transformation
S/4 HANA Go Live, participation in journey, introduced thg NH-850
the Green Tractor Scheme, and the tractor, a next-generation model
establishment of AGTL's first-ever designed to address the evo!vmg
Call Center. Each of these initiatives needs Of moderh farmers, W|th.an
played a vital role in advancing emphasis on efficiency, durability,
AGTL's technological capabilities, and sustainability. As agricultural

market reach, and commitment .mechar.nzatmn becgmes
to agricultural development in increasingly essential for food
Pakistan security and economic stability,

the NH850 serves as a strategic
response to Pakistan's growing
demand for cost-effective and
high-performance tractors.

Key Features and Impact
» Power and Efficiency: With a
robust 85-horsepower engine,

the NH-850 is designed for heavy-
duty tasks, providing more power
while ensuring fuel efficiency.

Precision Farming Technology:
Equipped with world-class
technology, the NH-850 allows
farmers to manage their land with
greater accuracy and less waste.

Durability and Longevity: Built with
top-tier materials, the NH-850

is designed to withstand even

the toughest farming conditions,
ensuring long-lasting performance.

User-Friendly Design: From its
comfortable cabin to its intuitive
controls, the NH-850 puts the
farmer first, offering ease of use
without compromising on power.

5 WEW HOLLAKD

Ee L=Th T

The NH-850 Launch Event:

AGTL made headlines with the
highly anticipated launch of the
NH-850, a tractor set to redefine
the future of farming in Pakistan.
The event brought together
industry leaders, farmers, and

key stakeholders to witness the
unveiling of AGTL's most advanced
tractor yet. The NH-850, designed
to meet the evolving needs of
Pakistan's farmers, boasts superior
hydraulics, improved fuel efficiency,
and the versatility to handle
challenging terrains. In a recorded
video message, CNHi representative,
Vincent De Lassagne lauded
AGTL's commitment to innovation,
emphasizing the global impact of
the NH-850. Sakib Eltaff, AGTL's
CEO, highlighted the strategic

]

importance of this launch in his
speech, focusing on how the NH-
850 fits into the broader vision
of empowering farmers, driving
agricultural growth, and ensuring

sustainability. His remarks resonated

with attendees, reinforcing AGTL's
leadership in the sector. The event
concluded with live demonstrations
of the NH-850's capabilities, leaving
guests optimistic about the tractor's
potential to enhance productivity
across Pakistan. AGTL continues

to pave the way for a sustainable,
innovative future in agriculture, and
the NH-850 stands at the forefront
of this journey. This launch solidified
AGTL's commitment to progress
and innovation, delivering tools that
shape the future of farming,
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Pioneering Progress: Key Milestones That Defined 2024

SAP S/4 HANA Go Live: Driving [ h o IV i
Digital Transformation SAT (K
As part of its commitment to

business optimization and
operational excellence, AGTL
successfully implemented SAP S/4
HANA, marking a pivotal shift in its
digital transformation journey. The
adoption of this next-generation
ERP system enables AGTL to
streamline processes, enhance data-
driven decision-making, and improve
efficiency across all business
functions.

Key Benefits of SAP $/4 HANA

. financial reporting, and This transition to an intelligent,
Implementation portng, anc BE
, , resource planning, leading to cloud-enabled ERP system is
» Real-Time Insights and Data . . . o
cost savings and enhanced a milestone in AGTL's digital
Accuracy: Enables faster, more . . . _
_ o _ productivity. evolution, reinforcing transparency,
informed decision-making, . . ) .
) , ity »  Scalability and Future compliance, and strategic agility
Improving agility In response Readiness: Positions AGTL across all departments.

to market dynamics.
»  Operational Efficiency:
Optimizes supply chain,

to integrate emerging
technologies, ensuring long-
term competitiveness.

~3
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Green Tractor Scheme: Empowering Farmers Through

Affordable Mechanization

AGTL played a key role in the Green Tractor Scheme 2024, a
government-backed initiative designed to support farmers
with subsidized access to tractors. As part of this effort, AGTL
provided high-performance, fuel-efficient tractors to farmers
at reduced costs, furthering its mission to enable sustainable
and efficient farming practices.

Strategic Importance of the Scheme
» Increased Accessibility to Mechanization: By offering
subsidized tractors, the scheme helped small and mid-

sized farmers transition to modern agricultural methods. NG CENEmTer = 1/ {
= Boosting Productivity and Food Security: Mechanization C}Vﬁ r's'w j,r' f&r "ﬁ‘-"ﬁs
leads to higher yields, lower post-harvest losses, and

| ds ower postharvest losses, £N TRACTOR
increased farm efficiency, directly contributing to Rf PEGGEHM

Pakistan's food security goals.

» Strengthened Partnerships: The initiative reinforced
AGTL's collaboration with government bodies and financial
institutions, positioning the company as a trusted partner
in Pakistan's agricultural development.

AGTL's participation in this scheme not only stimulated tractor
sales but also empowered thousands of farmers, enabling
them to increase their earnings and sustain long-term
agricultural growth.

ATNATHY ¥ AL LT

ﬁd"‘"‘* %ﬁfﬂ%’rﬁjﬂ&ﬂ
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Pioneering Progress: Key Milestones That Defined 2024

AGTL Call Center: Revolutionizing
Customer Experience

In a historic first for Pakistan’s
tractor industry, AGTL launched
its own Call Center, marking a
significant milestone in customer
satisfaction and operational
efficiency. Spearheaded by

the Marketing Department,
this initiative reflects AGTL's
unwavering commitment to
customer-centricity and service
excellence.

Operating Monday to Saturday
from 800 AM to 800 PM, the Call
Center provides a streamlined and
structured approach to managing
customer interactions. Through
this initiative, AGTL will:

» Track all customer interactions
to ensure better service and
resolution management.

»  Monitor feedback and
complaints for timely
responses and quality control.

Assign sales leads to
respective area managers via
a ticketing system for effective
follow-ups.

Address social media
comments and messages in
a professional and structured
manner.

With a dedicated UAN number
(042) 111 850 000, the Call Center
enhances AGTL's ability to serve
customers efficiently, improving
relationships, response times, and
service quality.

This milestone not only sets a
new benchmark in the industry
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but also positions AGTL as a
leader in customer engagement
and satisfaction. By embracing
innovation and leveraging
technology, AGTL continues to
drive progress, ensuring that its
farmers and customers receive the
best possible support.
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COMPANY TRANSFORMATION

The ongoing increase in the world's
population leads to a growing
demand for agricultural products.
This industry not only ensures
food security for many nations
but also supplies raw materials
for various manufacturing sectors
such as textiles. Moreover, it
faces increasing pressure from
regulators to adopt sustainable
practices. Consequently, profit
opportunities are shifting towards
precision farming, data-driven
solutions, connectivity, and
autonomy. There is also a need
for greater vertical integration,
with some original equipment
manufacturers (OEMs) creating
platforms to capture future profit
opportunities.

These global trends are also
relevant to the tractor industry

in Pakistan. With a steady 2%
annual population growth,
expected to reach 265 million

by 2030, there will be changes

in per capita consumption. The
agricultural sector will expand to
meet the rising demand. While
the industry currently focuses on
high-horsepower (HP) tractors for
high yields, there is also growth
potential for low HP tractors due
to the limited financial resources
of farmers with smaller land
holdings.

For the company:

o Over the years, the company
has maintained a strong
position in the industry,
particularly in the 55 to 75
HP segment. The evolving
industry dynamics, influenced
by major trends and specific

socioeconomic conditions,
present an opportunity for
the company to increase

its market share across all
HP categories. This involves
delivering superior products
and services to customers
in agriculture, commercial
sectors, government, and
other areas, while also
maximizing shareholder value.

To achieve this, the company is
undergoing a comprehensive
transformation focused on
innovation, improving its
product lineup, and enhancing
business operations.

Transformation Objectives and Benefits:

1.

Objectives:

Innovating Product Portfolio:

» Collaborating with CNHi to enhance products across all segments
and HP types through cutting-edge research and technical
partnerships.

»  Prioritizing innovations in hydraulic lift, transmission capabilities,
engine performance, and aesthetics for enhanced customer
experience.

Improving Sales Channels and Customer Experience:

» Partnering with dealers to enhance the overall customer
experience, including one-stop facilities for purchasing tractors,
spare parts, lubricants, and top-notch repair services.

Strengthening Core Supply Chain:

» Focusing on cost-effective delivery by ensuring quality throughout
the supply chain, empowering vendors to provide quality products
at optimal costs.

Modernizing Manufacturing Operations:

= Implementing a plant modernization program in DG Khan to meet
growing production needs, focusing on total quality management,
pull flow production, and process standardization.

Reimagining Organizational Structure:

» Undertaking organizational design projects to foster agility,
clarify roles, empower employees, and create a motivating work
environment.

Change Management:

» Executing a change readiness plan to ensure the transformation’s
success through engagement strategies, impactful
communications, innovation, and alignment of people, processes,
and systems.

Benefits:

a. Engaged Customers

b. Increased Market Share and Revenue Growth
¢. Enhanced Brand Image

d. Improved Employee Experience

Annual Report 2024
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
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Project Falcon

Al Ghazi Tractors Limited, one of
Pakistan's largest agricultural
equipment manufacturers, is
currently in the second phase of
a major digital transformation
initiative with an investment of
PKR 3 billion.

With the deployment of the
world's premier manufacturing
ERP solution, SAP S/4HANA, an
integrated end to end visibility of
the company’s operations and
data-driven strategic decision
making will be enabled. In addition,
the new ERP shall be leveraged to
achieve efficiencies in all aspects of
the business.

The digital transformation at

Al Ghazi Tractors Limited has
currently entered the second year
of a planned 4-year project aiming
to utilize the latest technology
effectively to maximize ROl and
create value. The transformation
project is being led by a dedicated
Steering Committee which includes
the Al-Futtaim Group Technology
and Digital Platforms, local IT,
Transformation and Strategy
teams.

SAP Implementation

In today's times, technology and digitalization is essential for driving
business sustainability and unlocking growth. Through data-driven
decision making and performance management systems, Al Ghazi
Tractors Limited continues to strive to deliver unprecedented levels
of customer satisfaction as well as shareholder confidence. SAP
S/4 HANA is enabling flexibility, responsiveness and resilience

in adapting to evolving consumer demands and variable market
conditions. Advanced integrated technologies from SAP including Al
Data Analytics, loT and Machine Learning will enable Al Ghazi Tractors
Limited to streamline its adaptiveness and agility, making the way
business is done easier, faster and better.

AGTL continues its journey to become a high-tech, customer-centric
organization that strives to exceed the expectations of its customers
and shareholders.

IT Infrastructure Revamp

With the adoption of modern ways of doing business, including
cloud-based and bandwidth intensive data storage and processing
technologies, the need for a robust IT Infrastructure framework is
paramount. Complete overhaul of our network and IT Infrastructure
and implementation of state-of-the-art equipment will enable
adherence to the latest global compute, storage, networking,
Cybersecurity and digital experience (DX) standards. AGTL is
committed to ensuring that the technology on the ground can match
our digital value creation vision.

Scope of the Project

The scope of the project includes Finance and Controlling, Sales and
Distribution, Materials Management, Customer Service, Logistics,
Quality Management, Vehicle Management, Plant Maintenance,
Dealer Management, Production Planning, Warehouse Management
and Human Capital Management, covering all the major operational
and strategic functions at Al Ghazi Tractors Limited.

Annual Report 2024
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (HRM)

AGTL is committed to attracting and retaining
exceptional talent to drive business growth. To achieve
this, we are enhancing our employer brand through

a strong presence on social media and engaging
employee initiatives.

We are currently refining our recruitment process to
ensure it is best-in-class and have recently recruited
professionals for key positions, focusing on individuals
who are top performers in their respective fields. Our
dedication to diversity and inclusivity ensures that we
attract, retain, and develop high-potential employees
without bias. Additionally, we offer a variety of job
learning and mentoring opportunities to enhance the
strengths and professional skills of our new appointees.

Performance Appraisals

In our commitment to continuous improvement, we
constantly refine our performance appraisal process

to align with industry best practices. This includes
leveraging cutting-edge tools and techniques to ensure
that all targets are in line with the corporate Balanced
Scorecard (BSC). Regular briefings for employees

and line managers underscore the importance of
performance management, highlighting its direct impact
on employee engagement and motivation. As part of
our digital transformation journey, we are transitioning
from a paper-based to a system-based module for
performance appraisals, enhancing user experience
and streamlining HR processes. This shift reflects our
dedication to embracing technology to drive efficiency
and effectiveness across our HR practices.

Succession Planning

As part of our Succession Planning strategy, AGTL has
commenced internal recruitment to fill critical positions
across all departments, ensuring organizational
continuity and a sustainable talent pipeline for critical
roles. We are also developing Individual Development
Plans (IDPs) for successors, tailored to their short,
mid-term, or long-term readiness levels. This effort is
part of our strong focus on developing key talent with
leadership skills to take on more complex and growth-
oriented roles in the future. We maintain a culture of
succession planning by making persistent efforts to
develop a professional team and short- and long-term
succession plans for all critical positions. During the
period under review, a rigorous succession planning
exercise was conducted to identify potential performers
for leadership roles, contributing to organizational
growth. Regular training programs, skill enhancement
workshops, and management courses were arranged to
prepare successors for higher responsibilities, ensuring

the sustainability of business operations in the long run.

Harassment

AGTL has a comprehensive harassment policy in place,
aligning with the Protection Against Harassment

of Women at Workplace Act 2010, ensuring a safe

and respectful work environment for all employees.
We are committed to upholding ethical standards

and promoting diversity and inclusion within our
organization. We continuously strive to create a
culture where all employees feel valued, respected, and
supported.

MARKETING & SALES INITIATIVES
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Driving Brand Growth & Customer Engagement in 2024

2024 was a landmark year for AGTL with the successful launch of the NH
850 Tractor Model, reinforcing our commitment to innovation and market
leadership. A robust multi-channel marketing strategy ensured maximum
visibility and engagement.

Strategic Campaigns & Market Expansion

The NH 850 launch followed a structured marketing approach, including
pre-launch dealership events, a high-profile launch campaign, and
strategic media placements. Our teaser, pre-launch, and launch phases
spanned digital, print, and out-of-home (OOH) media, maximizing
awareness. AGTL also revamped its corporate website, integrating NH
850's dynamic pages, and launched the first-ever dedicated Customer
Support Center to enhance lead management.

To expand market reach, AGTL participated in key industry events,

including:

»  Pakistan Auto Show 2024

» PAPAAM Agro Tech Expo 2024

»  Kissan Melas in Rahim Yar Khan, KEUIT University, Kasur (with NBP),
and the Cattle Farm Exhibition, fostering farmer engagement and
promoting mechanization.

Targeted campaigns like the Green Tractors Scheme, Wheat Crop
Promotions, Free Canopy Offers, and Bank Customer Engagement
Programs reinforced AGTL's commitment to agriculture. The Orange
Tractor Scheme, featuring a lucky draw on December 27, strengthened
brand loyalty and farmer engagement.

Innovative Digital & Influencer Marketing

AGTL embraced a data-driven digital marketing strategy, leveraging
YouTube, TikTok, and Facebook to enhance brand presence. Key influencer
collaborations featured Mubashir Sadique (Village Food Secrets), Zain ul
Abideen and six prominent agri influencers of Punjab.

These partnerships boosted engagement through testimonial videos,
social media campaigns, and promotional content. The Orange Tractors &
Promotional Campaign (Q4) further expanded AGTL's digital footprint.

Strengthening Dealer & Customer Relationships

Customer engagement transformed significantly, with over 50,000+
interactions recorded via the Customer Support Center, where WhatsApp
became the dominant lead generation channel. To improve sales
conversion, AGTL introduced a structured ticketing and follow-up system
through the call center.

Key relationship-building initiatives
included

»  Exclusive Bankers' Iftar Dinners

» Dealership Engagement
Programs (Fatima Tractors, Zia
Autos)

» (SR Initiatives like Pink Tractors
& Khud Mukhtar Ba Wagar for
women's empowerment

» Eid gifting campaigns for
dealerships and loyal customers

A Year of Growth & Innovation

By the end of 2024, AGTL had
successfully implemented a strong
brand awareness and sales-driven
approach, resulting in:

= Greater digital traction &
visibility

»  Stronger dealer and farmer
relationships

= Higher lead generation &
improved conversions

» Enhanced customer experience
via the Customer Support Center

The NH 850's strong market
presence, alongside AGTL's
expanding marketing strategies,
solidified its position as Pakistan's
leading tractor brand.
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HR INITIATIVES

At AGTL, we recognize Learning & Development Initiatives

that our greatest asset With an enhanced focus on skill development and competency development, AGTL made significant gains in the
is our people. In 2024, we learning and development domain in 2024. Some key highlights from L&D initiatives held during the year are as
made significant progress follows:

in fostering a culture of

learning, engagement, and SAP Train the implementation of a modern and Train the Trainer program was
continuous improvement, robust SAP S/4HANA ERP system. conducted, equipping internal SAP
From enhancin 1 This upgrade played a pivotal role trainers with the knowledge and

8 Tral ner ngram in advancing the organization's skills needed to drive adoption and

skills and leadership

. i technological landscape. To ensure facilitate smooth implementation
compet_enaes_ to creating 2024 was a year of transformation, a seamless transition from AGTL's across the organization.
a more inclusive and marked by the successful legacy ERP system, a comprehensive

dynamic workplace, our
initiatives reflected a deep
commitment to employee
growth and organizational
excellence.

'c.)

In a highly volatile market customized training program was and identify strategic solutions but

landscape with intense conducted for AGTL's Commercial also instilled a renewed sense of

competition, keeping the Sales team. motivation, empowering them to

Team motivated has always been drive results throughout the year.
a top priority for AGTL. To uphold This initiative not only helped the

this commitment, a targeted and team analyze market challenges




1 24 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited Annual Report 2024 1 25

HR Initiatives = Learning & Development Initiatives Employee Engagement |nltlatIVBS

In 2024, the AGTL HR team intensified its efforts on employee engagement initiatives, reflecting a stronger commitment
to enhancing the overall employee experience. These initiatives not only fostered a more engaging workplace culture but
also provided employees with a much-needed respite from their demanding work routines. A few highlights of various
engagement activities held across the year are as follows:

Organizational Change Management | e | ' Leadership Strategy Meeting

As part of AGTL's ongoing transformation journey and the This initiative played a pivotal role in accelerating AGTL's 1 : . Ny 8 Pt = . Theyear 2024 began with a Leadership Strategy Meeting,
rapid changes being implemented across the organization, transformation by developing internal change agents, ensuring a = T ™ | , g ~ centered on key insights from the previous year and the
AGTL partnered with Al-Futtaim Group's Change structured and sustainable approach to change management within ; - Ea. S N o i formulation of a strategic roadmap for 2024. This session
Management Consultant to facilitate a comprehensive the organization. , 2% O i - v L™ Y 1 | set the stage for goal alignment, informed decision-making,
Organizational Change Management Program. g K ; 13 : i Y \ ¥ ' and a clear vision for the year ahead.

Leadership competen(“es interactive sessions, was attended by AGTL's leadership team and Sports Fest

senior managers.

WorkShops The program aimed to enhance leadership awareness, knowledge, In 2024, AGTL organized an exhilarating Sports Fest at the D.G.
and application of Al-Futtaim Group’s Leadership Competencies. A Khan Factory, bringing together employees in a celebration of

The AGTL team, in collaboration with the Al-Futtaim Group, key highlight of the training was an interactive board game, designed teamwork, resilience, and well-being. This highly anticipated

successfully delivered the “Leadership Competencies to bridge theoretical concepts with real-world workplace challenges, event featured a diverse range of sports and recreational

101" Training Program. This initiative, comprising three ensuring an engaging and impactful learning experience. activities, fostering a healthy work-life balance while
strengthening camaraderie among employees.

From cricket tournaments to badminton and table tennis competitions the
fest provided a platform for employees to showcase their athletic talents and
competitive spirit. The event concluded with an awards ceremony, recognizing
outstanding performances and reinforcing AGTL's commitment to employee
engagement and wellness.

The Sports Fest not only promoted fitness and team building but also reflected
AGTL's dedication to creating a dynamic and inclusive workplace culture.

= development for mechanics at its dealerships to strengthen the == < S L =9 M .
Skl" Develupment fur foundation of aftersales services. % w _' gt L I ; Annual Dlnner

MEChanlcs Throughout the year,.multiple t!'aining .ses.sions were.conducted to . AGTL's Annual Family Dinner at the D.G. Khan Factory was a memorable
enhance the mechanics’ expertise, equipping them with the necessary E | evening filled with recognition, entertainment, and celebration. This special
skills to deliver superior aftersales support and improve the overall - | 8 ; - event brought together employees and their families, reinforcing the

In 2024, AGTL placed a strong emphasis on skill customer experience. - R «F iRt 1l B & - company's commitment to fostering a sense of belonging and appreciation.

The night featured an Exceptional Efforts Awards ceremony, honoring
employees for their dedication and outstanding contributions. Engaging
games and activities kept both employees, and their families entertained,
adding an interactive and festive touch to the evening. A live musical concert
created an electrifying atmosphere, followed by a lavish dinner, allowing
everyone to unwind and enjoy quality time together.

The Annual Family Dinner not only celebrated employee achievements and
camaraderie but also highlighted AGTL's focus on work-life balance and a
supportive workplace culture, making it a cherished tradition for all.
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HR Initiatives » Employee Engagement Initiatives

Worker’s Welfare Program

As part of AGTL's commitment to employee well-being and appreciation,
the Workers' Welfare Program was held at the D.G. Khan Factory,
celebrating the hard work and dedication of our workforce.

The event featured special announcements and recognition awards,
acknowledging the exceptional contributions of workers who have played
a pivotal role in AGTL's success. A vibrant cultural display showcased

the rich traditions and heritage of the region, adding a sense of pride

and festivity to the occasion. The evening concluded with a lavish dinner,
where employees had the opportunity to relax, connect, and celebrate
their achievements together.

The Workers' Welfare Program underscored AGTL's dedication to
fostering a supportive, inclusive, and appreciative work environment,
ensuring that every team member feels valued and motivated.

with great enthusiasm, patriotism, and unity. The celebrations brought
together employees to honor the spirit of freedom and national pride,
reinforcing AGTL's commitment to the country's progress and prosperity.

The festivities featured flag-hoisting ceremonies, national anthem recitations =
and inspiring speeches, reflecting on the nation's journey and AGTL's role

in its growth. Employees actively participated in patriotic activities, and
themed decorations, creating a vibrant and festive atmosphere. The
celebrations concluded with a special gathering fostering camaraderie and
national pride among the AGTL family.

These Independence Day celebrations served as a reminder of our shared
heritage and the values that drive AGTL forward, strengthening our
resolve to contribute to a brighter future for Pakistan.

Bring Your Kids to Work Day

AGTL welcomed the next generation to its workplaces with Bring Your

Kids to Work Day, a delightful event held across all locations. This special
initiative aimed to foster family engagement while giving children a glimpse
into their parents’ professional lives.

The day was filled with exciting activities, including art competitions,
cupcake decoration sessions, and interactive engagement games, creating
a fun and creative environment for the little guests. Each child received a
goody bag, adding to the excitement and making the experience even more
memorable.

This event not only strengthened the work-life balance culture at AGTL
but also allowed employees to share their workplace experience with their
families. By blending fun, creativity, and togetherness, AGTL reinforced its
commitment to a family-friendly and inclusive work environment.

Nashist-e-Khaas

{"'Vﬂ‘"' —
AGTL successfully launched Nashist-e-Khaas, a unique initiative
that provided employees with the opportunity to engage directly
with the CEO. This platform allowed team members to share
their thoughts, ask questions, and gain valuable insights into the
company’s vision and strategic direction.

ol |

Through interactive discussions, employees were able to voice
their ideas, concerns, and feedback, fostering a culture of
transparency, collaboration, and inclusivity. The initiative reinforced
AGTL's commitment to open communication and employee
empowerment, ensuring that every team member felt heard and
valued.

Nashist-e-Khaas played a key role in strengthening the connection
between leadership and employees, reinforcing a shared vision for
growth, innovation, and excellence at AGTL.

President’s Gold Pin Award

I+

For the first time in AGTL's history, two exceptional individuals
were honored with the prestigious President’s Gold Pin Award in
recognition of their outstanding contributions and dedication to
excellence. The 2024 recipients of this esteemed award were:

1. Irfan Khan, Senior Manager — Revenue Management, for his
exceptional contributions, dedication, and excellence in the finance
function.

2. Muhammad Abbas Chaudhry, Manager — Transmission, for his
significant contributions to enhancing operational efficiency and
innovation in transmission systems.

This milestone reflects AGTL's commitment to recognizing and
celebrating excellence, reinforcing a culture of high performance,
innovation, and leadership within the organization.

Annual Report 2024 1 27

Quarterly Birthday Gelehrations_

AGTL celebrated employee birthdays quarterly across

all locations, creating a joyful and inclusive environment
where team members felt appreciated and valued. These
celebrations brought colleagues together, fostering a sense
of camaraderie and workplace happiness.

Each event featured cake-cutting ceremonies, fun activities,
and team interactions, making the occasion special for all
birthday celebrants. Employees enjoyed a lively and festive
atmosphere, strengthening bonds beyond the workplace.

The Quarterly Birthday Celebrations reflected AGTL's
commitment to employee engagement and well-being,
ensuring that every milestone was recognized and celebrated
as part of the AGTL family.

Value Awards

To recognize and celebrate exceptional performance, AGTL
hosts the Value Awards, honoring employees who exemplify
the core values of the Al-Futtaim Group. These awards
reflect our commitment to fostering a culture of integrity,
collaboration, innovation, and customer-centricity, while
inspiring our teams to continue driving impact across the
organization.
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HR Initiatives

Policy Level Initiatives

Revision in
Fuel & Travel Policy

In 2024, AGTL introduced a Fuel Entitlement as a new
employee benefit, providing structured fuel allowances
to eligible employees. This addition reflects AGTL's
commitment to enhancing employee well-being and
overall compensation packages.

Additionally, the Travel Policy was revised with
increased limits, ensuring greater financial support
and convenience for employees undertaking official
travel.

These policy enhancements underscore AGTL's
dedication to fostering a progressive, employee-
centric workplace, prioritizing support, efficiency, and
transparency.

Improved Industry Academia Linkages

Educational Tour for
Daanish School for Girls at AGTL Factory

— i

Improved Life & Health
Insurance Policy

As part of AGTL's commitment to employee welfare,
key enhancements were made to the Life & Health
Insurance Policy in 2024, ensuring greater financial
security and improved healthcare benefits. The
revisions included increased OPD limits, enhanced
maternity coverage, and upgraded room rates,
providing employees and their families with better
access to quality healthcare services.

These enhancements reflect AGTL's ongoing
dedication to fostering a supportive and employee-
centric workplace, reinforcing its focus on well-being,
security, and holistic care for its workforce.
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As part of AGTL's commitment to education
and community engagement, a special tour was
organized for the students at Daanish School

for Girls at the Dera Ghazi Khan factory. The visit
provided students with a comprehensive orientation
about AGTL, followed by an insightful tour of the
factory and manufacturing process.

In addition to learning about tractor production and
the agricultural industry in Pakistan, the students
participated in a tree plantation activity, reinforcing
the importance of environmental sustainability.
The initiative aimed to inspire young minds, offering
them firsthand exposure to industrial operations
and career possibilities in the manufacturing sector.

Mentorship Event at Lahore
School of Economics

As part of AGTL's commitment to youth
development and industry-academia collaboration,
team members participated in the Annual
Mentorship Event at Lahore School of Economics.
The event provided an opportunity to engage with
students, share industry insights, and offer career
guidance, helping bridge the gap between academic
learning and professional expectations.

AGTL representatives mentored students on

career pathways, industry trends, and essential
skills for the corporate world, fostering meaningful
discussions and knowledge-sharing. This initiative
reflects AGTL's dedication to nurturing future talent
and empowering young professionals with the
guidance needed for successful careers.
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AFG’S FOUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY PILLARS

Pillar A
Optimising
Our Climate

Footprint

A 4

At Al-Futtaim, we are
committed to reducing
our carbon footprint by
focusing on cutting
emissions, decreasing
energy consumption,
and transitioning to
renewable energy
sources. This pillar
embodies our goal of
addressing climate
change through
responsible actions
that contribute to a
greener, more
sustainable world.

Pillar B

Leading on
Circular Supply
Chains

A 4

We strive to create a
circular economy by
emphasizing the reuse
and recycling of
resources throughout
our supply chain. By
minimizing waste and
designing products for
longevity, Al-Futtaim
ensures that every step
of our production and
distribution process
aligns with our vision

of sustainability.

Being an
Employer of
Choice

A 4

Our people are the
heart of our business.
We invest in creating a
workplace culture that

promotes growth,
inclusivity, well-being,
and diversity. By
nurturing talent and
providing opportunities
for personal and
professional
development,
Al-Futtaim aims to be
an employer that
empowers individuals
and supports their
growth in an
ever-changing world.

Shaping an
Ethical Digital
Future

A 4

As technology plays a
pivotal role in shaping
the future, we are
committed to its
responsible use.
Al-Futtaim focuses on
advancing digital
innovations in a way
that benefits both
society and the
environment while
safeguarding human
values. This pillar
reflects our dedication
to integrating
technology into our
business in a
sustainable and ethical
manner.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2024

Overview

Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (AGTL) remains committed to sustainable business practices that integrate
environmental, social, and governance (ESG) considerations. Operating within Pakistan's regulatory framework,
AGTL aligns with national agricultural policies and global sustainability trends to support mechanized farming and
enhance food security.

In 2024, AGTL strengthened its compliance with legal frameworks, ensuring alignment with environmental

and corporate governance standards. The company successfully registered the NH-850 tractor model with the
Engineering Development Board (EDB), reinforcing its position as an industry leader in sustainable agricultural
solutions. The NH-850 model is designed to significantly reduce fuel consumption, supporting our commitment to
energy efficiency and cost savings for farmers.

External Factors Impacting Business

AGTL operates in a dynamic environment shaped by economic, technological, and climate-related risks. The
intensification of climate change, regulatory shifts, and evolving market dynamics necessitate proactive
sustainability strategies. Our approach to mitigating these risks focuses on compliance, operational efficiency, and
stakeholder engagement.

CEQ’S MESSAGE ON

Annual Report 2024

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY & BUSINESS GROWTH

At AGTL, sustainability isn't just about
compliance or responsibility —it's about building
a future where progress and the planet go

hand in hand. As Pakistan's leading name in
agricultural mechanization, we understand that
our role extends beyond making tractors; we are
driving change, supporting farmers, and ensuring
a more sustainable tomorrow.

In 2024, we took meaningful steps toward that
vision. Our NH-850 tractor, designed for fuel
efficiency, is helping farmers cut costs and
reduce emissions —a win for both agriculture and
the environment. Our commitment to climate
resilience is evident in initiatives like our tree
plantation drives and digital campaigns on smog
protection, aimed at making a real impact where
it matters. We're also empowering women in
agriculture through our Khud Mukhtar Ba Wagar
initiative, creating opportunities that break
barriers and open new doors.

Technology and innovation play a key role in
sustainability, and the implementation of SAP
S/4HANA is a testament to our commitment

to process automation, operational efficiency,
and data-driven decision-making. This digital
transformation not only enhances business
agility but also optimizes resource management,
reducing waste and driving sustainable growth.

This report isn't just about what we've achieved
—it's about what's next. It brings together
real-world stories, ESG compliance efforts, and a
roadmap for the future, reflecting our dedication
to sustainable business growth. As we move
forward, we invite employees, customers,
regulators, and investors to be part of this
journey. Together, we can build a more resilient,
inclusive, and sustainable Pakistan.

Sakib Eltaff

Chief Executive Officer
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SUSTAINABILITY WINS IN 2024

Reduced
CO0, emissions

through NH-850s
fuel-efficient design,

as part of our

cutting fuel commitment to combat
cgns'u.mptlon climate change.
significantly.

Trained
Impacted ™ more than
43 rural women - 5000+ farmers
through the ; & mechanics in
Khud Mukhtar 30+ events

Ba Wagar initiative,
raising awareness of
women in agriculture

and creating
employment and
training opportunities.

promoting sustainable
mechanization to enhance
efficiency, reduce fuel
consumption, and support
environmentally responsible
farming practices.

Supplied
3,270 tractors
under the Green Tractor
Scheme(GTS)in
partnership with the
Government of Punjab.

100% PPE
implementation
across all AGTL
manufacturing plants,

ensuring workplace
safety.

ESG COMPLIANCE & CLIMATE RISKS

AGTL recognizes the critical role of environmental, social, and governance
(ESG) practices in shaping a sustainable future. Our commitment to
reducing climate risks, enhancing workplace safety, and fostering social
responsibility is embedded in our operations and corporate strategy.

We actively engage in climate-conscious initiatives, workplace safety
enhancements, and community health programs to create long-term
value for our stakeholders while aligning with global sustainability
standards and national regulations.

Environmental Initiatives

» Fuel Efficiency & Emissions Reduction

AGTL remains dedicated to reducing carbon emissions and improving fuel
efficiency in agricultural mechanization. Farmers using the NH-850 model
have reported up to a 30% fuel economy, leading to a potentially significant
annual decrease in COz2 emissions. This improvement not only lowers
operational costs for farmers but also contributes to Pakistan's broader
climate action goals.

= Tree Plantation & Climate Action

In 2024, AGTL planted over 1,000 trees as part of its sustainability
commitment, reinforcing our efforts to combat deforestation and urban
heat stress. Additionally, we introduced plantable “Seed Cards,” embedded
with native plant seeds, which encourage sustainable disposal and
promote reforestation efforts. These initiatives align with our long-term
goal of enhancing green spaces, improving air quality, and mitigating
climate change impacts.
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= Smog Protection &
Awareness

To address rising air pollution

concerns, AGTL launched a digital

awareness campaign focused

on smog protection, equipping

employees with essential

knowledge on air quality hazards,

protective measures, and

preventive healthcare tips.

» Environmental
Compliance & Regulatory
Adherence

AGTL has achieved 100%

compliance with the Environmental

Protection Agency (EPA) by

conducting monthly environmental

monitoring to ensure regulatory
adherence. We have initiated the

NOC process for construction

projects, working closely with

the Environment Department to

maintain sustainable development

practices.
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ESG Compliance & Climate Risks

Social & Workplace Safety Initiatives

Achieved 100% compliance with Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
policies across all factory locations.

Introduced dedicated uniforms and improved PPE distribution,
ensuring accessibility and adherence.

Recorded a 60% reduction in accident rates, reflecting substantial
improvements in workplace safety.

Achieved a 78% decrease in recordable accidents, demonstrating
AGTL's proactive risk mitigation efforts.

Reported zero Lost Time Injury (LTI) cases, reinforcing our
commitment to a safe working environment.

Surpassed 3 million safe man-hours, marking a major safety
milestone.

Investing in workforce safety and skill enhancement of our employees is
key to AGTL's operational success. \We conducted:

45 specialized safety training sessions, benefiting 976 employees
across factory and office locations achieving 360 hours of training on
HISE.

36 E-Bulletins shared with executive staff on HSE (Health, Safety, and
Environment) related matters.

25+ skills training programs were conducted to upskill employees,
covering both technical and soft skills. Including but not limited to

A specialized MITA training program in Italy was organized for the
Quality department, ensuring exposure to international quality
standards.

Six mechanics training
programs were conducted,
enhancing technical expertise
for improved service and
maintenance.

Waste elimination training
(02 sessions) helped
optimize processes and
reduce inefficiencies across
operations.

5S training was conducted

to streamline assembly

lines, improving workplace
organization and productivity.

Three Kaizen training
programs were introduced to
enhance time management
and quality output, ensuring
continuous process
improvement.

Soft skills training programs
included:

Leadership competencies
training to develop future
leaders.

Crisis communication training
to prepare employees for
effective decision-making
during emergencies.

Change management training
to help employees navigate
organizational transitions
smoothly.

SAP implementation training
to ensure efficient enterprise
resource planning.

Power Bl training to enhance
data analysis and reporting
capabilities.

LinkedIn Learning training
programs provided a diverse
range of learning opportunities
for employees.

» Installed new safety signboards across indoor and outdoor plant
areas to enhance worker awareness.

» Conducted monthly inspections of fire extinguishers and
emergency equipment to ensure operational readiness.

» Held 10 management-led safety meetings, including Daily
Morning Gemba Meetings, fostering a culture of proactive safety
management.

» Organized one evacuation drill and multiple firefighting exercises to
strengthen emergency preparedness.

»  Supervised 355 high-risk hot work activities, covering 360 hours of
oversight.

» Recorded a substantial decrease in incidents reports, down from 53
incidents in 2023 to 25 incidents in 2024.

» Conducted in-depth analysis of incidents, with findings shared with
stakeholders to drive continuous improvement in safety protocols.

Strengthened adherence to contractor safety agreements through
enhanced monitoring and implementation of the Work Permit System
to enforce compliance.

Launched multiple HSE awareness initiatives, including, Take Pledge
Campaign, Emergency Preparedness Awareness, Basic Electrical
Hazards Awareness, and Work Stress & Heat Stress Ergonomics
Training.

» Four polio eradication campaigns to support national immunization
efforts and safeguard communities.

» Twoimmunization drives targeting employees and their families,
ensuring protection against preventable diseases.

= Adiabetes screening program that provided preventive healthcare
assessments and lifestyle awareness sessions, promoting
employee health and early intervention.

Through these ESG-driven initiatives, AGTL continues to set industry
benchmarks in sustainability, workplace safety, and community well-
being, reinforcing our vision of responsible corporate leadership in
Pakistan's agribusiness sector.

Annual Report 2024
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GOVERNANCE

At AGTL, we are committed to maintaining a strong governance framework
that ensures transparency, regulatory compliance, and ethical business
practices. Our governance model aims to foster accountability, mitigate
risks, and create a culture of integrity that aligns with both local and
international best practices.

We continuously evaluate and strengthen our governance policies to
uphold the trust of our stakeholders, including employees, customers,
regulators, and business partners.

Key Governance Initiatives

Formation of the Anti-Harassment Committee

AGTL prioritizes a safe and inclusive work environment for all employees.
To reinforce this commitment, we have established an Anti-Harassment
Committee that actively addresses workplace concerns and ensures
compliance with national laws and internal policies. The committee raises
awareness, handles complaints with discretion, and implements corrective
measures to maintain a respectful and professional workplace.

» Implementation of Non-Disclosure Agreements (NDAs)
Across All Levels

Recognizing the importance of confidentiality in safeguarding
business interests, AGTL has standardized the use of NDAs for
employees, vendors, and strategic partners. This ensures that
sensitive information, proprietary knowledge, and trade secrets
remain protected while fostering a culture of trust and responsibility
across all levels of the organization.

» Strategic Collaborations with the Government of Punjab
on Subsidized Tractor Programs

As part of our commitment to sustainable agricultural development,
AGTL actively partners with the Government of Punjab on various
initiatives, including subsidized tractor programs such as the Green
Tractor Scheme. This program made modern agricultural machinery
more accessible to farmers, enhancing productivity and food security
in Pakistan

By implementing these and other governance measures, AGTL continues
to uphold corporate responsibility, ethical leadership, and sustainable
growth, reinforcing our position as a trusted and accountable industry
leader.
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ALIGNMENT WITH THE UNITED NATIONS
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (SDGS)

AGTL is actively contributing to the United Nations Sustainable Development

Goals (SDGs) by integrating sustainable practices into our business operations.
Below are the key SDGs that our initiatives support:

Industry & Sustainable Production & Agriculture & Social
Economic Growth  Environmental Responsibility Responsibility

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION

1 RESPONSIBLE
ANDINFRASTRUCTURE

CONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUGTION

QO

SDG 9 SDG 12 SDG 6

o v

Industry, Innovation, & Responsible Consumption & Clean Water & Sanitation Zero Hunger
Infrastructure Production Impact: AGTL is committed to Impact: By providing fuel-efficient
Impact: Through our SAP Impact: AGTL upholds responsible responsible water management by tractors and training farmers in
ERP implementation and waste management by implementing water conservation sustainable agricultural practices,
manufacturing modernization, we segregating and systematically measures in manufacturing, AGTL is helping improve food
enhance industrial efficiency while dispersing waste through optimizing water usage, and production efficiency and ensuring
reducing environmental impact. structured processes. We reducing waste to support long- food security.
actively recycle cardboard and term sustainability.
packing materials to minimize
E"Egﬁg}ﬂ‘lfé”ﬁ'g‘um environmental impact. Additionally, Eﬁ’ﬂﬂ‘w
our wastewater treatment plant
/s/ operates at full capacity, with plans
‘I' to expand its capacity for greater

efficiency and sustainability.

SDG 8 SDG 5

Decent Work & Economic Gender Equality

CLIMATE
Growth 13 fono Affordable & Clean Energy Impact: The Khud Mukhtar Ba
Impact: AGTL employs 29 Impact: Our NH-850 tractor Wagqar initiative is empowering
differently-abled individuals with significantly reduces fuel women by providing skills training
visual and physical impairments, consumption, lowering carbon and employment opportunities in
ensuring inclusivity. We also SDG 1 3 emissions and helping farmers agriculture and machinery.

maintain 100% PPE compliance to

enhance workplace safety and run Climate Action

25+ skill development programs. Impact: AGTL has planted
over 1,000 trees as part of our
reforestation commitment and is
actively reducing its environmental
footprint through sustainable
production.

cut operational costs.
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IMPACT STORIES

Transforming
Agriculture S

|

with NH-850 == ¢
A Game-Changer “
for Farmers

For Haji Ihsan, owner of Haji Ramzan Zarai Model Farm in Mian
Channu, farming is a legacy built on efficiency, sustainability, and
innovation. Managing 800 acres of potatoes, he knows that fuel costs
and productivity are critical factors in ensuring profitability. Seeking a
more cost-effective and high-performance solution, he upgraded to
the NH-850 — and the results have been transformational.

Haji lhsan shares his experience:
‘ Pakistan’s best tractor! The NH-850 covers 27
acres in just 5.5 hours while using only 59 liters
of fuel. Compared to my previous tractor, I've seen a 30%
reduction in fuel consumption, which has significantly
lowered my costs while improving efficiency. It's not just
a machine —it’s an investment in a better future for my
farm and my family. ’ ’

30% Lower Fuel Consumption
— According to Haji Ihsan, the
NH-850 delivers exceptional
fuel efficiency, reducing costs
and allowing farmers to
reinvest savings into their
farms.

High Productivity for Large-
Scale Farming — With
optimized performance, it
enables farmers to cover more
land in less time, ensuring
efficient land preparation and
harvesting.

Sustainability & Cost Savings —
With reduced fuel dependency,
the NH-850 helps lower
carbon emissions, supporting
eco-friendly farming while
maximizing profits.
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Rabia’s Story
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In Pakistan's male-dominated agriculture sector, opportunities for
women to enter mechanized farming and tractor operations have
traditionally been limited. However, for Rabia, a student at Sindh
Agriculture University at Tando Jam, that perception changed when
she participated in AGTL's Khud Mukhtar Ba Waqar initiative, a
program designed to empower women with the skills and knowledge
to thrive in agricultural mechanization.

Rabia shares her experience:

‘ ‘ Before this program, | had never even thought about
working in agriculture. Now, I've learned how to

operate and maintain tractors, and | plan to start my own

business providing tractor services to local farmers. ’ ’

Breaking Barriers: How Rabia is Leading the Way

» Hands-On Learning & Skill Development — Through the Khud
Mukhtar Ba Wagqar training, Rabia gained practical experience in
tractor operation and maintenance, skills that were previously
unavailable to women in her community.

Entrepreneurial Ambitions — Inspired by the program, she is now
planning to start her own tractor service business, bridging the gap
for small-scale farmers who need reliable mechanization services.

Shifting Mindsets — Rabia’s journey represents a cultural shift,
demonstrating that agricultural mechanics is not just for men
and that women can play a critical role in modernizing Pakistan’s
farming industry.

Expanding Opportunities for Women in Agriculture — By equipping
women with mechanical and operational expertise, the program is
opening new doors for economic independence and encouraging
greater female participation in the agricultural workforce.
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A Future Driven by Inclusion &
Innovation

Rabia is just one of many women whose
future has been transformed by Khud
Mukhtar Ba Wagar. As AGTL continues to
expand this initiative, more women will have
the opportunity to acquire technical skills,
enter the agriculture sector, and contribute
to Pakistan's food security and economic
development.

The success of women like Rabia is proof
that when given the right opportunities,
women can drive progress in even the
most traditional industries — ensuring that
Pakistan's agricultural future is inclusive,
innovative, and full of potential.
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Impact Stories

Fighting
Climate Change
through Tree

Plantation:

The One Tree A Month
Campaign

Climate change and deforestation are among Pakistan's most pressing
environmental challenges, contributing to rising temperatures, erratic
weather patterns, and declining air quality. Recognizing the need for
immediate action, AGTL launched the “One Tree A Month" campaign —
an initiative aimed at reducing carbon emissions and fostering a culture
of sustainability within the organization and beyond.

The Impact of One Tree A Month

» Combating Deforestation & Restoring Green Spaces — With
Pakistan's alarming deforestation rate, AGTL is actively working to
restore green cover by planting trees in our locations at DG Khan,
and Kot Abdul Malik.

Reducing the Urban Heat Effect — Trees act as natural climate
regulators, lowering temperatures and making industrial and
urban spaces more livable. By increasing tree coverage near
manufacturing plants, and office spaces, AGTL is helping mitigate
extreme heat waves.

Carbon Sequestration & Air Quality Improvement — The trees
planted through this initiative will absorb CO, emissions and
improve air quality, making a meaningful contribution to Pakistan's
environmental sustainability efforts.

Engaging Employees & Local Communities — The success of the
campaign goes beyond numbers — AGTL employees, and partners,
have actively participated in tree plantation activities, fostering a
shared responsibility for a cleaner, greener Pakistan.

Commitment to Long-Term Sustainability — One Tree A Month is
not a one-time initiative — AGTL plans to expand its reforestation
efforts, ensuring that tree plantation remains a core element of its
environmental sustainability roadmap.

Foha Raza,
Senior Manager Corporate
Communications, PR &
Government Relations at
AGTL, shares the impact of the
initiative:
By planting over 1000+
trees this year, AGTL
is playing a key role in
combating urban heat and
deforestation. This initiative
aligns with Pakistan’s national
sustainability goals and
reinforces our commitment to
a greener future.

A Greener Future,

One Tree at a Time

Through the One Tree A Month
campaign, AGTL is demonstrating
that small, consistent efforts can
drive large-scale environmental
change. By engaging employees,
farmers, and communities, AGTL is
not just planting trees — it is laying
the foundation for a more sustainable
and climate-resilient Pakistan.
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Impact Stories

Future Sustainability Roadmap

At AGTL, sustainability is more than a commitment —itis a
responsibility we uphold as stewards of Pakistan’s agricultural
future. Looking ahead, our focus is on reducing environmental
impact, embracing renewable energy, fostering inclusivity, and
strengthening resilience against climate change. Through strategic
investments, we strive to create a future where agricultural
mechanization is both efficient and environmentally responsible.

By integrating sustainable manufacturing practices, empowering
rural communities, and developing climate-resilient supply chains,
we seek to ensure that the benefits of mechanization extend beyond
efficiency — supporting livelihoods, preserving natural resources, and
contributing to national food security. Our roadmap for the future is
built on the foundation of innovation, inclusivity, and environmental
stewardship, guiding AGTL toward a more sustainable and equitable
tomorrow.

Our key priorities in this journey include:

» Reducing Our Carbon Footprint — AGTL is committed to lowering
emissions across its operations and supply chains, ensuring that
agricultural innovation aligns with environmental responsibility.

= Transitioning to Clean Energy — With an increasing focus on solar
energy solutions, we plan to reduce reliance on non-renewable
energy sources and enhance sustainability in manufacturing.

» Championing Women'’s Inclusion in Mechanized Farming —
Through the Khud Mukhtar Ba Wagar program, we are working
to expand training opportunities for rural women, enabling
greater participation in mechanized farming across Punjab and
Sindh.

= Strengthening Climate-Resilient Supply Chains — By adapting to
changing environmental conditions, we aim to fortify our supply
chain against disruptions caused by extreme weather events.

» Advancing Circular Economy & Sustainable Manufacturing - We
are focused on enhancing resource efficiency by increasing the
use of recycled materials in tractor production, contributing to a
more circular and responsible economy.

As we move forward, AGTL remains committed to balancing growth
with responsibility — investing in solutions that drive progress while
protecting the planet for future generations.
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL AND
NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANGE

AGTL believes in the achievement of business objectives
through both financial and non-financial factors. From
financial indicators like Sales revenue, net profit, gearing,
liquidity, etc. to non-financial indicators like'brand image,
customer centricity, shareholders satisfactio a
resource development, the Compafiy foctiSes o

aspects to maintain sustainable growth.and to

identify key focus areas-for remedial actionsiand gro

U (5 =

Budgets are set foF both financial and non:
and performanc@isassessed accq'dingly.

o

the targets set byt Eb‘mp'anyv%achie

*;

Financial Indicators

Actual Results

In 2024, the Tractor industry

faced significant challenges due

to a convergence of severe rupee
devaluation, political instability, and
government-imposed restrictions
on imported parts. These factors
led to unprecedented increases in
material costs and disruptions in
parts procurement. Additionally,
Government had imposed additional
super tax on current and prior year
profit which has impacted the
profitability of the company.

Despite the formidable challenges,
AGTL's secured to sale an impressive
14,269 tractors, showcasing

the company's resilience and
determination. Building on the solid
foundation of selling 15,420 tractors
in 2023, AGTL continued to make
strides forward, even amidst adverse
market conditions. Securing a market

share of 36%, AGTL demonstrated its unwavering commitment to excellence
and its ability to adapt and thrive. This achievement not only highlights AGTL's
strength but also its potential for continued growth and success, poised to
seize opportunities and overcome obstacles in the ever-evolving market
landscape.

The summarized operating performance of the Company for the current year
as compared to last year is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees ‘000
Sales 34,574,430 34,543,545
Gross Profit 8,434,686 6,423,068
Profit before taxation and levy 5,708,700 4,687,092
Taxation (2,164,199) (2,075,320)
Profit after tax 3,542,275 2611,772

Production and sales volumes for the years 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Units
2024 2023
Sales 14,269 15420
Production 14,069 14,317
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The Company has identified indicators that effectively reflect the Company’s
performance and profitability. The Company analyzes market positioning,
competitors, and general market conditions while compiling key indicators.

Sales are monitored on daily basis through various management reports and future
lines of action are decided accordingly. Gross profit, expenses, profit after tax, and
EPS are monitored on monthly basis to gauge performance. For management
reporting purposes, the Company has developed a mix of systems based on ERP and
dashboard reports to compute various KPls.

An effective financial reporting system coupled with various management reports
and a three-layer review system enables AGTL to report accurate, complete, and
reviewed information to all its stakeholders.

Non-Financial Indicators

Manufactured Capital

Product Development Research and Development projects undertaken in collaboration with CNHi to enable
production of high-quality tractors bearing low cost.

Increase in Market Share Aggressive marketing strategies resulting in increased market share Operational
Efficiency and Effectiveness Continuous commitment to operational effectiveness
through monitoring of production efficiency ratios and minimal production losses.

Operational Efficiency and Continuous commitment to operational effectiveness through monitoring of
Effectiveness production efficiency ratios and minimal production losses.
Economize on Cost - Optimum utilization of resources resulting in elimination of redundant costs.

Eliminating Redundancies

Human Capital

Health, Safety and Effective system of horticulture and annual plantation project results in better
Environment environment for the employees.
Training and Education Continuous training of employees and workers. Monitoring training need analysis

with special focus on safety at work.

Relationship Capital

Supplier relationship Timely payment to vendors to enhance vendor confidence and reliance.

Customer relationship Providing exquisite after sales services and support services to enhance customer
loyalty and trust worthiness.
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KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Quantitative Data
Units:
Sales 14,269 15,420 19,929 18,156 12,142 15,719
Production 14,069 14,317 21,216 17,120 12,654 15,400
Rupees ‘000
Profitability
Revenue 34,574,430 34,543,545 28,201,812 20,578,906 11,935,172 13,992,388
Gross profit 8,434,686 6,423,068 5,061,446 4,721,228 2,766,012 2,544,716
Depreciation 387,530 187,795 120,952 84,846 81,512 80,836
Operating Profit (before investment income) 5,624,169 4,241,652 3,688,799 4,078,670 1,887,289 1,330,943
Investment income 82,305 L44,249 107,150 91,060 40618 17,581
Profit before taxation 5,706,474 4,685,901 3,795,949 4,169,730 1927907 1348524
Income tax expense 2,166,425 2,075,320 1,639,905 1,211,868 578,250 370,872
Profit for the year 3,542,275 2,611,772 2,156,044 2,957,862 1,349,657 977,652
Earnings before investment income,
tax and depreciation (EBITDA) 6,013,925 4,430,638 3,809,751 4163516 1,968,801 1,411,779
Manpower Cost - Direct 819,334 680,089 515,339 397,871 302,194 345,368
Manpower Cost - Indirect 631,167 596,291 356,872 263,703 283,646 287,773
Total Manpower Cost 1,450,501 1,276,380 872,211 661,574 585,840 633,141
Financial position
Fixed assets 2,289,706 1,608,167 1,331,267 1,108,805 1,066,974 1,068,382
Other non-current assets 16,219 16919 20473 11,334 4,941 4,757
Employee benefit prepayments - 32,039 - 8481 36,197 -
Deferred tax asset 79,051 129972 101819 85,553 111,756 87,090
2,384,976 1,787,097 1,453,559 1214173 1,219,868 1,160,229
20,391,742 14,229,633 12,280,729 9,490,115 5,183 444 5,475,383
Current assets 18,006,766 12,442,536 10827,170 8275,942 3963576 4,315,154
Current liabilities 11,002,538 8,299,836 8.990,546 5467934 2,849,239 4,442,078
Net working capital 7,004,228 4,142,700 1,836,624 2,308,008 1,114,337 (126,924)
Less: Non-current liabilities 192,291 149572 158,098 48914 46,083 129,588
Capital employed 9,196,913 5,780,225 3,132,085 3,973,267 2,288122 903,717
Represented by:
Share capital 289821 289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821
Reserves - = = = 1,049,000 =
Unappropriated profit 8907,092 5,490,404 2,842,264 3,683,446 949,301 613,896
9,196913 5,780,225 3,132,085 3,973,267 2,288122 903,717
Cash Flows
Operating activities (530813) 3,051,290 (4,270,631) 4,630,496 2,125,302 1,936,798
Investing activities (973273) (11,685) (162,817) (34,067) (38909) (303,716)
Financing activities 756,727 (1,234,748) 2,353917 (1,240,189) (4,708) (1,393,589)
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Analysis of Financial Ratios
Profitability Ratios
Gross profit ratio 24.40% 18.59% 17.60% 22.94% 23.18% 18.19%
Pre-tax profit ratio 16.50% 13.57% 13.46% 20.26% 16.15% 9.64%
Net profit to Sales 10.25% 7.56% 7.65% 14.37% 11.31% 6.99%
EBITDA margin to sales 17.39% 12.83% 13.51% 20.23% 16.50% 10.09%
Operating Leverage ratio 399.68 0.72 -0.23 1.54 -2.68 2.25
Return on asset 17.37% 18.35% 17.56% 31.17% 26.04% 17.86%
Return on Equity / Capital employed 38.52% 45.18% 68.84% T4.44% 58.99% 108.18%
Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio 1.64 1.50 1.20 1.51 1.39 0.97
Quick Ratio 1.1 0.77 0.62 0.99 0.69 0.34
Cash to current liabilities 0.09 0.21 0.08 0.37 0.08 0.04
Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover ratio 4.41 4.96 5.71 6.50 3.83 3.64
Receivables turnover ratio 14 427 339 9,455 2,480 423
Creditors turnover ratio 7 1 16 18 28 26
Fixed assets turnover ratio 15.10 21.48 21.18 18.56 11.19 13.10
Total assets turnover ratio 1.70 2.43 2.30 217 2.30 2.56
Operating Cycle
No. of days in inventory 83 74 64 56 95 100
No. of days in receivables 27 1 1 0 0 1
No. of days in payables 54 33 22 21 13 14
Operating Cycle 56 42 43 36 83 87
Capital Structure Ratios
Financial leverage ratio 0.31 0.31 0.38 0.39 0.75 0.88
Weighted average cost of debt 2.65% 3.84% 3.84% 0.00% 0.00% 10.87%
Debt to equity ratio (As per book value) 0.26 0.29 1.18 0.00 0.08 4.02
Debt to equity ratio (As per market value) 0.06 0.06 0.17 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest cover ratio 13.78 14.15 16.09 477.32 14.22 4.38
Investment / Market ratios
Pre-Tax Earning per share (Basic and diluted) - Rs 98.45 80.84 65.49 71.94 33.26 23.26
Post-Tax Earning per share (Basic and diluted) - Rs 61.11 45.06 37.20 51.03 23.28 16.87
Price earnings ratio 9.20 8.12 8.55 6.60 15.95 21.79
Dividend yield ratio 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 15.14% 5.76% 4.08%
Dividend ratio - = = 6.60 17.37 24.50
Dividend payout ratio 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 91.86% 88.93%
Dividend cover - = = 1.00 1.09 1.12
Dividend per share

- Cash - = = 51.03 21.39 15.00

- Bonus - = = = = =
Dividend payout - Rs ' 000 - - - 2,957,862 1,239,854 869,463
Cash dividend - % 0% 0% 0% 1021% 428% 300%
Market value per share - Rs

- Closing 562.0 366.0 318.0 337.0 3715 367.5

- High 600.0 462.4 470.0 408.0 4188 564.0

- Low 306.0 2475 315.0 320.1 210.2 2320
Market capitalisation - Rs Million 32,576 21,215 18433 19,534 21,531 21,302
Breakup value per share - Rs 158.67 99.72 54.03 68.55 39.47 15.59
Market price to break up value 3.54 3.67 5.89 4.92 9.41 23.57
Earning Yield (%) 10.87% 12.31% 11.70% 15.14% 6.27% 4.59%
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Analysis of Financial Ratios

Comments on Ratios
Profitahility Ratios

The growth in the Company's
profitability ratios during the year
2024 indicates a focus on efficient
management of resources. The
gross profit ratio stands at 24.4%,
YOY growth of 5.9%, demonstrating
efficient management of production
costs. The pre-tax profit ratio is
strong at 16.5, YOY growth of

3% indicating robust operational
efficiency and effective cost
management strategies. The net
profit to sales ratio is at 10.2%,
YOY growth of 2.7% showcasing
the company's ability to convert
sales revenue into net income.
Additionally, the EBITDA margin

to sales ratio is healthy at 17.39%,
YOY growth of 5% reflecting strong
earnings before interest, taxes,

depreciation, and amortization
relative to sales. The return on
assets and return on equity/capital
employed ratios are impressive,
standing at 17.37% and 38.52%,
respectively, indicating efficient
utilization of assets and shareholder
equity to generate profits.

Liquidity and Turnover Ratios

The company's liquidity ratios for
2024 depict a healthy financial
position. The current ratio of 1.64
and quick ratio of 1.11 indicate that
the company possesses adequate
current assets to cover its short-
term liabilities. However, the cash
to current liabilities ratio is relatively
low at 0.09, suggesting that the
company may need to improve its
cash position to meet immediate
obligations. In terms of turnover
ratios, the inventory turnover ratio,

receivables turnover ratio, and creditors
turnover ratio indicate efficient
management of inventory, receivables,
and payables, respectively. The fixed
assets turnover ratio and total assets
turnover ratio also reflect efficient
utilization of assets to generate sales
revenue.

Market Ratios

The market ratios for the company in
2024 exhibit mixed results. The pre-tax
earnings per share (EPS) and post-tax
EPS are commendable at Rs 98.45 and
Rs 61.11, respectively, indicating strong
earnings potential for shareholders.
However, the price-earnings ratio

is relatively low at 9.20, suggesting
that the stock may be undervalued
relative to its earnings. The absence

of dividend yield and dividend payout
ratios suggests that the company did
not distribute dividends during the

period. The market value per share
indicates volatility in the stock price
throughout the year, with a high

of Rs 600 and a low of Rs 306. The
market capitalization stands at Rs
32,576 million, reflecting the total
market value of the company’s
outstanding shares.

Operating Cycle

The operating cycle analysis for the
year 2024 provides insights into
the efficiency of the company’s
operational processes. The number
of days in inventory, which stands
at 83 days, indicates the average
number of days it takes for the
company to convert its inventory
into sales. A lower value for this
metric suggests better inventory
management and faster turnover
of goods, potentially leading to
improved liquidity and profitability.

The number of days receivable
stands at 27 days, reflecting a
change in the Company'’s policy
from last year to support customers
in challenging economic situation.
A major portion of this is related

to the contractual receivables

from Government institutions for
subsidized amounts to farmers.
Efficiency in receivables contributes
to a shorter cash conversion

cycle and ensures that funds are
readily available for the company's
operations.

Capital Structure Ratios

The company's capital structure
ratios highlight a conservative
financial approach. The financial
leverage ratio of 0.31 indicates

a low level of financial leverage,
suggesting that the company relies
more on equity financing than debt.
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The weighted average cost of debt
is reasonable at 2.65%, indicating
the cost of debt on the minimal
side. The debt-to-equity ratio is
moderate at 0.26 based on book
value and significantly lower at 0.06
based on market value, indicating a
conservative approach in financing
of major portion through equity. The
interest cover ratio of 13.78 suggests
that the company can comfortably
meet its interest obligations with its
earnings.

In conclusion, the company's
financial analysis for 2024 reflects
strong profitability, liquidity,

and turnover, coupled with a
conservative capital structure.
However, there may be opportunities
to enhance market valuation
through improved earnings multiples
and dividend distributions.
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'QRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
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SIX YEARS HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
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Increase / (decrease) from preceeding year in Rs 000

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(Rupees ‘000) (Rupees ‘000)

BALANCE SHEET BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets 2,289,706 1,608,167 1,331,267 1,108,805 1,066,974 1,068,382 Fixed assets 681,539 276,900 222,462 41,831 (1,408) 239578
Long-term loans and deposits 16,219 16,919 20,473 11,334 4,941 4,757 Long-term loans and deposits (700) (3,553) 9,139 6,393 184 61
Employee benefit prepayments - 32,039 - 8481 36,197 - Employee benefit prepayments (32,039) 32,039 (8,481) (27,716) 36,197 -
Deferred tax asset 79,051 125,972 101,819 85,553 111,756 87,090 Deferred tax asset (50,921) 28,153 16,266 (26,203) 24,666 87,090
Inventories 5,764,333 6,084,499 5,263,574 2,875,085 2,004,517 2,786,893 Inventories (320,166) 820,925 2,388,489 870,568 (782,376) (720,695)
Trade receivables 5,052,051 = 161,820 4,651 = 9,624 Trade receivables 5,052,051 (161,820) 157,169 4,651 (9,624) (46,982)
Loan and advances 984,688 95,715 91,105 147,874 86,561 93,216 Loan and advances 888973 4,610 (56,769) 61,313 (6,655) (39,121)
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 107,456 324,848 372,903 114,772 24,925 7,398 Trade deposits and short-term prepayments (217,392) (48,055) 258,131 89,847 17,527 (35,907)
Interest accrued 344 3,371 1,550 1,396 197 - Interest accrued (3,027) 1,821 154 1,199 197 (1)
Other receivables 49,327 201 4,833 8,283 8,225 108,134 Other receivables 49,126 (4,632) (3,450) 58 (99,909) 95,170
Taxation - payments less provision - - 142,313 157,786 347,462 Taxation - payments less provision - - (142,313) (15,473) (189,676) 239,422
Refunds due from the Government 5072477 4,210,453 4,203,395 2,983,446 1,450,847 773334 Refunds due from the Government 862,024 7,058 1,219,949 1,532,599 677513 (1,023.872)
Cash and bank balances 976,090 1,723,449 727,990 1,998,122 230,518 189,093 Cash and bank balances (747,359) 995,459 (1,270,132) 1,767,604 41,425 (104,817)
Total assets 20,391,742 14,229,633 12,280,729 9,490,115 5,183,444 5,475,383 Total assets 6,162,109 1,948,904 2,790,614 4,306,671 (291,939) (1,310,074)
Current liabilities 11,002,538 8,299,836 8,990,546 5467934 2,849,239 4,442,078 Current liabilities 2,702,702 (690,710) 3522612 2,618,695 (1,592,839) (857,883)
Non-current liabilities 192,291 149,572 158,098 48914 46,083 125,588 Non-current liabilities 42,719 (8526) 109,184 2,831 (83,505) 13,489
Total liabilities 11,194,829 8,445,408 5,148,644 5516,848 2,895,322 4,571,666 Total liabilities 2,745,421 (699,236) 3,631,796 2,621,526 (1,676,344) (844,394)
Capital employed 9,196,913 5,780,225 3,132,085 3,973,267 2,288,122 903,717 Capital employed 3,416,688 2,648,140 (841,182) 1,685,145 1,384,405 (465,680)
Share capital 289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821 289,821 Share capital - = = = = =
Reserves 8,907,092 5,490,404 2,842,264 3,683,446 1,998,301 613,896 Reserves 3,416,688 2,648,140 (841,182) 1,685,145 1,384,405 (465,680)
Capital employed 9,196,913 5,780,225 3,132,085 3,973,267 2,288,122 903,717 Capital employed 3,416,688 2,648,140 (841,182) 1,685,145 1,384,405 (465,680)
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue 34,574,430 34543545 28,201,812 20,578,906 11,935,172 13,992,388 Revenue 30,885 6,341,733 7,622,906 8,643,734 (2,057,216) (5,380,134)
Cost of sales 26,139,744 28,120,477 23,140,366 15,857,678 9,164,670 11,447,672 Cost of sales (1,980,733) 4,980,111 7,282,688 6,693,008 (2,283,002) (3,259,366)
Gross profit 8,434,686 6,423,068 5,061,446 4,721,228 2,770,502 2,544,716 Gross profit 2,011,618 1,361,622 340,218 1,950,726 225,786 (2,120,768)
Distribution expenses 804,790 428974 322,944 120,631 221,904 263,946 Distribution expenses 375816 106,030 202,313 (101,273) (42,042) (13,004)
Administrative expenses 1,466,521 1,080,879 536,715 353,849 322,675 296,763 Administrative expenses 385,642 544,164 182,866 31,174 25912 (8662)

6,163,375 4,913,215 4,102,618 4,246,748 2,225,923 1,984,007 1,250,160 810,597 (144,130) 2,020,825 241,916 (2,099,102)
Other income 315,630 560,091 184,613 146,057 58,798 61,423 Other income (244,461) 375,478 38,556 87,259 (2,625) (479)
Other operating expenses 323530 429,812 345,416 214,321 211,025 298,443 Other operating expenses (106,282) 84,396 131,095 3,296 (87,418) 13,835

6,155,475 5,043,494 3,941,815 4,178,484 2,073,696 1,746,987 1,111,981 1,101,679 (236,669) 2,104,788 326,709 (2,113,416)
Finance cost 446,775 356,402 245,035 8,754 145,789 398,463 Finance cost 90,373 111,367 236,281 (137,035) (252,674) 272,895
Profit before taxation 5,708,700 4,687,092 3,795,949 4,169,730 1,927,907 1,348,524 Profit before taxation 1,021,608 891,143 (373,781) 2,241,823 579,383 (2,386,311)
Income tax expense 2,166,425 2,075,320 1,639,905 1,211,868 578,250 370,872 Income tax expense 91,105 435,415 428,037 633,618 207,378 (911,449)
Profit for the year 3542275 2,611,772 2,156,044 2,957,862 1,349,657 977,652 Profit for the year 930,503 455,728 (801,818) 1,608,205 372,005 (1,474,862)
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Increase / (decrease) from preceeding year in Rs 000
2024 2024 2023 2022 2022 2021 2020 2020 2019
(Rupees ‘000) %age (Rupees ‘000) (Rupees ‘000) %age (Rupees ‘000) (Rupees ‘000) %age (Rupees ‘000)

BALANCE SHEET BALANCE SHEET
Fixed assets 2,289,706 7.25% 1,608,167 7.09% 1,331,267 42.50% Fixed assets 1,108,805 27.91% 1,066,974 46.63% 1,068,382 118.22%
Long-term investments - 0.00% = 0.00% = 0.00% Long-term investments = 0.00% = 0.00% = =
Long-term loans and deposits 16,219 0.05% 16,919 0.07% 20,473 0.65% Long-term loans and deposits 11,334 0.29% 4,941 0.22% 4,757 0.53%
Employee benefit prepayments - 0.00% 32,039 0.14% - 0.00% Employee benefit prepayments 8481 0.21% 36,197 1.58% - -
Deferred tax asset 79,051 0.25% 129,972 0.57% 101,819 3.25% Deferred tax asset 85,553 2.15% 111,756 4.88% 87,090 9.64%
Inventories 5,764,333 18.25% 6,084,499 26.83% 5263574 168.05% Inventories 2,875,085 72.36% 2,004,517 87.61% 2,786,893 308.38%
Trade receivables 5,052,051 15.99% - 0.00% 161,820 5.17% Trade receivables 4,651 0.12% - 0.00% 9,624 1.06%
Loan and advances 984,688 3.12% 95,715 0.42% 91,105 2.91% Loan and advances 147874 3.72% 86,561 3.78% 93,216 10.31%
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 107,456 0.34% 324,848 1.43% 372,903 11.91% Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 114,772 2.89% 24,925 1.09% 7,398 0.82%
Interest accrued 344 0.00% 3371 0.01% 1,550 0.05% Interest accrued 1,396 0.04% 197 0.01% - 0.00%
Other receivables 49,327 0.16% 201 0.00% 4,833 0.15% Other receivables 8283 0.21% 8225 0.36% 108,134 11.97%
Taxation - payments less provision - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% Taxation - payments less provision 142,313 3.58% 157,786 6.90% 347,462 38.45%
Refunds due from the Government 5072477 16.06% 4,210,453 18.57% 4,203,395 134.20% Refunds due from the Government 2,983,446 75.09% 1,450,847 63.41% 773334 85.57%
Other financial assets - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% Other financial assets - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Cash and bank balances 976,090 3.09% 1,723,449 7.60% 727,990 23.24% Cash and bank balances 1,998,122 50.29% 230518 10.07% 189,093 20.92%
Total assets 20,391,742 64.56% 14,229,633 62.74% 12,280,729 392.09% Total assets 9,490,115 238.85% 5,183,444 226.54% 5,475,383 605.87%
Current liabilities 11,002,538 34.83% 8,299,836 36.60% 8,990,546 287.05% Current liabilities 5,467,934 137.62% 2,849,239 124.52% 4,442,078 491.53%
Non-current liabilities 192,291 0.61% 149,572 0.66% 158,098 5.05% Non-current liabilities 48914 1.23% 46,083 2.01% 129,588 14.34%
Total liabilities 11,194,829 35.44% 8,449,408 37.26% 9,148,644 292.09% Total liabilities 5,516,848 138.85% 2,895,322 126.54% 4,571,666 505.87%
Capital employed 31,586,571 100.00% 22,679,041 100.00% 3,132,085 100.00% Capital employed 3,973,267 100.00% 2,288,122 100.00% 903,717 100.00%
Share capital 289,821 0.92% 289,821 1.28% 289,821 9.25% Share capital 289,821 7.29% 289,821 12.67% 289,821 32.07%
Reserves 8,907,092 28.20% 5,490,404 24.21% 2,842,264 90.75% Reserves 3,683,446 92.71% 1,998,301 87.33% 613,896 67.93%
Capital employed 9,196,913 29.12% 5,780,225 25.49% 3,132,085 100.00% Capital employed 3,973,267 100.00% 2,288,122 100.00% 903,717 100.00%
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue 34,574,430 100.00% 34,543,545 100.00% 28,201,812 100.00% Revenue 20,578,906 100.00% 11,935,172 100.00% 13,992,388 100.00%
Cost of sales 26,139,744 75.60% 28,120,477 81.41% 23,140,366 82.05% Cost of sales 15,857,678 77.06% 9,164,670 76.79% 11,447,672 81.81%
Gross profit 8,434,686 24.40% 6,423,068 18.59% 5,061,446 17.95% Gross profit 4,721,228 22.94% 2,770,502 23.21% 2,544,716 18.19%
Distribution expenses 804,790 2.33% 428974 1.24% 322944 1.15% Distribution expenses 120,631 0.59% 221,904 1.86% 263,946 1.89%
Administrative expenses 1,466,521 4.24% 1,080,879 3.13% 536,715 1.90% Administrative expenses 353,849 1.72% 322,675 2.70% 296,763 2.12%

6,163,375 17.83% 4913215 14.22% 4,102,618 14.55% 4,246,748 20.64% 2,225,923 18.65% 1,984,007 14.18%
Other income 315,630 0.91% 560,091 1.62% 184,613 0.65% Other income 146,057 0.71% 58,798 0.49% 61,423 0.44%
Other operating expenses 323,530 0.94% 429,812 1.24% 345,416 1.22% Other operating expenses 214,321 1.04% 211,025 1.77% 298,443 2.13%

6,155,475 17.80% 5,043,494 14.60% 3,941,815 13.98% 4,178,484 20.30% 2,073,696 17.37% 1,746,987 12.49%
Finance cost 446,775 1.29% 356,402 1.03% 245,035 0.87% Finance cost 8,754 0.04% 145,789 1.22% 398,463 2.85%
Profit before taxation 5,708,700 16.51% 4,687,092 13.57% 3,795,949 13.46% Profit before taxation 4,169,730 20.26% 1,927,907 16.15% 1,348,524 9.64%
Income tax expense 2,166,425 6.27% 2,075,320 6.01% 1,639,905 5.81% Income tax expense 1,211,868 5.89% 578,250 4.84% 370872 2.65%
Profit for the year 3,542,275 10.25% 2,611,772 7.56% 2,156,044 7.65% Profit for the year 2,957,862 14.37% 1,349,657 11.31% 977,652 6.99%
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QUARTERLY ANALYSIS

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Annual
Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24

Revenue 9,496,684 8,043,836 6,295,040 10,738870 34,574,430
Cost of sales (7,386,468) (6,214,475) (4,533,759) (8,005,042) (26,139,744)
Gross profit 2,110,216 1,829,361 1,761,281 2,733,828 8,434,686
Gross profit % 22.2% 22.7% 28.0% 25.5% 24.4%
Distribution expenses (181,225) (16,259) (184,664) (422,642) (804,790)
Administrative expenses (395,130) (339,698) (427,693) (304,000) (1,466,521)
(576,355) (355,957) (612,357) (726,642) (2,271,311)
Other income 32,058 192,342 46970 44,260 315,630
Other operating expenses (125,460) (110,561) (21,396) (66,113) (323,530)
Operating Profit 1,440,459 1,555,185 1,174,498 1,985,333 6,155,475
Finance cost (50,131) (108,285) (107,833) (180,526) (446,775)
Profit before taxation 1,390,328 1,446,900 1,066,665 1,804,807 5,708,700
Income tax expense (537,012) (566,969) (433,216) (629,228) (2,166,425)
Profit for the year 853,316 879,931 633,449 1175579 3542275
9.0% 10.9% 10.1% 10.9% 10.2%
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Quarterly Result Commentary for the Year 2024

Revenue Analysis

Throughout the year 2024, the
company demonstrated consistent
revenue growth, with quarterly
revenues of Rs 9,497 M in Q1, Rs
8044 Min Q2,Rs 6295 M in Q3,
and Rs 10,739 M in Q4, totaling

Rs 34,574 M for the year. Notably,
Q4 recorded the highest revenue,
due to significant portion of the
sales volume coming from “Green
Tractor Scheme” in November and
December.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin fluctuated
across quarters, ranging from
22.2%in Q1 to a maximum of 28%

in Q3, with an annual average of
24.4%. The increase in gross profit
margin towards the latter part of
the year suggests improved cost
management and pricing strategies,
contributing to higher profitability.

Operating Expenses

Distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, and other operating
expenses were incurred consistently
across quarters to support business
operations. However, Q4 witnessed a
spike in distribution expenses due to
the launch of NH 850.

Other Income and Expenses

The company generated additional
income from non-operating sources,
contributing Rs 316 M for the vear.
Conversely, finance costs fluctuated,
with significant expenses incurred in
Q4, impacting overall profitability.

Profitability

Despite fluctuations in revenue and
expenses, the company maintained

a relatively stable net profit margin
throughout the year, ranging from 9%
to 11% across quarters, with an annual
average of 10.2%. This consistency
indicates effective cost management
and operational efficiency, resulting in
sustained profitability.

Overall Performance

The company's performance in 2024
reflects resilience and adaptability

in navigating market challenges

and capitalizing on opportunities.
While revenue growth was steady,
profitability remained robust,
underscoring the company'’s ability
to maintain financial stability and
deliver value to shareholders amidst
changing market dynamics. Moving
forward, continued focus on cost
optimization, revenue diversification,
and prudent financial management
will be essential to sustain growth
and profitability in the future.
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DUPONT ANALYSIS

Total
Assets

20,392

Total
Liabilities

Non Current
Liabilities

192

Current
Liabilities

11,003

11,195

Ownership

Ratio

45%

Non Current

Assets

2,385

Return on
Equity

39%

Return on
Assets

17%

Asset
Turnover

1.7

Total
Assets

20,392

Current
Assets

18,007

Total Cost

31,032

Net Profit
Margin

10.2%

Net
Income

3,942

Comments on Dupont Analysis

The DuPont analysis for the year 2024 provides a detailed examination of the company’s return on equity (ROE) and the
underlying factors contributing to its financial performance.

Asset Utilization

The company's asset turnover
ratio of 1.7 indicates that for every
rupee of total assets, the company
generated Rs 1.7 in sales revenue.
This suggests efficient utilization
of assets to drive sales growth and
revenue generation.

Profitability

With a net profit margin of 10.2%,
the company effectively converted
its sales revenue into net income.
Growth in net profit margin signifies
the company’s ability to manage
costs and operate profitably,
ensuring a healthy bottom line.

Financial Leverage

The ownership ratio, indicating
the proportion of assets financed
by owner's equity, stands at 45%.
This suggests that the company
maintains a healthy balance of
financing from debt and equity,
indicating an efficient financial
structure. Additionally, the return on
assets (ROA) of 17% demonstrates
the company's efficiency in
generating profits from its assets.
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Return on Equity (ROE)

The return on equity (ROE) of 39%
reflects the company's ability to
generate strong returns for its
shareholders. This metric is derived
from the combined effects of asset
utilization, profitability, and financial
leverage, indicating the overall
effectiveness of the company’s
operations in generating profits for
its owners.

Conclusion

Overall, the DuPont analysis for
2024 highlights the company's
effective management of assets,
profitability, and financial leverage,
culminating in a robust return on
equity. The company's focus on
efficient asset utilization, prudent
cost management, and conservative
financial structure has resulted in
strong financial performance and
value creation for its shareholders.
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DIRECT CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2024

FREE CASH FLOWS
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Rupees ‘000

Profit before taxation 5708700 4,687,092 3795949 4,169,730 1927907 1348524
Adjustment of non cash items 666586  (147,678) 175,530 14,896 204,542 475355
Working capital changes (4,435815) 2,306,076  (971,384) 445,869 (8803) 112919
Net cash generated

from operating activities 1939471 6845490 3000096 4630495 2123646 1,936,798
Capital expenditure (1,069,069) (468,994) (272,627) (126,743) (94,945)  (320,631)
Free Cash flows 870402 6376496 2727469  4503,752 2,028,701 1,616,167

2024 2023
Rupees ‘000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 29,522,379 34,725,660
Cash paid to suppliers / service providers and employees (26,361,604) (29,146,863)
Workers Funds (359,280) (356,460)
Income tax paid (2123188) (1,908,092)
Sales tax refund / (Payment) (862,024) (7,058)
Finance costs paid (279,288) (227,024)
Retirment benefits (67,406) (61,974)
Loans, deposits & other operating income - net (1,506) 33,895
(Decrease) / increase in long-term loans 1,104 (793)
Net Cash (used) / generated from operating activities (530813) 3,051,290
Cash flows from investing activities
Fixed Capitale Expenditure (1,069,069 (468,994)
Proceeds from disoposal of fixed asssets 10,464 14,881
Return on bank deposits 85332 442,428
Net Cash (used) / generated from investing activities (973,273) (11,685)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (4,580) (9.853)
Musharkah facility obtained 780,638 (1,136,320)
Recovery of other financial asset - 44,000
Short term boworring obtained - (115,000)
Lease rentals paid (19,331) (17,574)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 756,727 (1,234,747)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (747,359) 1,804,858
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,723,449 (81,409)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 976,090 1,723,449

Free Cash Flows

6,376

4,504

2,727

-
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o
~
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION

2024 2023
Rs '000 % Rs ‘000 %

Wealth Generated
Sales 34,574,430 99.1% 34543545  98.4%
Other income 315,630 0.9% 560,091 1.6%

34,890,060 100% 35,103,636 100%
Distribution of Wealth
Cost of sales & overheads (excluding remuneration) 27,284,084 78% 28,783,762 82%
To employees as remuneration 1,450,501 4% 1,276,380 4%
To government as tax 2,166,425 6% 2075320 6%
WPPF and WWF 422,896 1% 356,460 1%
To shareholders as dividend - 0% - 0%
Cash Retained within the business 3,566,154 10% 2611714 7%

34,890,060 100% 35,103,636 100%

78%
6%
4%
1%

11%
0%

@ Cost of sales and overheads

® To government as tax

® To employees as remuneration
WPPF and WWF

Retained within the business
® To shareholders as dividend

.

E

Statement of Value Addition Commentary for 2024

- *‘".-.1.;-5_—...-*._-.'-— -
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The statement of value addition for the year 2024 provides insights into the company's wealth generation and
distribution, highlighting its contribution to various stakeholders and the retention of value within the business.

Wealth Generation

The company generated a total of

Rs 34,890m in wealth during 2024,
representing a slight decrease from
the previous year's figure of Rs
35,104m. The decrease is mainly

due to decrease in other income
(316m in 2024 vs 560m in 2023). The
major growth in wealth generation

is primarily attributed to the
substantial increase in sales revenue
amount due to price increase, which
accounted for 99.1% of total wealth
generated, reflecting the company's
successful revenue generation
efforts and market expansion
strategies. Additionally, other income
contributed 0.9% to the total wealth,
which was indicating diversified
revenue streams.

Distribution of Wealth

The distribution of wealth
demonstrates the company's
commitment to various stakeholders

and societal obligations. The
majority of wealth, represented by
78%, was allocated to covering costs
of sales and overheads, excluding
remuneration. This allocation
underscores the importance of
maintaining operational efficiency
and controlling expenses to ensure
sustainable business operations.

A significant portion of wealth,
accounting for 4%, was distributed

to employees as remuneration,
highlighting the company’s
dedication to rewarding its workforce
for their contributions to its success.
Additionally, 6% of wealth was
allocated to the government as
taxes, fulfilling the company's fiscal
responsibilities and supporting
public welfare initiatives.

Furthermore, contributions to
welfare funds such as WPPF and
WWEF, representing 1% of total
wealth, reflect the company's

commitment to corporate social
responsibility and community
development.

Retention of Value

Despite the substantial distribution
of wealth to various stakeholders,
the company retained 10% of

total wealth within the business,
amounting to Rs 3,566m. This
retained cash is essential for
reinvestment in growth initiatives,
research and development,
Transformation and strengthening
the company's financial position for
future opportunities and challenges.

In conclusion, the statement of value
addition for 2024 illustrates the
company's ability to generate wealth
through robust sales performance
and diversified income streams
while ensuring equitable distribution
to stakeholders and retaining value
for sustained growth and prosperity.
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ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED
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SHARE PRIGE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

2024 2023 ) . Variation in Material Costs
; Share Price Sensitivity
Rupees ‘000 As a manufacturing entity, material
Net Operating Profit after Tax 3,989,050 2,968,174 COSt; Confstltgte |a significant
Cost of Capital (52,745) (58,094) Port|on o. variab g expense;. Any
increase in material costs directly
Economic Value Added 3,936,305 2,910,081 affects gross profit margins
potentially leading to reduced
Total Assets 20,391,742 14,229,633 profitability and, consequently, a
Current Liabilities (11,002,538) (8,299,836) decline in share prices.
Invested Capital 9,389,204 5,929,797 L d Ord
0.56% 0.98% Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec aw ?m raer _ _ _
Cost of Capital 52,745 58,094 A O — Political uncertainty and disruptions

Operating Profit Total Assets
After Tax

§ 2023

Comments on Economic
Value Added (EVA)

The economic value added (EVA)
analysis for the years 2024 and

2023 reveals a positive trend in the
company's performance. In 2024, the
net operating profit after tax amounted
to Rs 3,989m marking a significant
increase from the previous year's
figure of Rs 2,968m. This increase in
profitability contributed to the growth
of economic value added, which
reached Rs 3,936m in 2024 compared
to Rs 2,910m in 2023.

Furthermore, the company's invested
capital witnessed a substantial
increase from Rs 5929m in 2023

to Rs 9,389m in 2024, reflecting

Current Liabilities Economic

Value Added

I 2024

potential expansion or investment
activities during the period.
Despite fluctuations in the
weighted average cost of capital
(WACC), the company managed

to maintain a favorable cost of
capital, contributing to the overall
enhancement of economic value
added.

Overall, the EVA analysis
underscores the company's ability
to generate wealth above the
cost of capital, thereby creating
value for its shareholders and
stakeholders.

The performance of the company's
share price is intricately tied to
its financial performance and
exhibits a positive correlation
with various factors influencing
the company’s operations. In

the current economic climate of
Pakistan, management carefully
assesses several key factors that
may impact the company's share
price sensitivity.

Agriculture

Given Pakistan's agrarian
economy, where a significant
portion of the population relies on
agriculture for their livelihoods, the
agricultural sector's performance is
pivotal to the company's success.
Factors such as crop acreage,
weather conditions, availability of
irrigation water and farm inputs,
and government support prices
significantly influence agricultural
growth, directly impacting the
company's sales and profitability.
Consequently, favorable
agricultural conditions typically
resultin increased sales and
improved profitability, positively
influencing the company’s share
price.

Government Decisions and
Policies

Government policies regarding
crop prices, taxation, and
subsidized tractor schemes exert
a substantial influence on the
company's share prices. Positive
government decisions that support
the agricultural industry generally
foster a favorable environment

for the tractor industry, leading to
increased share prices. Conversely,
adverse governmental decisions
can have a detrimental effect on
share prices.

Plant Operations

The stability of plant

operations is paramount,
directly impacting production
levels and, consequently, the
company's profitability. Stable
plant operations enable higher
production output, which can
positively impact the company's
share price.

in law and order pose significant
challenges to business operations,
disrupting economic activity and
supply chains. Such disruptions can
adversely impact production levels
and profitability, consequently
affecting the company's share
price.

Exchange Fluctuation

The company's exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations,
particularly due to its reliance on
imported raw materials, poses

a significant risk to its financial
performance. The depreciation of
the Pakistani Rupee can adversely
affect the company’s financial
performance, potentially influencing
its share price dynamics.

In conclusion, the company's

share price sensitivity analysis
underscores the importance of
closely monitoring various internal
and external factors that can
significantly impact its financial
performance and market valuation.
By proactively addressing these
factors and implementing strategic
measures to mitigate risks,

the company aims to enhance
shareholder value and ensure
sustainable long-term growth.
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SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
LAST SIX YEARS
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2024 2023 2021 2020 2019 2018
Rupees ‘000

Net cash (used in) / generated

from operating activities (530813) 3,051,290 (4,270631) 4630496 2125302 1,936,798
Net cash used in

investing activities (973,273) (11,685) (162,817) (34,067) (38,909) (303,716)
Net cash generated from /

(used in) financing activities 756,727 (1,234,748)  2,353917 (1,240,189) (4,708) (1,393,589)
Net (decrease) / increase in

cash and cash equivalents (747,359) 1,804,857 (2079531) 3,356,240 2,081,685 239,493

Cash and cash equivalents
as at the beginning of the year 1,723,449 (81,409) 1998122 (1,358118) (3439803) (3,679296)

Cash and cash equivalents as
at the end of the vear 976,090 1,723,449 (81,409) 1998122 (1,358118) (3,439803)

I Operating activities  lInvesting activities  IFinancing activities

{ri

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Comments on Cash flow Analysis:
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The cash flow statement for the year 2024 provides valuable insights into the company'’s liquidity position,
operational efficiency, and financing activities. The Company monitors its cash inflows and outflows on a daily
basis. Cash management and investment strategies are planned well in advance to maximize returns.

mushhafacilitv This ca

Net cash generated from operating financing

activities amounted to Rs -531m,

this is due to uncollected subsidy

amount of Rs 5 billion from Govt. financial obligations.
of Punjab against GTS invoicing
however, other than that the
company's core business gpe
were profitable and gené?ate
positive cash flowiliduring the
year. This positive cash flow f
operations suggests efficient
management of working capit
effective revenue generation. \

or the past few years, the (
as obtained a notable val
unning finance facility to
mooth business operatid

2024 stood at PK

verall, the company experienced a net

The company utilized Rs 973m decrease in cash and cash equivalents
in investing activities during the of Rs 747m during the year. This

vear, reflecting expenditures on negative cash flow indicates that the
capital investments, acquisitions, company’s cash outflows exceeded

or other long-term assets. While inflows, resulting in a negative liquidity
this represents a cash outflow, position at the end of the year.

it also signifies the company's

commitment to investing in its

future growth and expansion.
& P The company's cash and cash

equivalents at the end of the year
stood at Rs 976m, lower than the
Net cash inflow in financing beginning-of-year balance of Rs
activities amounted to Rs 756m, 1,723m. This decrease in cash reserves
indicating cash inflows related mainly due to receivable balances from
to financing activities mainly Govt.

In conclusion, the cash flow
statement for 2024 reflects the
company's ability to generate
positive cash flows (excluding Govt.
subsidy receivable) from its core
operations, effectively manage its

tinvesting and financing activities,
and strengthen its cash position.

SThis prudent cash management

“underscores the company's financial
health and resilience in achieving its
strategic objectives.

The Company monitors its cash
inflows and outflows on a daily
basis. Cash management and
investment strategies are planned
well in advance to maximize returns.

Net cash used in investing
activities depicts cash utilization
on account of fixed capital
expenditure. Moreover, in cufrent
year fixed capital expenditures
mainly represented additions
related to turnaround initiative
infrastructure upgrade, replacement
of essentials plant and machinery
at manufacturing plant and staff
wellbeing. Company expects to
generate additional returns on the
investments being made in assets.
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SEGMENTAL REVIEW OF BUSINESS

Market Segment / Share

The agricultural sector stands

as the cornerstone of Pakistan's
economy, constituting a vital
segment of the nation’s GDP and
employing most of its workforce.
However, the tractor industry
has grappled with formidable
challenges stemming from a
perfect storm of factors including

drastic rupee devaluation, record-
high inflation rates, political
turbulence, and governmental
restrictions on imported
components. This confluence has
led to unprecedented spikes in
material costs and disruptions in

the procurement of essential parts.

Moreover, the imposition of an
additional super tax on profits for

both the current and preceding years
has further dented the profitability
landscape for companies within the
sector.

Among these entities, Al-Ghazi
Tractors Limited (AGTL) holds a
significant position as the second-
largest player in Pakistan's tractor
industry, commanding a 36% market

-
. &

TEAM BOARD , meTsol

share, while competitors control the
remaining 64%.

AGTL has experienced a steady
market share compared to the
previous year. This can be attributed
to the formidable macroeconomic
challenges plaguing the nation and
the tractor industry. The ongoing
severe rupee devaluation, coupled

with continued restrictions on
imports by the central bank and
persistent political instability, have
compounded matters, leading

to unprecedented escalations in
material costs and disruptions in
the timely arrival of imported parts.

In light of these adversities, AGTL's
sales figures for the year reflect the
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toll of these challenges, with the
company selling 14,269 tractors
compared to the previous year's
tally of 15,420 units.

Operating Segments

The company's primary focus
remains on the manufacturing
and/or sale of agricultural tractors,
implements, and spare parts. This
core activity forms the backbone of
its operations and revenue streams.

In line with its business structure
and operational focus, the financial
statements of the company have
been meticulously prepared,
consolidating all relevant financial
data under a single reportable
segment.

This approach ensures transparency
and coherence in financial reporting,
allowing stakeholders to gain a
comprehensive understanding

of the company's performance
within its core business domain.

By adhering to this reporting
framework, the company

maintains clarity and consistency

in presenting its financial position
and operational results to investors,
regulators, and other stakeholders.

o
64% @ Competitors Market Share
36% @ AGTL Market Share
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NH-480 SPECIAL

ENGINE POWER

At flywheel 55 HP

OPERATING WEIGHT
1,710 KG

ENGINE

New Holland 8035.06
4-Stroke, direct injection diesel engine

Number of cylinder: 3

Bore and stroke: 100x115 mm
Pston Displacement: 2,710 cc
Compression ratio: 17:1

Max. Torque at 1,500 rpm:  22.7 kgm

Dry-type cylinder liners

Water cooled, Four-row brass tube & copper fin
radiator Forced-feed lubrication system
Distributor-type fuel injection pump with mechanical
speed governor

Vertical exhaust muffler

FILTERS

Air: Oil-bath with pre-cleaner
Fuel: 2 replaceable cartridges.
Oil: Easy-to-change, continuous flow cartridge

CLUTCH

Dual plate, dry-type, with separate controls (pedal for
transmission and hand lever for PTO),

diameter of plates: 11 inch

Plate facing of asbestos compound

TRANSMISSION

Gear box with constant-mesh gears: 8 forward and
2 reverse speeds;

Synchromesh on 3rd, 4th, 7th and 8th speeds
Differential with pedal actuated lock and automatic
disconnection

Single-reduction spur gear final drives

Gear Box mounted starter safety switch

SPECIFICATIONS

TRACKS

Front (8 position):

1.320- 1,420- 1,520- 1,620-
1,720- 1,820 - 1,920- 2,020 mm
Rear (8 position):

1,200- 1,300- 1,400- 1.500-
1,600 - 1,700- 1,800 - 1,900 mm

STEERING (OPTIONAL)

Option 1: Manual, recirculating ball type. Centre relay
lever. Joints lubricated for life.

Option 2: Hydro assisted power steering with independent

circuit.

Turning radius:

-with brakes: 3.400 mm
-without brakes: 3,900 m

POWER TAKE OFF

6 spline shaft - 35 mm dia/1-§"

Fully independent: 540 rps at 2.160 engine rpm
High-speed DTO (*) 35 mm dia / 1-"

same speed as engine

(*) for application of high speed implements.

HYDRAULIC LIFT

With draft and position control. Draft control through
top link, Gear type hydraulic pump driven from engine
crankshaft. Pump capacity: 22.7 £/min

Relief value opening pressure: 150-170 kg/cm*
3-Point linkage Cat I-II

Manual response control

Lower links with sway restrictors

Control Lever with safety stop.

Max. Lifting capacity: 1.450 kg

DRIVER'S SEAT

Fully upholstered with parallelogram suspension,
adjustable to driver's weight.

CAPACITY
Fuel tank: 54 ¢
Engine oil: 8¢
Hydraulic Transmission: 18¢
Rear Axle: 2+2 (¢ at both sides
Air Cleaner: 1L

BRAKES

Service dry band-type with mechanical control
Parking: with hand lever

TYRES
Front: 6.00-16
Rear: 12.4/11-28
BODY

Hood has side-hinged cover for engine inspection.
Front grill is easily removable for quick access to air
cleaner and battery

LIGHTING SYSTEM

With 3-position headlights, plough lamp, blue high
beam warning light on dashboard, low oil pressure
warning light

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM

12 Volt starting system, 4hp (3kw) starter motor, 400
watts alternator,100 ah battery.

FRONT AXLE

Telescopic type,inverted U, variable track

Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd reserves the rights to
change specifications without prior notice.

DIMENSIONS

(With 6.00-16 and 12.4/11-28 tyres)

A. Wheelbase: 1,920 mm

B. Overall length: 2,960 mm

C. Height to top of hood: 1,390 mm

D. Height to steering wheel: 1,490 mm

: Front track (8 positions):

from 1,320 to 2,020 mm

: Rear track (8 positions):

from 1,200 to 1,900 mm

: Ground clearance under front axle: 480 mm

X
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NH-480 POWER PLUS

ENGINE POWER
At flywheel 55 HP
OPERATING WEIGHT
1,710 KG

ENGINE

New Holland 8035.06
4-Stroke, direct injection diesel engine

Number of cylinder: 3

Bore and stroke: 100x115 mm
Pston Displacement: 2,710 cc
Compression ratio: 17:1

Max. Torque at 1,500 rom: 22.7 kgm

Dry-type cylinder liners

Water cooled, Four-row brass tube & copper fin
radiator Forced-feed lubrication system
Distributor-type fuel injection pump with mechanical
speed governor

Vertical exhaust muffler

FILTERS

Air: Oil-bath with pre-cleaner
Fuel: 2 replaceable cartridges.
Oil: Easy-to-change, continuous flow cartridge

CLUTCH

Dual plate, dry-type, with separate controls (pedal for
transmission and hand lever for PTO),

diameter of plates: 11 inch

Plate facing of asbestos compound

TRANSMISSION

Gear box with constant-mesh gears: 8 forward and
2 reverse speeds;

Synchromesh on 3rd, 4th, 7th and 8th speeds
Differential with pedal actuated lock and automatic
disconnection

Single-reduction spur gear final drives

Gear Box mounted starter safety switch

SPECIFICATIONS

TRACKS
Front (8 position):
1,320- 1,420- 1,520- 1,620-
1,720- 1,820 - 1,920- 2,020 mm
Rear (8 position):
1,200- 1,300- 1,400- 1.500-
1,600 - 1,700- 1,800 - 1,900 mm

STEERING (OPTIONAL)

Hydro assisted with independent circuit.
Minimum turning radius:

-with brakes: ~ 3400mm

-without brakes: 3900mm

POWER TAKE OFF

6 spline shaft - 35 mm dia/1- $"

Fully independent: 540 rps at 2.160 engine rpm
High-speed DTO (*) 35 mm dia / 1-§"

same speed as engine

(*) for application of high speed implements.

HYDRAULIC LIFT

With draft and position control. Draft control through
top link, Gear type hydraulic pump driven from engine
crankshaft. Pump capacity: 22.7 {/min

Relief value opening pressure: 150-170 kg/cm*
3-Point linkage Cat I-Il

Manual response control

Lower links with sway restrictors

Control Lever with safety stop.

Max. Lifting capacity: 1.450 kg

DRIVER'S SEAT

Fully upholstered with parallelogram suspension,
adjustable to driver's weight.

CAPACITY
Fuel tank: 54 L
Engine oil: 8¢
Hydraulic Transmission: 18 ¢
Rear Axle: 2+2 { at both sides
Air Cleaner: 1L

BRAKES

Service dry band-type with mechanical control

Parking: with hand lever

TYRES
Front: 6.00-16
Rear: 14.9/13-28
BODY

Hood has side-hinged cover for engine inspection.
Front grill is easily removable for quick access to air

cleaner and battery
LIGHTING SYSTEM

With 3-position headlights, plough lamp, blue high
beam warning light on dashboard, low oil pressure

warning light
ELECTRICAL SYSTEM

12 Volt starting system, 4hp (3kw) starter motor, 400

watts alternator,100 ah battery.
FRONT AXLE

Telescopic type, inverted U, variable track

Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd reserves the rights to
change specifications without prior notice.

DIMENSIONS

(With 6.00-16 and 12.4/13-28 tyres)

A. Wheelbase: 1,920 mm

B. Overall length: 2,960 mm

C. Height to top of hood: 1,390 mm
D. Height to steering wheel: 1,490 mm

: Front track (8 positions):

from 1,320 to 2,020 mm

: Rear track (8 positions):

from 1,200 to 1,900 mm
: Ground clearance under front axle: 480 mm
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NH-GHAZI

SPECIFICATIONS

ENGINE POWER TYRES BODY
At flywheel 65 HP Front: Rear 6.00-16 Hood has side- hinged cover for engine inspection.
OPERATING WEIGHT FRONT AXLE 14.9/13-28 Front grill is easily removable for quick access to air
FRONT AXLE cleaner and battery
1,785 KG Telescopic type, inverted U, variable tread LIGHTING SYSTEM
ENGINE FENDER With 3-position halogen headlamps
New Holland 8035.05 Flat top Elue h||gh beam warning Illghr: on dashboard.
4-Stroke, direct injection diesel engine ow oil pressure warning light. ,
Number of cylinder: 3 TRACKS Direction Indicators, Parking & Hazard lights.
Bore and stroke: 104x 115 mm Front (8 positions): ELECTRICAL SYSTEM
Piston Displacement: 2,931 cc 1.320 - 1,420- 1,520 - 1,620 )
Compressri)on ratio: 17:1 1,720 - 1,820 -1.920 - 2,020 mm. 12 volt starting system, 4 HP (3kw) starter motor, 400
Max. Torque at 1,500 rpm:  23.9 kgm Rear (8 positions): watt alternator, 100 ah battery, starting aid.

1,200 - 1,300- 1,400 - 1.500-

Dry-type cylinder liners 1’600 - 1.700- 1.800 - 1.900 mm. CAPACITIES

Water cooling system, ' ’ ’ ' Fuel tank: 54 ¢

Five-row brass tube and fin radiator STEERING Engine oil: 08 ¢

Forced-feed lubrication system Hydro assisted power steering with independent circuit. Hydraulic Transmission: 18 ¢

Vertical exhaust muffler Turning radius: Rear Axle: 2+2 { at both sided
Distributor type fuel injection pump with mechanical -with brakes: 3,400 mm Air Cleaner: 01 ¢

speed governor -without brakes: 3,900 mm Power Steéring' 15¢

FILTERS DRIVER'S SEAT BRAKES

Deluxe seat with spring suspension, adjustable to driver's

Air: Oil-bath with pre-cleaner i
weight

Service dry band-type with mechanical control

Fuel: 2 replaceable cartridges; Parking: with hand lever.
Oil: Easy-to-change, continuous flow cartridge POWER TAKE OFF
6 spline shaft -35 mm dia /1-§"
CLUTCH Fully independent: 540 rpm at 2.160 engine rpm
Dual plate, dry-type, with separate controls (pedal for High-speed DTO (*) 35 mm dia/1-§"
transmission and hand lever for PTO), same speed as engine
diameter of plates: 11 inch (*) for application of high speed implements.
Plates facing of asbestos compound HYDRAULIC LIFT
TRANSMISSION With draft and position control, Draft control through top
link, Gear type hydraulic pump driven from engine crank

Gear box with constant-mesh gears:

haft.
8 forward and 2 reverse speeds sha

Pump capacity: 22.7¢ /min

Synchromesh on 3rd, 4th,7th and 8th speeds Reliefvalve opening pressure:  150-170kg/cm”

Differential with pedal actuated lock and automatic 3-point linkageCat | - Il

disconnection Manual response control. .

Single-reduction spur gear final drives Lower links with inter changeable balls & sway restrictors Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd reserves the
Gear Box mounted starter safety switch Control Lever with safety stop. rights to change specifications

Max. Lifting capacity: 1,650 kg without prior notice.

DIMENSIONS

(With 6.00-16 and 14.9/13-28 tyres) E: Front track (8 positions):

A. Wheelbase: 1,953 mm from 1,320 to 2,020 mm

B. Overall length: 3,046 mm F: Rear track (8 positions):

C. Height to top of hood: 1,390 mm from 1,200 to 1,900 mm

D. Height to steering wheel: 1,490 mm G: Ground clearance under front axle: 480 mm
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ENGINE POWER
At flywheel 75 HP
OPERATING WEIGHT
2,070 KG
ENGINE

New Holland 8045.06
4-Stroke, direct injection diesel engine

Number of cylinder: 4

Bore and stroke: 100 x 115 mm
Piston Displacement: 3,613 cc
Flyweight type dynamic balancer.

Compression ratio: 171

Max. Torque at 1,400 rpm: 24.9 kgm
Dry-type cylinder liners.

Oil Cooler

Cooling system: water

Five-row, brass tube and copper fin radiator
Forced-feed lubrication system.

Two power outlets for hydraulic pump on timing over.
Distributor type injection pump with mechanical speed
governor.

Exhaust muffler: vertical

Five bearing crankshaft.

FILTERS

Air: Oil-bath with pre-cleaner
Fuel: 2 replaceable cartridges;
Oil: Easy-to-change, continuous-flow cartridge

CLUTCH

Dual plate, dry-type with separate controls (pedal for
transmission and hand ever for PTO).

Diameter of plates: 11inches

Plated facing of asbestos compound.

NH-640

SPECIFICATIONS

TRANSMISSION

Gearbox with constant-mesh gears: 8 forward and 2
reverse speeds. Synchromesh on 3rd, 4th, 7th and 8th
speeds Double control lever. Bevel gear 12/47
Differential lock with pedal actuated and automatic
disconnection.

Spur gear final drives.

Gear Box mounted starter safety switch.

FENDER
Square type with flat top.
TRACKS

Front (8 positions):

1.320- 1,420- 1,520- 1,620
1,720- 1,820- 1,920- 2,020 mm.
Rear (8 positions):

1,320- 1,420- 1,520- 1,620
1,720- 1,820- 1,920- 2,020MM

STEERING

Hydro assisted with independent circuit.
Minimum turning radius:

-with brakes: 3,400 mm
-without brakes: 3,700 mm

POWER TAKE OFF

6 spline shaft- 35 mm dia/1-3"

Fully independent: 540 rpm at 2,160 engine rpm
High-speed DTO(*) 35 mm dia/1- §"

same speed as engine.

(*) for application of high speed implements

HYDRAULIC LIFT

With draft and position control, Draft control through
top link.
Gear type hydraulic pump driven from engine

DRIVER'S SEAT

Fully upholstered, with parallelogram suspension,
adjustable to driver's weight.

BODY

Hood with side-hinged cover for engine inspection.
Front grill is easily removable for quick access to air
cleaner and battery.

LIGHTING SYSTEM
3-position headlights (parking, low & high beam). Rear
parking lights.
Blue high beam warning light on instrument panel and
low oil pressure & battery charging light. Direction
Indicators, Parking & Head lights.

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM

12 Volt starting system, 4hp (3kw) starter motor, 400
watts alternator, 108 ah battery.

CAPACITIES
Fuel tank: 54 ¢
Engine oil: 115 ¢
Hydraulic Transmission: 18¢
Rear Axle: 4+4 ( at both sides
Air Cleaner: 1¢
Power Steering: 1.5¢
BRAKES

Service dry band-type; mechanically operated.
Parking: manual lever.

FRONT AXLE crankshaft.
- - Pump capacity (at 2,400 engine rpm): 24.8 /min

Inverted U section, telescopic type. Relief valve opening pressure: 190 kg/cm?* .

TYRES Response control,3-point linkage Cat I-1I Al-Ghazi Tractors Ltd reserves the

Sway chains. rights to chan ification
Front: 7.50-16 Lift lever lock bracket. gnts O cha ge spec. cations
Rear 16.9/14-30 Max. Lifting capacity: 1,650 kg without prior notice.
DIMENSIONS

(With 7.50-16 and 16.9/14-30 tyres)

A. Wheelbase: 2,070 mm

B. Overall length: 3,200 mm

C. Height to top of hood: 1,430 mm

D. Height to steering wheel: 1,580 mm

: Front track (8 positions):

from 1,320 to 2,020 mm

: Rear track (8 positions):

from 1,320 to 2,020 mm
: Ground clearance under front axle: 520 mm
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MULTIPLE FARM OPERATIONS
AND ROW CROP PATTERNS

DESIGNED WITH
THE OPERATOR COMFORT IN MIND

The operator area of NH-850 is spacious, with front-mounted PT.0 lever, and
well-thought-out covmfort & space, perfect for those long days in the field
Easy access to controls for the operator

Separate PT.0 and main clutch lever

Front mounted PT.0 Clutch lever
Mobile charging port

TRACKS AND ALIGNMENT

6 tracks setting with easy alignment from 1412mm to 2012mm for a wider span of
implement for ease of multiple farm operations and row crop patterns

Seperate clutch system for
transmission with foot pedal

From front to back, you will find it easy to maintain exceptional engineering requiring
low maintenance, the key to
lifelong durability

Refill the 65-litre fuel
tank from ground level

Elegant front grill with powerful
headlights for easy night operations

Engine and hydraulic oil are checked without opening
the bonnet for faster checking and simpler servicing

The oil and fuel filters are easy
to check, and replace with no
need for tools

CONVENIENT AND
TIRELESS OPERATIONS

« Heavy duty front axle, front support, spindles and steering arms for all the types of
front attachments
« Double acting hydrostatic power steering

THE MOST COMFORTABLE
PLACE T0 BE

NH-850 tractor is designed to spend more time working in the fields and less time in
the workshop. For routine maintenance, all service points are readily accessible from
ground level

A canopy for additional protection Spacious leg space and operator area

& comfort in sunny and rainy days

SMOOTH OPERATION WITH HEAVY IMPL

EMENTS

High stability
Control over slip

Efficient traction especially when your implements
are heavy and require a lot of torque

Towing hook

Front weights

Front and rear weights for enhanced traction
Specially designed towing hook for haulage with heavy load trollies

Rear weights
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For more information visit the nearest dealership or contact us at
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2024 and
of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, LI. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427038/32424740; <www .pwe.com/pk>
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Following are the Key Audit Matters:
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S.No.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

i)

Inventories

(Refer note 7 to the annexed
Sfinancial statements)

The Company has significant level of
inventories comprising of raw material,
work-in-process and finished goods. The
Company makes provision against
inventory items that are either cbsolete,
rejected or slow moving. Significant
judgements, assumptions and estimates
are involved to determine the inventory at
lower of cost and net realizable values.

Given the level of significant management
judgements and estimates involved we
considered inventory valuation a key audit
matter.

2 of 5 pages

We performed, amongst others, the following
audit procedures:

+« Obtained understanding of valuation

methodology, the basis and process for
making the inventory provision;

e Obtained understanding of design,

implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key controls
management  has  established for
inventory provision computations;

+ Recalculated a sample of items included

within the inventory provision to ensure
accuracy of caleulation and that
inventories are stated at the lower of cost
or net realizable value at the reporting
date by reviewing relevant documents and
sales prices of inventories subsequent to
the reporting date; and

» Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures

made by the Company in accordance with
applicable accounting and reporting
standards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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S.No.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

(i)

1
Revenue from contracts with

customers

(Refer note 21 lo the annexed

Jinanetal statements)

The Company primarily generates revenue
from sale of tractors and trading goods.
Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when performance obligation is
satisfied i.e., when goods are dispatched
from the premises of the Company.

During the year, Green Tractor Program
had been announced by Government of
Punjab. Under this program, the Company
was required to deliver the tractors to the
dealership and onwards to farmers,
resulting in additional performance
obligation.

We considered revenue recognition as a
key audit matter due to revenue being one
of the key performance indicators of the
Company and an area of significant audit
risk.

We performed, amongst others, the following
audit procedures:

Obtained understanding and evaluated
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of controls over revenue;

Evaluated appropriateness of Company’s
accounting  policies for  revenue
recognition and compliance of those
policies with applicable accounting
standards;

Performed verification of revenue
transactions  with  the underlying
documentation including gate pass,
delivery order, customer delivery receipts,
undertaking from the customers,
registration documents, sales invoice etc.;

Performed cut-off procedures on sample
basis to ensure sales have been recorded

in the correct period;

s Performed verification over discounts,
commission and incentives on sample
basis;

s Performed revenue analyses including
month on month analysis, year on year
analysis, model wise analysis, ete. and
inquire unusual fluctuations, if any; and

s Reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures
made by the Company in this area with
regard to applicable accounting and
reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit eonducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasomably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the aundit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communieated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

{a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,

The Company Secretary
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Tractors House

Plot No.102-B, 16™ East Street
Off Korangi Road, Phase-1
D.H.A, Karachi

14 March 2025

Our reference: ASR 4740

Dear Sir

As requested, we confirm the following:

The partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of Al-Ghazi

2017 (XIX of 2017); Tractors Limited and all partners are in compliance with the International Federation of
. . Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
(h) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

(d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Syed Muhammad Hasnain.

g
A.F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

L—=

Date: March 28, 2025

UDIN: AR202410073N3EaS9CXj
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We have been given satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP
and are registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan.

We are in compliance with IFAC guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that
our partners involved in the audit are not close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

We have not performed any service resulting in non-compliance of IFAC guidelines.

The engagement team, others in the firm and the firm have complied with applicable ethical
requirements regarding independence.

We are not aware of any relationships and other matters between the firm, network firms, and
the company that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on
independence.

Yours truly

z»st"-

i A F. FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, LI. Chundrigar Road, P.0. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www.pwe.com/pk>

*HKARACH| sLAHORE = ISLAMABAD
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2024

Note

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 4 1,838,546 1,607,672
Intangible assets 5 451,160 495
Deferred tax asset 6 79,051 129,972
Long-term loans 2,355 3,459
Long-term deposits 13,864 13,460
Employee benefit prepayments 33 - 32,039
2,384,976 1,787,097
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 7 5,764,333 6,084,499
Trade receivables 8 5,052,051 -
Loans and advances 9 984,688 95,715
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 10 107,456 324,848
Interest accrued 344 3,371
Other receivables 11 49,327 201
Refunds due from the Government 12 5,072,477 4,210,453
Cash and bank balances 13 976,090 1,723,449
18,006,766 12,442,536
TOTAL ASSETS 20,391,742 14,229,633
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 14 289,821 289,821
Unappropriated profit 8,907,092 5,490,404
9,196,913 5,780,225
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred staff benefits - compensated absences 102,052 103,154
Lease liability 15 31,476 46,418
Employee benefit obligations 33 58,763 -
192,291 149,572
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 16 5,383,665 3,812,570
Customers’ advances 17 490,732 131,452
Taxation - provision less payments 206,131 213,815
Unclaimed dividend 60,918 65,498
Unpaid dividend 18 2,416,858 2,416,858
Current portion of lease liability 15 14,943 10,990
Short-term financing 19 2,429,291 1,648,653
11,002,538 8,299,836
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,194,829 8,449,408
COMMITMENTS 20 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20,391,742 14,229,633

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

oAl Al

Director Chief Executive Officer

Lot utet

Chief Financial Officer

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Note
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2024

(Restated)
2023

(Rupees in thousand)

Revenue from contracts with customers 21 34,574,430 34,543,545
Cost of sales 22 (26,139,744) (28,120,477)
Gross profit 8,434,686 6,423,068
Distribution expenses 23 (804,790) (428,974)
Administrative expenses 24 (1,466,521) (1,080,879)
6,163,375 4,913,215
Other income 25 315,630 560,091
Other expenses 26 (323,530) (429,812)
6,155,475 5,043,494
Finance costs 27 (446,775) (356,402)
Profit before taxation and levy 5,708,700 4,687,092
Levy - final tax 28 (2,226) (1,191)
Profit before taxation 5,706,474 4,685,901
Income tax expense 29 (2,164,199) (2,074,129)
Profit for the year 3,542,275 2,611,772
Earnings per share (Rupees) - Basic and diluted 30 61.11 45.06

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

oAl Al

Director Chief Executive Officer

Lot utet

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

Profit for the year 3,542,275 2,611,772

Other comprehensive (loss) / income:

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified
in profit or loss

Remeasurements of post employment
benefit obligations - note 33 (125,587) 36,368

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,416,688 2,648,140

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 31 1,939,471 5,215,278
Income tax and levy paid (2,123,188) (1,908,092)
Finance cost paid (279,288) (227,024)
(Increase) / decrease in long-term deposits (404) 4,346
Employee benefit obligations paid (67,406) (61,974)
(Decrease) / increase in deferred staff benefits
- compensated absences (1,102) 29,549
Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans 1,104 (793)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (530,813) 3,051,290
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment (489,005) (468,664)
Additions to intangible assets (580,064) (330)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 10,464 14,881
Return on bank deposits received 85,332 442,428
Net cash outflow from investing activities (973,273) (11,685)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividend paid (4,580) (9,853)
Recovery of other financial asset - 44,000
Musharkah facility obtained / (paid) - net 780,638 (1,136,320)
Short term borrowing paid - (115,000)
Lease rentals paid (19,331) (17,574)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 756,727 (1,234,747)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (747,359) 1,804,858
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,723,449 (81,409)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32 976,090 1,723,449

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended December 31, 2024

|ssue_d, Revenue Reserves
subscribed
and paid up General Unappropriated
capital reserve profit Total
(Rupees in thousand)
Balance as at January 1, 2023 289,821 - 2,842,264 3,132,085
Transactions with the owners
recorded directly in equity
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2023
Profit for the year ended December 31, 2023 - - 2,611,772 2,611,772
Other comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2023 - - 36,368 36,368
- - 2,648,140 2,648,140
Balance as at January 1, 2024 289,821 - 5,490,404 5,780,225
Transactions with the owners
recorded directly in equity
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2024
Profit for the year ended December 31, 2024 - - 3,542,275 3,542,275
Other comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2024 - - (125,587) (125,587)
- - 3,416,688 3,416,688
Balance as at December 31, 2024 289,821 - 8,907,092 9,196,913

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e

A

Director Chief Executive Officer

Lot utet

Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO AND
FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (how Companies Act, 2017)
as a public limited company in June, 1983 and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of agricultural tractors, implements and spare parts.

The Company is a subsidiary of Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC, U.A.E and its ultimate parent is Al-
Futtaim Holding Limited, U.A.E.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company'’s business units, including plant are as under:

- The registered office of the Company is situated at Tractor House, 102-B, 16th East Street, DHA
Phase I, Off. Korangi Road, Karachi.

- Corporate office situated at Askari Corporate Tower, Plot No. 75D, 76D LDA Scheme Gulberg lll, District
Lahore.

- The assembling plant of the Company is situated at Sakhi Sarwar Road, P.O. Box 38, Dera Ghazi Khan.
- The marketing centres of the Company are situated at:

e J6CV - 58, Sheikhupura Road, Lahore

e Plot No. 20, Industrial Estate, Near Mill No. 4, Multan

e Plaza No. 4, 2nd Floor, Sector A, Jinnah Boulevard (East), DHA Phase II, Islamabad
e House No. B-166, Sukkur Society, 100 FT Road, Opposite JS bank, Sukkar.

In 2021, the Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) initiated proceedings against the Company under
relevant provisions of the Competition Act, 2010. CCP has issued an enquiry report and multiple show
cause notices to the Company. The Company has filed a petition against CCP proceedings and obtained
interim relief from Islamabad High Court through which CCP is restrained from passing any adverse
order against the Company during the pendency of the petition. The matter was fixed for hearing before
the Islamabad High Court who heard the matter afresh and reserved the same for orders. Based on the
relevant facts and advice of the Company’s legal counsel, the Company believes that there are no grounds
which could result in any adverse order against the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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2.2

23

24

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
Company’s liability under employment benefit obligation (gratuity) that is determined based on the present
value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is the Company’'s functional and
presentation currency and all amounts have been rounded off to nearest thousands unless otherwise
indicated.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company'’s accounting policies. The matter involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
provision for taxation and provision for staff retirement benefit.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
There were no significant judgements involved in the application of Company’s accounting policies. The
management has made the following estimates which are significant to the financial statements:

i. Employee benefit obligations

The Company has made certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statement
for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of planned assets, based on
actuarial valuation.

ii. Current and deferred income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes payable by the Company, management considers current
income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain cases issued in the past. Where
the final outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax provision in the period in which such final outcome is determined. Deferred
taxes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date.

ili. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern flow of economic benefit are
based on the recommendation of technical teams of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the
internal and external indicators for possible impairment of assets on an annual basis. Any change in the
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant
and equipment (note 4) and intangible assets (note 5) with a corresponding effect on the depreciation
charge, amortisation charge and impairment.

iv. Provisions

Provisions are considered, among others, for legal matters, disputed indirect taxes and warranty
obligations where a legal or constructive obligation exists at the statement of financial position’s
date and reliable estimate can be made of the likely outcome. The nature of these costs is such that
judgement is involved in estimating the timing and amount of cashflows.

v. Inventories

Estimates with respect to obsolete and slow moving inventories are based on the management’s
assessment on aged based analysis regarding their future usability.
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25

3.1

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements
a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which
are mandatory for Company’s annual accounting period which began on January 1, 2024. However,
these do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial reporting.

b) Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following amendment and standard are effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2025 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Amendment to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments:

These amendments

- clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of some financial assets
and liabilities, with a new exception for some financial liabilities settled through an electronic
cash transfer system;

- clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion;

- add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change cashflows
(such as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment, social and
governance (ESG) targets); and

- make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments designated at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

The management is in process of assessing the impact of above changes.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and
impairment, if any, except freehold land which is stated at cost less impairment, if any.

The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease. Depreciation on all other assets is charged
to statement of profit or loss applying straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset less residual value
is written off over its estimated useful life. The useful life of the assets as estimated by the management
is as follows:

- Leasehold land 99 years
- Building 40 years
- Plant and machinery 10 years
- Furniture and fixtures 4 - 10 years
- Office equipment 10 years
- Computer hardware 3 years
- Vehicles 4 years

- Factory equipments and tools 10 years
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For the year ended December 31, 2024

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each date of
statement of financial position.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month during which the asset is available for use whereas
no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal / retirement of property, plant and equipment are included in statement of
profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Capital work in progress is stated at cost including, where relevant, related financing costs less impairment
losses, if any. These costs are transferred to operating assets as and when assets are available for use.

Intangibles

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of intangible over its estimated useful life of 3 years.

Costs associated with maintaining computer softwares are charged to statement of profit of loss.

Impairment

The carrying values of assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to
their recoverable amount and the resulting impairment is charged to statement of profit or loss.

Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments

Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed and determinable
payments. These are included in current assets, except those with maturities greater than twelve months
after the reporting date, which are classified as hon-current assets.

Interest free loans to employees are stated at amortised cost.

Taxation

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates after taking into account tax
credits and rebates available, if any. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that the taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures its
tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences
arising between tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax liability is generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and prevailing law for taxation on income that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Levy

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount paid/
payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not adjustable
against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit or loss as these levies fall
under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

Inventories

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on moving average
method except for stock-in-transit which is valued at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Cost of finished goods includes prime cost and appropriate portion of manufacturing expenses.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Stores and spares are valued at average cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value
plus other charges incurred thereon.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at the amount of consideration that is unconditional,
unless they contain significant financing components when they are recognised at fair value. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. Refer
note 3.24 for a description of the Company’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost. For the
purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, cheques, demand drafts
in hand and balances with banks on current, savings and deposit accounts and other short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Cash and cash equivalents also include bank overdrafts / short term
borrowings that are repayable on demand. Further, contractual borrowings are not part of cash and cash
equivalents and are part of financing activities.

Staff retirement benefits
(i) Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of
10% of basic salary.

(ii) Defined benefit plan

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension or gratuity that an employee will receive on or after
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors, such as age, years of service and compensation.
A defined benefit plan is a plan that is not a defined contribution plan. The liability recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method.
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3.11

3.12

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash flows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds or the market rates on Government
bonds. These are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related employee benefit obligation.

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The
scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit that an employee will receive on retirement subject to
a minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme.

Contributions to the gratuity scheme are based on actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial
valuation of the scheme was carried out as at December 31, 2024 using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately, with a charge or credit to statement of comprehensive income in the periods in which
they occur.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss.

Deferred staff benefits - compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leave in the
period in which the leave is earned. The liability recognised in respect of compensated absences is based
on employees last drawn salary.

Lease liability and right-of-use asset

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company'’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable.
The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease
payments or an index or rate, change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on
a straight line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration received.
These are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Contract asset and contract liability (Advance from customers)

A contract asset is recognised for the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for goods that it
has transferred to a customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the Company presents the amount as a contract
asset, excluding any amounts presented as a receivable.

A contract liability is recognised for the Company'’s obligation to transfer goods to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If
a customer pays consideration, or the Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e. a receivable), before the Company transfers a good to the customer, the entity shall
present the contract as a contract liability when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
However, the provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Warranty obligations

The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair or replace products under
warranty at the reporting date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the statement of
profit or loss when the sale is recognised.

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupee
at the rates of exchange approximating to those prevailing at the date of statement of financial position.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised in time when control over the goods transfers to the
customer that is when the customer has the ability to control the use of the transferred goods provided
and generally derive their remaining benefits and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the goods. Revenue is recognised as follows:

- revenue from local sales is recognised on dispatch of goods from the premises of the Company.
- revenue from export is recognised on the basis of the terms of sale with the customer.

It is measured at the transaction price which the Company expects to be entitled to and represents the
amount of goods supplied, after netting off discounts, returns and value added taxes.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from contracts for sale of tractors, implements and trading goods is recognized upon delivery
and acknowledgement of the good by the customer i.e. at a point-in-time when the performance
obligation of the Company is satisfied. Since there is only one performance obligation the revenue
is recognized at full amount. Payments for sale of tractors are received in advance from customers,
while in the case of implements and trading goods credit periods are provided as per Company policy
on a case to case basis. The credit term does not include any financing component.
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3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

(b) Warranties

When determining the nature of warranty-related promises, the Company considers whether all or
part of the warranty provides the customer with an additional service beyond the basic assurance that
it will perform in accordance with published specifications.

Standard-type warranties of free repair, parts replacement, assurance and major rectification to the
customer along with free service after specific intervals are not offered separately for any consideration
by the Company and rather are embedded in the sale price of the good. Accordingly, the same are not
considered to be separate performance obligations and are accounted for under 1AS 37.

Other income

Sale of Property, plant and equipment is recognised as income when risk and rewards of ownership are
transferred.

Profit from savings accounts is accounted for as income on accrual basis.

Investment income is recognized when right to receive the income is established.

Borrowings and their costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost . Subsequently,
these are recognised at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing
costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowings payable within next twelve months are
classified as current liabilities.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders is recognised as liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the shareholders / directors, as appropriate.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- thereis a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Financial instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Initial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
given or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may
be. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on
which the Company commits to purchase the financial asset.
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Classification of financial assets
The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or
- atamortised cost.

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification
of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business models for
managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

- thefinancial assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cashflows and selling the financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Classification of financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), or
- atamortised cost.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL
(such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at
FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

(i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income / (10ss).

(ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently
carried at amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

(iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities initially carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction
costs are expressed in the statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with
the Company’s own credit risk will be recognised in statement of comprehensive income. Currently,
there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial asset

The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost and fair value through OCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the following,
which are measured at 12 months ECLs:

- bank balances for whom credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased since the inception.

- employee receivables.
- other short term receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in credit risk since inception.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLSs.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when it is more than 90 days past due.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-months ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period
if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is
a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Company’s procedures for the recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition

(i) Financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial assets expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated
risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment
in a debt instrument classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an
investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to statement of changes in equity.
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3.25

(ii) Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Restatement

During the year the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn the Technical
Release 27 “IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and issued guidance - “IAS 12 Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes". The said guidance requires certain amounts of tax paid
under minimum tax (which is not adjustable against future income tax liability) and final tax regime to be
shown separately as a levy instead of showing it in current tax.

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements retrospectively in accordance
with the requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS 8) — ‘Accounting Policies, Change in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’. There has been no effect on the statement of financial position, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and earning per share as a result of this
change.

After
Had there incorporating
been no Impact of effects of
change in change in change in
accounting accounting accounting
policy policy policy
Rupees in thousand
For the year ended December 31, 2024
Levy - final tax - (2,226) (2,226)
Profit before taxation 5,708,700 (2,226) 5,706,474
Income tax expense (2,166,425) 2,226 (2,164,199)
For the year ended December 31, 2023
Levy - final tax - (1,191) (1,191)
Profit before taxation 4,687,092 (1,191) 4,685,901
Income tax expense (2,075,320) 1,191 (2,074,129)
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets 4.1 1,733,297 1,380,918
Capital work-in-progress 4.2 105,249 226,754
1,838,546 1,607,672
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Disposals (Note 4.1.3)

12,766
(12,766)

12,692
(12,692)

74
(74)

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

(258,131)
1,733,297

(14,236)
39,770

(20,815)
159,476

(67,875)
165,494

(80,717)
306,817

(20,362)
147,224

(13,159) (4,643) (35,559)
140,077 301,432

399,317

(765)
69,356

Depreciation charge

4,334

Closing net book value

Gross carrying value basis
At December 31, 2024

2,904,999
(1,171,702)

1,733,297

71,374
(31,604)
39,770

234,674

394,666

476,590
(169,773)

686,795 215,165
306,817

(385,363)
301,432

186,676
(46,599)
140,077

553,126

81,599
(12,243)

4,334

Cost

(75,198)
159,476

(229,172)

(67,941)
147,224

(153,809)
399,317

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

165,494

69,356

4,334

Net carrying value basis

Year ended December 31, 2023

Opening net book value

Additions

392,204 149,375 189,149 50,146 66,660 96,191 176,817 68,281 1,264,102
113,156 49,071 104,942

70,945

4,334

308,422

11,464

1,920

27,869

Disposals

47,086
(42,786)

3,061

(1,785)
1,276
(20,238)
166,767

16,005

(14,611)

3,766

(3,385)

3,658

(2,962)

20,596
(20,043)

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

4,300
(187,306)
1,380,918

1,394
(50,054)
149,685

381
(39.171)

696
(13,544)
149,062

553
(31,425)
159,091

(14,275)
54,006

(4,655)
144,720

(13,120)

406,953

(824)
70,121

Depreciation charge

76,179

4,334

Closing net book value

Gross carrying value basis
At December 31, 2023

2,307,255

71,374
(17,368)
54,006

221,150

323,674

165,235
(89,056)

196,715

508,895
(349,804)
159,091

186,676
(41,956)
144,720

547,603
(140,650)

406,953

81,599
(11,478)
70,121

4,334

Cost

(926,337)
1,380,918

(173,989) (54,383)
166,767

149,685

(47,653)
149,062

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

76,179

4,334

Operating assets include fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs. 401.12 million (2023: Rs. 382.14 million).
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4.1.1 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Total Area
Location Usage (acres)
Sakhi Sarwar Road,
P.O. Box 38, Dera Ghazi Khan Assembling Plant / Staff Colony 90
Plot No. 20, Industrial Estate,
Near Mill No, 4, Multan Marketing Centre 10
J6CV - 58 , Sheikhupura Road,
Lahore Marketing Centre 1.86
Tractor House,
102-B, 16th East Street, DHA Phase |,
Off. Korangi Road, Karachi Registered Office 0.18

4.1.2 This represents lease of premises acquired for business operations in Lahore.

4.1.3 No property, plant and equipment, having net book value in excess of five hundred thousand rupees or
more were disposed off.

4.2 Capital Work-In-Progress

2024 2023
Transfers to
Balance operating Balance Balance Transfersto  Balance
asat Additions  assets and asat asat Additions  operating asat
January 1,  (Note4.2.1 intangibles December31, January1, (Note 4.2.1 assets  December 31,
2024 &4.22) (Note4.1&5) 2024 2023 &4.22) (Note 4.1) 2023
Rupees in thousand
Civil works 10,297 5,809 (5,113) 10,993 27,810 96,508 (114,021) 10,297
Computer Hardware 5000 238,946 (243,946) - - 5,000 - 5,000
Softwares 159,338 411,550 (570,888) = - 159,338 - 159,338
Plant and machinery = 65,649  (40,615) 25,034 - - - -
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment - 21,277 (10,566 10,711 - - - -

Vehicles - 44,448 (39,443 5,005 - -

Advances to suppliers 52,119
Total 226,754

100,878 (99,491
888,557 (1,010,062

53,506 38,701 292,371 (278,953) 52,119
105,249 66,511 553,217 (392,974) 226,754

)
)
)
)

4.2.1 These include expenditure incurred mainly in respect of computer hardware acquired for the purposes of
implementation of SAP S/4 HANA cloud system amounting to Rs. 238.95 million (2023: Rs. 5 million).

4.2.2 These include expenditure amounting to Rs. 411.55 million (2023: Rs. 159.34 million) incurred for the
purposes of implementation of SAP S/4 HANA cloud system.
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Softwares
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value 495 654
Transfer from capital work-in-progress 4.2 570,888 -
Additions 9,176 330
Amortisation (129,399) (489)
Closing net book value 451,160 495
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 597,733 17,670
Accumulated amortisation (146,573) (17,175)
Net book value 451,160 495

5.1 Softwares include ERP system - SAP and other commercially acquired computer softwares.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET
6.1 Deferred tax asset comprises (deductible) / taxable temporary differences in respect of the following:
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
7. INVENTORIES
Raw materials and components - including
in transit Rs. 532.44 million
(2023: Rs. 1,232.99 million) 7.1 4,803,818 5,233,080
Less: Provision for obsolescence 7.2 (130,010) (367,524)
4,673,808 4,865,556
Work-in-process 341,981 122,732
Stores and spares 165,941 136,096
Less: Provision for obsolescence 7.2 (13,585) (14,346)
152,356 121,750
Finished goods
- tractors and implements 535,641 945,811
Less: Provision for obsolescence 7.2 (387) -
535,254 945,811
Trading stock - spare parts 60,934 28,650
5,764,333 6,084,499

2024 2023
Balance Recognized in Balance Balance Recognized in Balance
asat profit or loss asat as at profit or loss as at
January 01 (Note 29) December 31 January 01 (Note 29) December 31

Rupees in thousand

(Taxable) / deductible temporary
differences

- accelerated tax depreciation

allowances (162,930) (22,820) (185,750) (144,295) (18,635) (162,930)
- deferred staff benefits -

compensated absences 40,232 (432) 39,800 24,290 15,942 40,232
- provision for slow moving

inventories 98,389  (42,236) 56,153 75,927 22,462 98,389
- provision for impairment on

investment - - - 16,271 (16,271) -
- provision for doubtful receivables 4,592 49,238 53,830 9,705 (5,113) 4,592
- provision for sales tax 24,950 - 24,950 21,112 3,838 24,950
- provision others 40,586 (38,621) 1,965 24,588 15,998 40,586
- provision warranty 10,032 8,236 18,268 8,940 1,092 10,032
- provision for special excise duty 51,732 - 51,732 43,774 7,958 51,732
- lease liabilities 22,389 (4,286) 18,103 21,509 880 22,389

7.1 The amount includes raw materials of Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 0.46 million) held by third parties.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

7.2 Provision for obsolescence

(i) Raw material

Balance as at January 1 367,524 282,145
(Reversal) / Charge for the year (210,781) 85,379

156,743 367,524
Written-off during the year (26,733) -
Balance as at December 31 130,010 367,524

(i) Stores and spares

Balance as at January 1 14,346 21,414
Charge / (reversal) for the year - (7,068)

14,346 14,346
Written-off during the year (761) -
Balance as at December 31 13,585 14,346

129,972 (50,921) 79,051 101,821 28,151 129,972

6.2 Under the Finance Act, 2019, corporate rate of tax has been fixed at 29% for tax year 2020 and onwards. As
per Finance Act, 2023, companies operating in certain sectors, including automobile, having income above
Rs. 500 million are liable to pay super tax at 10% for tax year 2023 and onwards. Accordingly, deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been recognised using the expected applicable rate of 39%.

(iii) Finished goods

Balance as at January 1 - 4,960
Charge / (reversal) for the year 387 (4,960)
Balance as at December 31 387 -
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
8. TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured 8.1 5,190,077 11,776
Less: Provision against doubtful receivables 8.2 (138,026) (11,776)
5,052,051 -
8.1 This includes Rs. 3,419 million subsidy receivable from Government of Punjab under the Green Tractor
Program. The age analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
2024 2023
Subsidy Other trade
receivable receivables Total Total
(Rupees in thousand)
Not yet due - 1,091,566 1,091,566 -
1 to 6 months 3,419,000 679,511 4,098,511 -
More than 1 year - - - 11,776
3,419,000 1,771,077 5,190,077 11,776
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
8.2 Provision for doubtful receivables
Balance as at January 1 11,776 29,410
Provision made during the year 126,250 -
Written down during the year - (17,634)
Balance as at December 31 138,026 11,776
9. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good
Loans and advances to employees 9.1 42,877 11,509
Advances to suppliers for goods and services 941,811 84,206
984,688 95,715
9.1 These represent current portion of interest free loans given to employees under employee loan schemes
to facilitate purchase of domestic appliances and motor cycles. The said loans are repayable over a period
of 24 to 36 months and are secured against provident fund balances.The Company has not discounted the
said loans since the amount is immaterial to the financial statements.
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
10. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM
PREPAYMENTS
LC margin against imports - 23,039
Prepayments 10.1 105,775 84,936
Deposit with government authority 10.2 - 215,282
Other deposits 10.3 1,681 1,591

107,456 324,848
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10.1 This includes prepayment of subscriptions amounting to Rs. 45.10 million (2023: Rs. 77.94 million) in respect
of cloud and related services.
10.2 This represents security deposit to Customs paid as a security for releasing container from the port without
paying Customs duty due to non-availability of EDB quota.This amount was recovered during the year.
10.3 These deposits do not carry any mark-up.
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
11. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Tax withheld by customers 47,736 -
Others 1,591 201
49,327 201
12. REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT
Sales tax refundable 121 4,536,925 4,274,428
Less: Provision for sales tax (63,975) (63,975)
4,472,950 4,210,453
Sales tax - net 599,527 -
Special excise duty 12.2 - -
5,072,477 4,210,453
12.1 This represents a sales tax refund which has been accumulating since July 2019. The company has filed

Refund applications through RCPS (Refund Claim Preparation System) of FBR. However, processing of
refund through STARR (Sales Tax Automated Refund Repository) and RPOs (Refund Payment Orders) are
pending at FBR end. The sales tax refund claims have been filed under Agricultural Tractor Refund Rules
stipulated under SRO 363(1)/2012 and SRO 563(1)/2022. The company had challenged the retrospective
change in Agricultural Tractor Sales tax refund rules in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) where the
court has directed the Company to take up the matter with the FBR. The company has challenged the
decision of SHC in Honourable Supreme Court (HSC) of Pakistan and is still pending before HSC. Based
on facts, legal advice, and legal precedents the refund claim of the company is legitimate, that it shall
eventually be realized in full.

During the year, the Company received an order from the Federal Tax Ombudsman (FTO). Through the
order, FTO has issued directions to tax authorities to validate the Company’s compliance with applicable
fiscal laws related to the outstanding sales tax refund. Accordingly, the tax authorities issued show cause
notices under Section 11E(1) and under Section 38 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. The Company challenged
the order before the Honourable President of Pakistan. The Honourable President modified the order of the
FTO, thereby directing the FBR to ensure that in implementing the FTO’s order, no injustice is done to the
Company and that it should in no way prejudice the eventual outcome of the cases before the Honourable
Supreme Court.
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2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

12.2

Special excise duty 132,647 132,647
Provision (132,647) (132,647)

Special Excise Duty was levied on tractor components through Finance Act, 2008 from July 2007 at the rate
of 1% of the invoice value, which was subsequently discontinued in June 2011. This 1% was refundable in
the same manner as normal sales tax refunds.

Due to non-routine processing of the SED refunds the outstanding balance kept accumulating to the tune
of Rs. 251 million till September 2013.

The matter was then taken up with the Federal Tax Ombudsman (FTO), and an appeal in this regard was
filed. FTO decided the matter in the Company’s favor and directed FBR to process the unprocessed claim.
Certain claims were processed and refund payment order (RPO) of Rs. 135 million was issued till December
2019.

In 2019, the Company re-assessed its assessment for recovery of Special excise duty recoverable since
2008 and after due consideration on a prudent basis a provision of Rs 132.60 million has been created
against balance for special excise duty.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks in
Conventional
- Current accounts 190,845 295,911
- Savings and deposit accounts 13.1 531,655 436,412
Islamic
- Current accounts 44,906 49,486
- Savings and deposit accounts 13.1 23,339 107,975
Cash in hand 1,526 1,093
Demand drafts in hand 183,819 832,572
976,090 1,723,449
13.1 During the year, the mark-up / profit rates on savings and deposit accounts range from 5.50% to 20.50%

per annum (2023: 7.51% to 21.05% per annum).
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2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

14. SHARE CAPITAL

14.1 Authorised share capital
120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each

(2023: 120,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 5 each) 600,000 600,000

14.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of
Rs. 5 each
2023 2024 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

4,500,000 4,500,000 Shares allotted for
consideration paid in cash 22,500 22,500

53,464,201 53,464,201  Shares allotted as
bonus shares 267,321 267,321
57,964,201 57,964,201 289,821 289,821

14.3 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. Holders of these shares
are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general
meetings of the Company.

14.4 As at December 31, 2024, Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC, U.A.E., the holding company, and CNH
Industrial N.V., an associated company, held 50.02%, i.e., 28,992,705 (2023: 28,992,705) and 43.17%, i.e.,
25,022,379 (2023: 25,022,379) shares of Rs. 5 each respectively.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

15. LEASE LIABILITY
Balance as at January 1 57,408 65,178
Unwinding of finance cost 8,342 9,804
Lease rentals paid (19,331) (17,574)
Balance as at December 31 46,419 57,408
Current portion 14,943 10,990
Non-current portion 31,476 46,418

46,419 57,408
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15.1 Lease liabilities payable are as follows:
2024 2023
Minimum Present value Present value
lease of minimum of minimum
payments Interest lease payments lease payments
(Rupees in thousand)
Less than one year 21,265 (6,322) 14,943 10,990
Between one and five years 35,644 (4,168) 31,476 46,418
56,909 (10,490) 46,419 57,408
15.2 Finance charge at rate of 17.06% (2023: 17.06%) per annum has been used for discounting factor.
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 16.1 815,987 142,605
Bills payable to foreign supplier 25,612 141,424
Freight payable to Al Futtaim Logistics

- associated company 164,697 165,936
Accrued liabilities 16.2 3,027,528 2,366,673
Deposits 16.3 81,874 77,180
Taxes deducted at source 60,903 48,519
Workers' Welfare Fund 16.4 119,927 106,231
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 16.5 15,790 11,864
Royalty payable to CNH Industrial N.V.

- associated company 833,503 609,811
Provision for warranty services 16.6 46,342 25,722
Accrued markup 16.7 161,838 8,291
Others 29,164 108,314

5,383,665 3,812,570
16.1 These include amount payable to a related party, CNH Industrial N.V., amounting to Rs. 1.55 million (2023:
Rs. 1.55 million) against purchases made in 2021.
16.2 These include liabilities amounting to Rs. 532.44 million (2023: Rs. 1,232.99 million) pertaining to raw
material and components in transit.
16.3 These include security deposits received from dealers / customers utilisable for the purpose of the business
in accordance with requirements of written agreements, in terms of section 217 of the Companies Act,
2017.
2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
16.4 Workers’ Welfare Fund
Balance as at January 1 106,231 84,579
Allocation for the year 116,260 104,283
222,491 188,862
Less: Amount paid during the year (102,564) (82,631)

Balance as at December 31 119,927 106,231
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2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

16.5 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund
Balance as at January 1 11,864 -
Allocation for the year 306,636 252,178
Interest 1,782 -
320,282 252,178
Less: Amount paid during the year (304,492) (240,314)
Balance as at December 31 15,790 11,864
16.6 Provision for warranty services
Balance as at January 1 25,722 27,091
Expense recognised during the year 30,310 27,307
Claims against provision (9,190) (28,676)
Balance as at December 31 46,842 25,722
16.7 Accrued markup
- Conventional 36,818 -
- Islamic 125,020 8,291
161,838 8,291
17. CUSTOMERS' ADVANCES
These represent amount received in advance from customers against performance obligations / sales
to be made in subsequent periods i.e. sale of tractors, and carry no mark-up. Advance received from
customer is recognised as revenue when the performance obligation in accordance with the policy as
described in note 3.18 is satisfied.
During the year, the Company recognised revenue amounting to Rs. 115.74 million (2023: Rs. 126.20 million)
out of the advance balance outstanding at beginning of the year.
18. UNPAID DIVIDEND
This represents unpaid dividend for the year ended December 31, 2021, awaiting approval from the State
Bank of Pakistan.
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
19. SHORT-TERM FINANCING
- under mark up / profit arrangement
Islamic Finances 19.1&19.3 2,429,291 1,648,653
Conventional Finances 19.2 & 19.3 - -
2,429,291 1,648,653
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19.1

19.2

19.3

20.
201

20.2

21.

The facility for running musharkah available from banks amounted to Rs. 3,500 million (2023: Rs. 3,500
million) out of which the amount unavailed at the year end was Rs. 1,070.71 million (2023: Rs. 1,851.35
million). Rates of profit ranges from one month KIBOR plus 0.4% (2023: one month KIBOR plus 0.4%) to
three months KIBOR plus 0.25% (2023: three months KIBOR plus 0.25%) per annum.

The facility for running finance available from banks amounted to Rs. 2,000 million (2023: Rs. 2,000 million)
out of which the amount unavailed at the year end was Rs. 2,000 million (2023: Rs. 2,000 million). Rates of
mark-up ranges from one month KIBOR plus 0.25% (2023: one month KIBOR plus 0.25%) to three months
KIBOR plus 1% (2023: three months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. Running finance facility payable on demand
amounted to Nil (2023: Nil).

The above arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation of selected plant and machinery and pari-
passu charge against hypothecation of Company’s present and future current assets amounting to Rs.
9,336 million (2023: Rs. 9,336 million).

COMMITMENTS

Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at December 31, 2024, amounted to Rs. 521.23
million (2023: Rs. 460.91 million).

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2024, amounted to Rs. 5,550
million (2023: Rs. 4,350 million) out of which unutilised balance at year end amounted to Rs. 4,527.51
million (2023: Rs. 935.82 million).

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

2024 2023
Trading goods Trading goods
Tractors and others Total Tractors and others Total

Rupees in thousand

Local sales 37,174,912 291,012 37,465,924 34,827,124 356,830 35,183,954
Export sales 328,351 = 328,351 119,134 - 119,134

37,503,263 291,012 37,794,275 34,946,258 356,830 35,303,088

Less:
- Discounts,
Commissions
and incentives | (1,016,337) (7,819) | | (1,024,156) (676,833) (6,549) (683,382)
- Sales tax (2,149,143) (46,546) | | (2,195,689) - (76,161) (76,161)
(3,165,480) (54,365) (3,219,845) (676,833) (82,710) (759,543)
34,337,783 236,647 34,574,430 34,269,425 274,120 34,543,545

21.1 These financial statements do not include disclosure relating to IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” as the

Company is considered to be a single operating segment.

21.2 Management considers that revenue from its ordinary activities are shariah compliant.
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
22. COST OF SALES
Manufactured goods
Raw materials and components consumed 221 23,876,196 24,759,178
Salaries, wages and benefits 790,309 654,555
Charge for defined benefit plan 13,246 14,092
Charge for defined contribution plan 15,779 11,442
Stores and supplies 356,086 313,050
Royalty and technical fee 294,811 296,557
Insurance 3,908 3,062
Depreciation 90,324 75,193
Fuel, power and electricity 141,304 154,838
Inwards freight and transportation 16,844 13,454
Repairs and maintenance 143,230 174,072
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment 46,309 24,878
Rent, rates and taxes 1,343 1,734
Communication 764 1,197
Printing and stationery 6,765 4,878
Others 939 19,126
Opening stock of work-in-process 122,732 88,231
Closing stock of work-in-process (341,981) (122,732)
Cost of goods manufactured 25,578,908 26,486,805
Opening stock of finished goods 945,811 2,395,491
Closing stock of finished goods (535,254) (945,811)
25,989,465 27,936,485
Trading goods
Opening stock 28,650 18,284
Purchases 182,563 194,358
211,213 212,642
Closing stock (60,934) (28,650)
150,279 183,992
26,139,744 28,120,477
22.1 In 2021, the Company received four show cause notices from Collector of Customs (Adjudication - I)

for recovery of duty and taxes amounting to Rs. 394.74 million in respect of imports made during past
years. Subsequently, the Collector of Customs (Adjudication - 1) has decided these notices by upholding
the charges levied in the notices. The Company filed appeals before Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi,
against the order. The appeals were allowed in favour of the Company where the orders passed by Collector
of Customs (Adjudication - 1) was set aside. The Directorate of Intelligence and Investigation, Karachi, has
filed three applications before Sindh High Court. Regular hearings are being held and the Company, based
on the legal advisor’s opinion, is confident that outcome of the case would be in the Company’s favour.
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2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

24.3 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee 3,163 2,750
Fee for limited review of half yearly

financial statements 575 500
Certification for compliance with Code of

Corporate Governance, certifications for

government and other agencies and other services 2,150 4,700
Out of pocket expenses 2,700 825

8,588 8,775

244

This represents transformation and consultancy charges in respect of quality and standards upgradation

activity carried out during the year.

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
23. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 179,005 148,049
Charge for defined benefit plan 7,377 5,420
Charge for defined contribution plan 7,166 5,118
Insurance 4,219 2,891
Provision against doubtful receivables 126,250 -
Depreciation 29,376 20,139
Electricity 7,279 5,314
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment 50,564 36,341
Repairs and maintenance 5,193 3,741
Rent, rates and taxes 3,203 8,416
Communication 5,053 6,601
Advertisement and promotion 23.1 182,162 88,270
After sales expense 87,300 44,232
Warranty expense 30,310 27,307
Freight charges 70,032 17,888
Legal and professional charges 3,128 2,013
Printing and stationery 1,900 2,044
Others 5,273 5,190
804,790 428,974
23.1 This includes expenditure amounting to Rs. 117.93 million incurred on account of advertisement and
promotion of newly launched 85 HP tractor (NH-850).
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
24. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 410,027 404,498
Charge for defined benefit plan 11,998 20,021
Charge for defined contribution plan 15,594 13,184
Insurance 6,806 6,732
Depreciation 138,431 91,973
Amortisation 129,399 489
Electricity 19,804 17,602
Travelling, vehicle running and entertainment 69,217 101,761
Repairs and maintenance 17,796 2,706
Rent, rates and taxes 8,495 10,822
Fees and subscription 24.1&24.2 508,319 218,094
Communication 8,856 33,028
Auditors’ remuneration 24.3 8,588 8,775
Advertising 1,291 471
Transformation charges 24.4 50,113 88,195
Legal and professional charges 46,062 43,362
Printing and stationery 12,531 7,374
Others 3,194 11,792
1,466,521 1,080,879
24.1 This includes fee paid to directors amounting Rs. 7.91 million (2023: Rs. 8.59 million).
24.2 This includes subscription paid in respect of cloud and related services amounting to Rs. 300.08 million

(2023: Rs. 197.43 million).

25. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Return on savings and deposit accounts 82,305 444,249
Income from other assets
Scrap sales 76,296 43,173
Provision against doubtful receivables written down - 17,635
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 10,464 10,581
Recovery of other financial asset - 44,000
Exchange gain 14,558 -
Liabilities no longer payable written back 130,639 -
Others 1,368 453
233,325 115,842
315,630 560,091
26. OTHER EXPENSES
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 306,636 252,178
Workers' Welfare Fund 116,260 104,283
(Reversal) / provision against
slow moving and obsolete inventories (99,366) 73,351
323,530 429,812
27. FINANCE COSTS
Bank charges and commission 3,816 2,562
Mark up on Islamic financing 354,868 86,697
Mark up on running finance 77,967 27,324
Exchange loss - 230,015
Finance charges on finance lease 8,342 9,804
Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 1,782 -
446,775 356,402
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so2d (Rezsggged) 30.1 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible
Note (Rupees in thousand) mstruments in |_ssue as at December 31,_ 2024 and 2023 which would have any effect on the earnings per
share if the option to convert was exercised.
28. LEVY 2024 2023
Final tax u/s 154 28.1 2,226 1,191 Note (Rupees in thousand)

28.1 This represents final tax paid under section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 before June 30, 2024. 31.  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Restated) Profit before taxation and levy 5,708,700 4,687,092
2024 ) 2023 Add / (less): Adjustment for non-cash charges
(Rupees in thousand) and other items
29.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE Depreciation and amortisation 387,530 187,794
current Retirement benefits charge 32,621 39,533
Provision against doubtful receivables 126,250 -
- for the year 2,102,913 1,868,431 Mark up on short-term financing 432,835 114,021
- prior year charge 10,365 233,849 Interest on lease liability 8,342 9,804
Deferred 50,921 (28,151) Re<_:overy _of other financial asset _ - (44,000)
2.164.199 2,074,129 Gain on disposal of Pr(_Jperty, plant and equipment (10,464) (10,581)
Return on bank deposits (82,305) (444,249)
. - Provision against slow moving and obsolete inventories (99,366) 73,351
291 Re;zzlg:::i:f bit)v:i(:_en tax expense and Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 1,782 -
gp ) Liabilities no longer payable written back (130,639) -
2024 2023 2024 2023 6 375.286 4612765
(Percentage) (Rupees in thousand) ! ! ! !
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
ACCOUI’ltiI’lg pI’OfIt befOI’e taX and |eVy 5,708,700 4,687,092 (|ncrease) / decrease in Current assets
. Inventories 419,532 (894,276)
Tax at applicable rate 29.00% 29.00% 1,655,523 1,359,257 Trade receivables (5.178,301) 161.820
Effect of final tax on exports (0.22)% (0.11% (12,377) (4,936) Loans and advances (888,973) (4,610)
Prior year charge 0.18 % 0.00 % 10,365 - Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 217,392 48,055
Tax effect on permanent differences  (1.04)% 0.21 % (59,401) 9,834 Other receivables (49,126) 4,632
Refunds due from the Government (862,024) (7,058)
Super tax
- Current year 10.00% 10.25% 570,870 480,409 (6,341.500) (691,437)
- Prior year 0.00% 4.99% - 233,849 Increase in current liabilities
Others 0.03% (0.07)% 1,445 (3,093) Trade and other payables 1,546,405 1,273,655
38% 44% 2,166,425 2,075,320 Customers’ advances 359,280 20,295
(4,435,815) 602,513
Effective rate (percentage) 38% 44% Cash generated from operations 1,939,471 5,215,278
2024 2023 32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
30. EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted gﬁ;?tatg(rjns ?irrlllért]);ls\gces 11)32 976’099 1’723’44?
Profit after taxation attributable to 976 090 1723449
ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand) 3,542,275 2,611,772 - —

Weighted average number of shares 33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS / PREPAYMENTS

In issue during the year (in thousand) S 57,964 33.1 As stated in note 3.10 (ii) the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent
employees. The scheme defines an amount of gratuity benefit that an employee will receive on retirement
subject to a minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is
carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuations of the scheme was carried out as at December
31, 2024.

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 61.11 45.06
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33.2

33.3

Plan assets held in trusts are governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust Act, 1882 (which
is now repealed, and Provincial Trust Acts are promulgated in September 2020), Companies Act, 2017,
Income Tax Rules, 2002, and Rules under the Trust deeds of the Plans. Responsibility for governance of the
Plans, including investment decisions and contribution schedules, rests with the Board of Trustees. The
Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.

Risks on account of defined benefit plan
The Company faces the following risks on account of defined benefit plan:

Final Salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the
Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also
increase proportionately.

Asset volatility - Most assets are invested in short term savings accounts. However, instruments in Open-
ended Mutual Funds are subject to adverse fluctuation as a result of change of market price.

Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using discount rate set with reference to
market yields on government bonds. A decrease in market yields on government bonds will increase plan
liabilities.

Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the
liabilities. The risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of plan investments.

Risk of insufficiency of assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the fund as advised
by the actuary.

33.4 The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2024 was carried out using the Projected Unit
Credit Method. Details of the Fund as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
33.5 Statement of financial position
reconciliation as at December 31
Present value of defined benefit obligation 33.6 429,725 325,566
Fair value of plan assets 33.7 (370,962) (357,605)
58,763 (32,039)
33.6 Movement in present value of defined
benefit obligation
Obligation as at January 1 325,566 302,263
Current service cost 47,113 43,696
Interest expense 41,865 39,486
Remeasurement on obligation 93,336 (48,980)
Benefits paid (78,155) (10,899)

Obligation as at December 31 429,725 325,566

NOTES TO AND
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2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

33.7 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Fair value as at January 1 357,605 275,493
Interest income 56,357 43,649
Remeasurement on plan assets (32,251) (12,612)
Employer contributions 67,406 61,974
Benefits paid (78,155) (10,899)
Fair value as at December 31 370,962 357,605
33.8 Expense recognised in
statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 47,113 43,696
Interest income - net (14,492) (4,163)
32,621 39,533
33.9 Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of obligation (93,336) 48,980
Remeasurement of fair value of plan assets (32,251) (12,612)
Remeasurements (loss) / gain (125,587) 36,368
33.10 Net recognised liability / (asset)
Balance as at January 1 (32,039) 26,770
Expense for the year 32,621 39,533
Employer contributions (67,406) (61,974)
Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income 125,587 (36,368)
Balance as at December 31 58,763 (32,039)
33.11 Composition of plan assets:
2024 2023
Rupees in Rupees in
thousand % thousand %
(Rupees in thousand)
Cash at bank 239,291 64.51 258,088 7217
Mutual Funds 131,671 35.49 99,517 27.83
370,962 100.00 357,605 100.00
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33.17 Historical information

2024 2023 2021 2020 2019

Rupees in thousand

2024 2023
33.12 Actuarial assumptions
Expected rate of increase in salaries
- Management staff
- Short-term - 1 year 17.00% 10.00%
- Long-term - more than 1 year 14.00% 16.00%
- Non-management staff
- Short-term - 1 year 17.00% 10.00%
- Long-term - more than 1 year 14.00% 16.00%
Discount factor used 12.00% 16.00%

33.13

3314

33.15

33.16

Pre-Retirement mortality was assumed to be SLIC (2001-05) for males and females, as the case may be,
but rated down one year.

The Company ensures asset / liability matching by investing in short-term deposits and does not use
derivatives to manage its risk.

The expected return on plan assets has been determined by considering the expected returns available on
the assets underlying the current investment policy.

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption

(Rupees in thousand)

Discount rate at December 31 1% (19,588) 21,878
Future salary increases 1% 19,770 (18,045)

If longevity increases by 1 year, the resultant decrease in obligation is insignificant.

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability
recognised within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared
to the previous period.

As at December 31
Present value of

defined benefit obligation 429,725 325,566 302,263 247,409 207,226
Fair value of plan assets (370,962) (357,605) (275,493) (255,890) (243,423)
Deficit / (surplus) 58,763 (32,039) 26,770 (8,481) (36,197)

Experience adjustments

(Loss) / gain on obligation (93,336) 43,980 (30,226) (21,596) 39,065
Loss on plan assets (32,251) (12,612) (9,145) (11,267) (4,317)
(125,587) 36,368 (39,371) (32,863) 34,748

33.18 The expected return on plan assets is based on the market expectations and depends upon the asset

portfolio of the fund, at the beginning of the period.

33.19 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on

the assets underlying the current investment policy.

As per actuarial advice, the Company is expected to contribute Rs. 47.65 million towards gratuity fund in
2025 (2023: Rs. 30.08 million).

The actuary conducts separate valuations for calculating contribution rates and the Company contributes
to the gratuity fund according to the actuary’s advice. Expense of the defined benefit plan is calculated
by the actuary.

33.20 The weighted average duration of employees is 4.87 years (2023: 6.10 years).

33.21 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan is as follows:

Less than Between Between Between Over
Retirement benefit plan ayear 1-2years 2 - 5 years 5-10 years 10 years Total

Rupees in thousand

At December 31, 2024 112,089 76,383 156,867 197,322 514,621 1,057,282

At December 31, 2023 158,133 42,452 109,765 122,577 1,642,838 2,075,765
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
34.1 Therelated parties comprise related group companies, staff retirement benefits, directors, key management
personnel and close members of the family of directors and key management personnel. The Company in
the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties.
Transactions with related parties are as follows:
2024 2023
Nature of relationship Nature of transactions (Rupees in thousand)
i. Associate company
CNH Industrial N.V. Royalty paid 71,120 -
Royalty charge 257,184 257,033
ii. Other related parties
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Staff Provident Fund Contribution paid 76,918 88,514
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Employees’ Gratuity Fund Contribution paid 67,406 61,974
Key management Salaries and
personnel * other employee benefits 281,012 210,680
Retirement benefits 30,903 17,171
* Key management personnel includes CEO, CFO and all Head of the Departments.
The outstanding balances of related parties as at December 31, 2024 are included in trade and other
payables. These are settled in the ordinary course of business.
34.2 Following are the related parties including associated companies with whom the Company had entered

into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:

S.No. Name of Related Party Relationship Direct Share Holding %
1. Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC Parent 50.02%
2. CNH Industrial N.V. Associate 43.17%

34.2.1 Al-Futtaim Industries Company LLC is a Company incorporated in Dubai.

34.2.2 CNH Industrial N.V. is a Company incorporated in the Netherlands.The registered office of the Company is

situated at World T.C., Amsterdam Airport, Schiphol Boulevard 217, 1118 Bh, Schiphol Airport, Netherlands.
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35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits, to the
Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:
Chief Executive Director Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees in thousand

Managerial remuneration 1,815 1,381 - - 430,800 261,900

Bonus - - - - 17,507 8,080

House rent - 1,061 - - 145,943 77,202

Utilities - - - - 32,726 17,156

Retirement benefits - 253 - - 76,878 31,447

Leave passage - 690 - - 44,382 38,435

1,815 3,385 = - 748,236 434,220

Number of persons 1 1 - - 87 49

- The Chief Executive and Executives are also provided with Company maintained cars and are
entitled to medical benefits in accordance with their entitlements.

- The Chief Executive and Directors are entitled to other remuneration which is borne by the Parent
Company therefore, it is not included here.

- Aggregate amount charged to statement of profit or loss for the year in respect of fee to director
was Rs. 7.91 million (2023: Rs. 8.59 million).

- During the year, Ms. Samiha Zahid, had been appointed as Independent Director of the Company
with effect from September 05, 2024, in place of Ms. Farah Qureshi to fill the casual vacancy for the
remainder term of the Board.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
36.1 Financial risk management

The Company'’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks namely market risks (including interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on having cost effective funding as well as manage financial risk to minimise earnings
volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders.
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36.2 Financial assets and liabilities by category and their respective maturities The effective mark-up rates for the monetary financial assets are mentioned in respective notes to the

financial statements.

Interest / mark-up bearing Non interest bearing

Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity (i) Concentrations of credit risk
up to one after one up to one after one
year year Sub-total year year Sub-total Total Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if

Rupees in thousand counterparties failed to perform as contracted. Financial assets are written off when there is no

AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

FINANCIAL ASSETS
At amortised cost

reasonable expectation of recovery such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan of the
Company. Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 6,138.59 million (2023: Rs. 1,780.08 million) the
financial assets exposed to the credit risk amount to Rs. 5,953.24 million (2023: Rs. 946.41 million)
which mainly comprise of trade receivables and balances with banks.

Loans and advances 42,877 2,355 45,232 45,232
Deposits 1,681 13,864 15,545 15,545 The Company places surplus funds with various reputed banks having credit ratings ranging from "A-1"
Interest accrued 344 - 344 344 to "A-1+" as assigned by credit rating agencies. The Company monitors its exposure to a single bank
Trade receivables 5,052,051 5,052,051 5,052,051 its ratings on continuous basis.
Other receivables - - 49,327 49,327 49,327
Cash and bank balances 554,994 554,994 421,096 421,096 976,090 The Company's products are mainly sold against cash or demand drafts issued by Zarai Taragiati Bank
554.994 554994 5567376 16219 5583595 6,138,589 Limited (ZTBL) and certgm other commercial banks. Du_rmg the year, the Company §old tractor_s _under
Green Tractor Program in which the Government subsidised the customers by paying Rs. 1 million on
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES each tractors sold under the program. As of December 31, 2024, out of the total trade receivables of
At amortised cost Rs. 5,190.08 million the trade receivables exposed to the credit risk amounting to Rs. 1,771.08 million
Trade and other payables 5,140,203 5,140,203 5,140,203 relates to independent customers and Rs. 3,419 million relates to receivables from the Government of
Unclaimed dividend = = 60,918 60,918 60,918 Punjab.
Short-term borrowings 2,429,291 2,429,291 - - 2,429,291
Lease liability 14,943 31,476 46,419 - - 46,419 Loans to employees are not exposed to any material credit risk and are secured against the retirement
Unpaid dividend - - - 2,416,858 2,416,858 2,416,858 benefits of the respective employees.
2,444,234 31,476 2,475,710 7,617,979 7,617,979 10,093,689 . o L
Other receivables are not exposed to any significant credit risk.
AT DECEMBER 31, 2023
Deposits have been placed mainly with government institutions, hence exposed to no significant
FINANCIAL ASSETS credit risk.
At amortised cost
Loans and advances 11,509 3,459 14,968 14,968 The management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparts.
Deposits 24,630 13,460 38,090 38,090
Interest accrued 3,371 - 3,371 3,371 (i) Liquidity risk
Other receivables - - 201 201 201 o . . . e ) L .
Cash and bank balances 544,387 544,387 1,179,062 1179,062 1,723,449 quwdl_ty rls_k |s_ th_e_ _rlsk that an e_nt|fcy_ W|II_ encounter d|ff|CL_|It|es_ in mqetlr!g_obllgat!ons associated
with financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the
544,387 544,387 1,218,773 16,919 1,235,692 1,780,079 availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES close out market positions.
At amortised cost
Trade and other payables 3,620,234 3,620,234 3,620,234 The Company’s liquidity management ir_1vo|_ves projecting cash flow_s and c_o_nsid_erin_g_the Ieyel of quuid
Unclaimed dividend . . 65,498 65,498 65,498 assets necessary to meet these monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against
Short-term borrowings 1,648,653 1,648,653 ; - 1,648,653 internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
Lease liability 10,990 46,418 57,408 - - 57,408
Unpaid dividend - - - 2,416,858 2,416,858 2,416,858
1,659,643 46,418 1,706,061 6,102,590 6,102,590 7,808,651
Off balance sheet items
Financial commitments:
Contracts for capital expenditure 521,228
Letters of credit and guarantee 1,023,492
2024 1,544,720
2023 3,875,096
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The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

2024
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to One to
amount cash flows or less twelve months five years

Rupees in thousand

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 5,140,203  (5,140,203) (5,140,203) - -
Unclaimed dividend 60,918 (60,918) (60,918) - -
Unpaid dividend 2,416,858  (2,416,858) (2,416,858) - -
Lease liability 46,419 (56,909) (10,126) (11,139) (35,644)
Short-term financing 2,429,291  (2,429,291) (2,429,291) - -

10,093,689 (10,104,179) (10,057,396) (11,139) (35,644)

2023
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to One to
amount cash flows or less twelve months five years

Rupees in thousand

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 3,620,234  (3,620,234) (3,620,234) - -
Unclaimed dividend 65,498 (65,498) (65,498) - -
Unpaid dividend 2,416,858 (2,416,858) (2,416,858) - -
Lease liability 57,408 (76,241) (9,206) (10,126) (56,909)
Short-term financing 1,648,653  (1,648,653) (1,648,653) - -

7,808,651  (7,827,484) (7,760,449) (10,126) (56,909)

(iif) Market risk

a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of the financial instruments, will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where
receivables and payables exist due to foreign currency transactions. At December 31, 2024 trade
and other payables exposed to foreign currency risk amount to Rs. 1,153.49 million (2023: Rs.
2,018.09 million).

The company imports raw materials and components in US Dollar and is exposed to Rupee / US
Dollar exchange risk. If the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 4% against US Dollar
with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower/
higher by Rs. 46.14 million (2023: Rs. 80.72 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on settlement of US Dollar denominated trade payables.

The sensitivity of foreign exchange rate looks at the outstanding foreign exchange balances of
the Company only as at the statement of financial position date and assumes this is the position
for the year. The volatility percentages for movement in foreign exchange rates have been used
due to the fact that historically (five years) rates have moved on average basis by the mentioned
percentage per annum.
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b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in the market interest rates. The Company'’s interest rate risk arises from short-term financing
which includes running finance facilities (note 19), cash and bank in savings accounts and deposit
accounts (note 13). Short-term financing availed at variable rates expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk.
As at December 31, 2024, the Company’s interest bearing financial assets amounted to Rs. 554.99
million (2023: Rs. 544.39 million) and liabilities of Rs. 2,429.29 million (2023: Rs. 1,648.65 million)
had the interest rate varied by 100 basis points with all the other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been approximately higher / lower by Rs. 18.74 million (2023:
Rs. 11.04 million) as a result of lower / higher interest income on savings and deposit accounts.
¢) Pricerisk
Price risk is the risk that fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the fund or it's
management company.
There is no exposure to price risk as at December 31, 2024 as the Company does not hold any
financial assets subject to price risk.
d) Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
2024
Short-term
borrowing
including accrued Lease Unclaimed Unpaid
mark-up thereon liability dividend dividend Total
Rupees in thousand
Balance as at January 1 1,656,944 57,408 65,498 2,416,858 4,196,708
Changes from financing cash flows:
Changes in short-term borrowings 780,638 = = = 780,638
Dividend paid - - (4,580) = (4,580)
Lease rentals paid - (19,331) - - (19,331)
Transaction cost paid - - - - -
Total changes in financing activities 780,638 (19,331) (4,580) - 756,727
Other changes:
Finance cost 432,835 8,342 - - 441,177
Finance cost paid (279,288) - - - (279,288)
Total other changes 153,547 8,342 - - 161,889
Balance as at December 31 2,591,129 46,419 60,918 2,416,858 5,115,324
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There were no financial instruments classifiable under level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during

the year.

2023
Short-term
borrowing
including accrued Lease Unclaimed Unpaid
mark-up thereon liability dividend dividend Total
Rupees in thousand
Balance as at January 1 3,830,666 65,178 75,351 2,416,858 6,388,053
Changes from financing cash flows:
Changes in short-term borrowings (2,060,719) - - - 11(2,060,719)
Dividend paid - - (9,853) - (9,853)
Lease rentals paid - (17,574) - - (17,574)
Total changes in financing activities  (2,060,719) (17,574) (9,853) - (2,088,146)
Other changes:
Finance cost 114,021 9,804 - - 123,825
Finance cost paid (227,024) - - - (227,024)
Total other changes (113,003) 9,804 - - (103,199)
Balance as at December 31 1,656,944 57,408 65,498 2,416,858 4,196,708

(iv) Fair values of the financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

As at December 31, 2024, all financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost.

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements
approximate their fair values. The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the transfer has occurred.

The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred
includes monitoring of the following factors:

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases / decreases in activity).

- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable
in the market).

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company'’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares.
38. PROVIDENT AND OTHER CONTRIBUTORY FUNDS RELATED DISCLOSURES
All investments out of provident fund and contributory retirement fund (Gratuity) have been made in the in
collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities in accordance with the provisions
of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for the purpose.
39. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SHARIAH COMPLIANCE
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Disclosures in relation to the statement
of financial position - Liability
i) Short-term financing obtained as per islamic mode 19 2,429,291 1,648,653
i)  Mark-up accrued on conventional loan or advance 16.7 36,818 -
iii) Mark-up accrued on islamic loan or advance 16.7 125,020 8,291
Disclosures in relation to the statement
of financial position - Assets
i) Shariah-compliant bank balances 13 68,245 157,461
ii) Interestaccrued - islamic 80 1,350
Disclosures required in relation to the
statement of profit of loss and other
comprehensive income
i)  Revenue earned from a Shariah compliant
business segment 21 34,574,430 34,543,545
ii)  Profit earned from Shariah compliant bank balances 25 4,045 33,799
iii) Exchange gain / (loss) earned from actual currency 25 & 27 14,558 (230,015)
iv) Profit paid on Islamic mode of financing 238,139 186,585
Break-up of other income excluding profits in
bank deposits and TDRs
Shariah compliant income:
- Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 10,464 10,581
- Scrap sales 25 76,296 43,173
- Liabilities no longer payable written back 25 130,639 -
- Others 25 1,368 453
Shariah non-compliant income:
- Return on savings and deposit accounts 25 78,260 410,450




240 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited

NOTES TO AND
FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2024

39.1 Relationship with shariah compliant financial institutions
Islamic Banks
The Company has facilities with Meezan Bank Limited for letter of credit and running musharakah
amounting to Rs. 1,000 million and Rs. 2,000 million respectively.

The Company has facilities with Faysal Bank Limited for running musharakah, letter of credit and letter of
guarantee amounting to Rs 1,500 million, Rs. 1,000 million and Rs. 150 million respectively.

Takaful operators
The company has no relationship with takaful operators.

2024 2023
40. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Plant capacity (single shift) - units 30,000 30,000
Actual production - units 14,069 14,317
Actual production of tractors varies in line with the market demand.
2024 2023
41. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
41.1 Number of employees including contractual employees
at 31 December 413 410
41.2 Average number of employees including contractual
employees during the year 418 407

42. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of
comparison and better presentation the effect of which is immaterial to the financial statements.

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 20 March 2025 have proposed a final cash dividend of
Rs. Nil per share amounting to Rs. Nil (2023: Nil per share amounting to Nil) subject to approval of the
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

44. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 20 March 2025 by the Board of Directors. The
directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements.

Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Investor Feedback Form

To request information or submit a comment / query fo the Company, please complete the following and

return this page to-

Company Secretary

Tractor House, 102-B,

16th East Street, DHA Phase |,
Off. Korangi Road, Karachi.

Comment / Query

Name

Permanent Mailing Address

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Contact Numbers (Tel)

(Fax)

Email

Name of Company

(If Applicable)

Designation
(If Applicable)

Company Address

(If Applicable)
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FAMCO SHARES REGISTRATION SERVICES (PVT) LTD. Date:
8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery

Block 6, P.E.C.H.S.

Shahra-e-Faisal

Karachi.

Dear Sirs,

ELECTRONIC CREDIT MANDATE FORM (MANDATORY)

| hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my bank account as detailed below:

Name of share-holder/certificate-holder

Folio Number/CDC Account No. : Company/Entity:

Contact number

Title of Bank Account

IBAN Number (see Note below)

Name of Bank

Bank branch name & full mailing address :

CNIC No. (copy attached)

NTN (in case of corporate entity)

Cell / Landline number

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; | shall keep the
Company/Modaraba informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder/Certificate-holder’s Signature

Notes and Instructions:

1. Please provide complete IBAN Number (24 digits), after checking with your concerned branch to enable
electronic credit directly into your bank account.

2. The payment of cash dividend will be processed based on the account number alone. Company/Modaraba
will rely on the account number as per Shareholder/Certificate holder’s instructions and shallnotbe
responsible for any loss, damage, liability or claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, delay, or
failure in performance of any of its obligations hereunder which is caused by incorrect payment instructions
and /or due to any event beyond the control of the Company/Modaraba.

3. Shareholders holding s hares in physical form m ust submit this f orm s eparately f or each C ompany/
Modaraba where they hold their shares/Modaraba Certificates quoting their folio number.

4. CDC shareholders are requestedt o submit their D ividend Mandate d irectly tot heir broker
(participant)/CDC Investor Accounts Services. It is not required to file separate form for each Company.
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FORM OF PROXY

I/ We of ,
a member(s) of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited and holding ordinary shares,
as per Registered Folio ,
hereby appoint of ,
or failing him, of , to vote for me/us and on

my/our behalf at the 42" Annual General Meeting of Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited to be held on Thursday,

April 24, 2025 at 3:00 PM at Pearl Continental Hotel, Karachi as well as through video-link arrangement.

Signed on this day of , 2025 in the presence of:
Signature of
member(s)
across
Revenue Stamp
of appropriate
value
1. Signature: 2. Signature:
Name: Name:
Address: Address:
CNIC or Passport No.: CNIC or Passport No.:
Important:

1. A member entitled to attend a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of
him. No person shall act as proxy (except for a corporation) unless he is entitled to be present and vote in
his own right.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly authorized in
writing. If the member is a corporation, its common seal (if any) should be affixed to the instrument.

3. The proxies shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
time of the meeting.
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CORRECT !

The Company Secretary
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited
Tractor House, 102-8,

16th East Street, DHA Phase |,
Off. Korangi Road, Karachi,

- POSTAGE :
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